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Kemper at a glance

Kemper Corporation (NYSE: KMPR) is a leading multi-line insurance holding company providing
home, auto, life and health products to serve the individual and business markets in the
United States. Kemper markets to its customers through a network of independent agents,
brokers and career agents.

Our heritage

With a history of providing insurance for more than a century, Kemper remains committed to
serving its customers. The holding company was initially part of Teledyne, Inc., where it grew
through a series of acquisitions. In 1990 the company spun off as Unitrin, Inc., and in 2011 it
rebranded itself as Kemper Corporation. Today Kemper’s 6,000 associates provide innovative
solutions for policyholders and agents.
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place in us.
Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.

To our shareholders,

I’m proud to be a part of the Kemper team. Since joining the
company late in the year, | have been doing a deep dive—
analyzing, questioning, evaluating everything—to define the
best path for us to achieve our full potential. | plan to share an
updated strategy with you this summer.

In the meantime, we are focused on stabilizing our current
business performance and improving our core results.

Our business model is based on partnering with talented
agents to deliver insurance solutions to serve our customers’
unique home, auto, life and health needs. We are proud to
fulfill our promises to policyholders—helping them when they
need us most. It’s our value proposition, and we do it well.

We appreciate your interest in Kemper and value the trust you

The year in review

2015 was a year of mixed results. Our underlying Life &
Health businesses remained stable and profitable. Our
investment portfolio once again performed well. Efforts
in the preferred home and auto lines resulted in modest
improvements in underlying profitability and production
trends. In April, we acquired Alliance United, giving us

more scale in the nonstandard auto market in California.

Overall, however, nonstandard auto proved to be an
area of challenge this year.

Over the past several years, we’ve taken a number of
actions to restore profitability in our preferred home
and auto lines. These actions have resulted in several
years of underlying profitability improvement, but
pressured our top line. This year again saw modest
improvement in underlying profitability, and while
written premiums continued to decline, we saw
improved retention and new business writings. The
business is clearly moving in the right direction, but has
a way to go.

Our nonstandard auto lines experienced a number of
challenges in the year. The industry saw significant
increases in loss costs, most heavily concentrated in our
largest states, including California. Both our legacy and

Alliance United businesses experienced deteriorating
profitability. We have a lot of work to do in the coming
year to achieve the results we seek. Although we have
some near term challenges, we still see the same
strategic value in Alliance United that we did prior to the
acquisition.

Focused on our agents and customers

At Kemper, we like to think of ourselves as an agent
company. By partnering with agents who know how to
offer the right solution for each unique need, we
provide excellent products and services tailored to meet
our policyholders’ specific situations. And we continue
to innovate on all fronts because we’re never done
improving.

Perhaps most important, | am impressed to see Kemper

associates committed to doing the right thing every day

for our customers, agents and shareholders. That’s what
it takes to win in this marketplace.

Improving performance

Across each of our businesses we continue to find ways
to streamline our processes and deliver overall cost
savings. We reinvest some of these savings into key
initiatives, yet most of the savings go directly to



reducing expenses, which has been especially important
given the recent premium trends.

With regard to catastrophes, our priority is to protect
our balance sheet. We continued to reduce exposures in
catastrophe-prone areas and took advantage of
competitive reinsurance prices to lower total costs.

| am pleased to report that our investment portfolio
continues to be an area of strength for us. The portfolio
delivered a pre-tax equivalent yield of 5.3 percent, net
investment income of $303 million, $25 million of gains,
net of impairments, and a total return of 2.2 percent for
the year.

Our core portfolio is a well-diversified mix of fixed
maturity and short-term securities that are rated “A-" on
average. Around this core portfolio, we maintain a broad
mix of equity securities and alternative investments such
as limited partnerships and directly-owned real

estate. As we acknowledge market volatility may
normalize from the low levels seen in recent years, we
will continue to focus on generating strong investment
returns while monitoring and diversifying our portfolio’s
risks.

Capital allocation

Ending the year with $2.0 billion of shareholders’ equity
puts us in a strong capital position.

Decisions we make regarding capital can have a
profound impact on our success both in the short term
and long term. We take that responsibility seriously, so
capital allocation will be an important aspect of the
strategy we are developing.

In 2015 we repurchased 1.2 million shares of common
stock at a cost of $43.5 million and maintained a
competitive common stock quarterly dividend of $0.24
per share. In total, with dividends and common stock

Kemper Corporation:

$8.0 billion total assets
$2.0 billion shareholders’ equity
27% debt-to-capitalization ratio

repurchases, Kemper returned $93 million, or 4 percent
of our shareholders’ equity, to shareholders in 2015.

Honoring our heritage; charting our future

| want to acknowledge the efforts and contributions of
my predecessor, Don Southwell, these past 20 years. He
is a man of integrity and honor.

While we’ve been writing insurance policies for more
than a century, we are in the midst of exciting
times...focusing our strategy to fulfill our potential. My
commitment to you, our shareholders, is to engage with
our team to refine and implement our plan to move
forward.

| view Kemper as a company in transition, which was
one aspect that attracted me. In Kemper, | see both
underlying strengths and opportunities to increase
profitability and growth. As | look forward, | plan to
leverage the many things that are working well and build
the capabilities we need to deliver the results you
deserve.

I look forward to developing and implementing a
roadmap to enable us to serve our policyholders, our
agents and you, our shareholders, well into the future.

February 12, 2016

)

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation

90% of fixed maturity portfolio rated investment grade

Strong capital & liquidity position
Conservative balance sheet
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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “2015 Annual Report”), including, but not limited to, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries (individually and collectively referred
to herein as the “Company”) and the notes thereto appearing in Item 8 herein (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”), the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations appearing in Item 7 herein (the
“MD&A”) and the other Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules filed as a part hereof or incorporated by reference herein,
may contain or incorporate by reference information that includes or is based on forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the safe-harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Forward-looking statements give expectations or forecasts of future events. The reader can identify these statements by the fact
that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. They use words such as “believe(s),” “goal(s),” “target(s),”
“estimate(s),” “anticipate(s),” “forecast(s),” “project(s),” “plan(s),” “intend(s),” “expect(s), e <
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might,” “may,” “could” and other
terms of similar meaning. Forward-looking statements, in particular, include statements relating to future actions, prospective
services or products, future performance or results of current and anticipated services or products, sales efforts, expenses, the
outcome of contingencies such as legal proceedings, trends in operations and financial results.

Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be wrong, and, accordingly, Kemper cautions readers not to place undue
reliance on such statements. Kemper bases these statements on current expectations and the current economic environment as
of the date of this 2015 Annual Report. They involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance; actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in
the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be affected by inaccurate assumptions or by known or
unknown risks and uncertainties that may be important in determining the Company’s actual future results and financial
condition.

In addition to those factors discussed below under Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” in this 2015 Annual Report, the reader should
consider the following list of general factors that, among others, could cause the Company’s actual results and financial
condition to differ materially from estimated results and financial condition:

Factors related to the legal and regulatory environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

*  Outcomes of state initiatives that could result in significant changes to, or interpretations of, unclaimed property laws
or significant changes in claims handling practices with respect to life insurance policies, particularly any that involve
retroactive application of new requirements to existing life insurance policy contracts;

*  Adverse outcomes in litigation or other legal or regulatory proceedings involving Kemper or its subsidiaries or
affiliates;

*  Governmental actions, including, but not limited to, implementation of new federal and state laws and regulations, and
court decisions interpreting existing laws and regulations or policy provisions;

*  Uncertainties related to regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, insurance products, license applications,
dividends from insurance subsidiaries, acquisitions of businesses and other matters within the purview of state
insurance regulators;

Factors relating to insurance claims and related reserves in the Company’s insurance businesses
+  The incidence, frequency and severity of catastrophes occurring in any particular reporting period or geographic area,
including natural disasters, pandemics and terrorist attacks or other man-made events;
*  The number and severity of insurance claims (including those associated with catastrophe losses);

+  Changes in facts and circumstances affecting assumptions used in determining loss and loss adjustment expenses
(“LAE”) reserves, including, but not limited to, the number and severity of insurance claims and development patterns;

*  The impact of inflation on insurance claims, including, but not limited to, the effects on personal injury claims of
increasing medical costs and the effects on property claims attributed to scarcity of resources available to rebuild
damaged structures, including labor and materials and the amount of salvage value recovered for damaged property;

*  Developments related to insurance policy claims and coverage issues, including, but not limited to, interpretations or
decisions by courts or regulators that may govern or influence losses incurred in connection with hurricanes and other
catastrophes;

*  Orders, interpretations or other actions by regulators that impact the reporting, adjustment and payment of claims;



+  Changes in the pricing or availability of reinsurance, or in the financial condition of reinsurers and amounts
recoverable therefrom;

Factors related to the Company’s ability to compete

*  Changes in the ratings by rating agencies of Kemper and/or its insurance company subsidiaries with regard to credit,
financial strength, claims paying ability and other areas on which the Company is rated,

*  The level of success and costs incurred in realizing or maintaining economies of scale, implementing significant
business consolidations, reorganizations and technology initiatives and integrating acquired businesses;

*  Absolute and relative performance of the Company’s products or services, including, but not limited to, the level of
success achieved in designing and introducing new insurance products;

*  The ability of the Company to maintain the availability of critical systems and manage technology initiatives cost-
effectively to address insurance industry developments and regulatory requirements;

*  Heightened competition, including, with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors and alternate distribution
channels, introduction of new technologies, emergence of telematics, refinements of existing products and
development of new products by current or future competitors;

Factors relating to the business environment in which Kemper and its subsidiaries operate

*  Changes in general economic conditions, including, but not limited to, performance of financial markets, interest rates,
inflation, unemployment rates and fluctuating values of particular investments held by the Company;

+  Absolute and relative performance of investments held by the Company;

+  Changes in insurance industry trends and significant industry developments;

*  Changes in consumer trends and significant consumer or product developments;

+ Changes in capital requirements, including the calculations thereof, used by regulators and rating agencies;

*  Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for, the Company’s products or services
or after-tax returns from the Company’s investments;

+  The impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting associations, residual market assessments and
assessments for insurance industry insolvencies;

*  Changes in distribution channels, methods or costs resulting from changes in laws or regulations, lawsuits or market
forces;

+ Increased costs and risks related to cybersecurity and information technology, including, but not limited to, identity
theft, data breaches and system disruptions affecting services and actions taken to minimize the risks thereof; and

Other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in Kemper’s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange

Commission (“SEC™).

Kemper cannot provide any assurances that the results contemplated in any forward-looking statements will be achieved or will
be achieved in any particular timetable or that future events or developments will not cause such statements to be inaccurate.
Kemper assumes no obligation to correct or update any forward-looking statements publicly for any changes in events or
developments or in the Company’s expectations or results subsequent to the date of this 2015 Annual Report. Kemper advises
the reader, however, to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.




PART 1
Item 1. Business.

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and businesses. Kemper’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on

Form 10 ), current reports on Form 8-K and amendments thereto are accessible free of charge through Kemper’s website,
kemper.com, and as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

(a) GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS
Issuance of 2025 Senior Notes and Retirement of 2015 Senior Notes

On February 24, 2015, Kemper issued $250.0 million of its 4.35% senior notes due February 15, 2025 (the “2025 Senior
Notes”). The net proceeds of the issuance were $247.3 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield of
4.49%. The 2025 Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at
Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper used the net proceeds from the sale of the 2025 Senior Notes, together
with available cash, to redeem in full the $250.0 million outstanding principal amount of its 6.00% Senior Notes due November
30, 2015.

Purchase of Alliance United Group

On April 30, 2015, Kemper acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Alliance United Group and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Alliance United Insurance Company and Alliance United Insurance Services, (individually and collectively
referred to herein as “Alliance United”) in a cash transaction for a total purchase price of $71.0 million, of which $17.5 million
is being held in escrow to secure the sellers’ potential indemnification obligations under the purchase agreement. After
completing the transaction, Kemper contributed $75.0 million to support the book of business acquired and commuted a quota
share reinsurance agreement whereby Alliance United had ceded a portion of its business to an unaffiliated reinsurer. Alliance
United is a provider of nonstandard personal automobile insurance in California. As a result of the acquisition, the Company
increased its presence in the California nonstandard automobile insurance market by gaining access to additional brokers and
gained expertise in serving the Hispanic market. See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital
Resources,” and Note 3, “Acquisition of Business,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
pertaining to the acquisition of Alliance United.

(b) BUSINESS SEGMENT FINANCIAL DATA

Financial information about Kemper’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is contained
in the following sections of this 2015 Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference: (i) Note 18, “Business Segments,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements and (i) MD&A.

(c) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and businesses. The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and
casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses. The Company conducts its operations through two operating
segments: Property & Casualty Insurance and Life & Health Insurance. The Company conducts its operations solely in the
United States.

Kemper’s subsidiaries employ approximately 5,600 full-time associates supporting their operations, of which approximately
1,850 are employed in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment, approximately 3,250 are employed in the Life & Health
Insurance segment and the remainder are employed in various corporate and other staff and shared functions.



Property and Casualty Insurance Business
General

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment provides automobile, homeowners, renters, fire, umbrella and other types of
property and casualty insurance to individuals and commercial automobile insurance to businesses. Property insurance
indemnifies an insured with an interest in physical property for loss of, or damage to, such property. Casualty insurance
primarily covers liability for damage to property of, or injury to, a person or entity other than the insured. In most cases,
casualty insurance also obligates the insurance company to provide a defense for the insured in litigation arising out of events
covered by the policy.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment distributes its products primarily through independent agents and brokers who are
paid commissions for their services. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s direct-to-consumer operations, which were
placed into run-off in 2012, accounted for approximately 6% of the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s earned premiums
in 2015. In addition, the Life & Health Insurance segment’s career agents also sell contents coverage for personal property to its
customers.

Earned premiums from automobile insurance accounted for 54%, 48% and 50% of the Company’s consolidated insurance
premiums earned in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Revenues from automobile insurance accounted for 48%, 43% and 44%
of Kemper’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Automobile insurance
products include personal automobile insurance, ranging from preferred to nonstandard risks, and commercial automobile
insurance. Nonstandard personal automobile insurance policyholders tend to have difficulty obtaining standard or preferred risk
insurance, usually because of their driving records, claims experience or premium payment history. Homeowners insurance
accounted for 14%, 17% and 16% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums earned in 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Homeowners insurance accounted for 13%, 15% and 14% of the Company’s consolidated revenues from
continuing operations in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, and conducts business in 47 states and the
District of Columbia. The segment’s insurance products are offered by approximately 18,000 independent insurance agents and
brokers. As shown in the following table, five states provided 71% of the segment’s premium revenues in 2015.

Percentage
of Total
State Premiums
California 39%
Texas............ 12
New York 11




Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company’s reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance (“Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves”)
are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end
of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by business segment at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Business Segments:

Property & Casualty Insurance $ 8005 $ 651.1

Life & Health Insurance 5.2 4.5
Total BUSINESS SEZIMEILS. ... .ccviiiieiietieieeiieteeteetesteeteestesseestessteseesseessessaassessseseessesssesseessesssesseesesssessees 805.7 655.6
DiSCONtINUEA OPETALIONS ......ieuvieiietieieeiieetieteeteettesteetesstesteestesstesseesseessessaessesssesseessesssesseessesssesseessesssessees 51.0 70.2
UNALIOCALEA RESEIVES .....iuveiieeiieiieeiieie ettt ettt ettt e et esteebe e st esseesseesbesseesseessesssessesssesssessenssesssensennsenses 6.1 8.1

Total Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves . $ 8628 $ 7339

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures that may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, of which $20.3
million was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2015. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 57 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while minimizing variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and LAE are
fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE, also referred to as “development,” will occur
over time and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements
when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net income in the
period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements when the
Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net income.

Development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE from prior accident years for each of the Company’s
continuing business segments and discontinued operations in 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Continuing Operations:
Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .........ecveieieieieieieieieteietetet ettt esesessessessessessessensas $ 129 $ 544 § 580
Life & Health INSUTANCE .......ccveiieiieiieieeiicieeeeee ettt sne e e (1.4) (0.9) 1.8
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net 11.5 53.5 59.8

Discontinued OPerations ............cceeceecueriereeciesieneesieereseesseeeesenennes 8.6 3.6 4.8
$ 201 $§ 571 $ 646

Total Favorable Development, Net

See MD&A, “Loss and LAE Reserve Development,” “Property & Casualty Insurance,” and “Life & Health Insurance,” for the
impact of development on the results reported by the Company’s business segments. Also see MD&A, “Critical Accounting
Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” beginning
on page 57 for additional information about the Company’s reserving practices.

See Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a tabular reconciliation
of the three most recent annual periods setting forth the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves as of the
beginning of each year, incurred losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, changes in incurred losses and LAE for
insured events of prior years, payments of losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, payments of losses and LAE
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for insured events of prior years and the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves at the end of the year and
additional information regarding the nature of adjustments to incurred losses and LAE for insured events of prior years.

Catastrophe Losses

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and are expected to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of insured losses that
could occur in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses contribute to material year-to-year fluctuations in the
results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more likely to occur at
certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty insurance claims.
The occurrence and severity of catastrophic events cannot be accurately predicted in any year. However, some geographic
locations are more susceptible to these events than others. The Company has endeavored to manage its direct insurance
exposures in certain regions that are prone to naturally occurring catastrophic events through a combination of geographic
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, modifications of, and/or
limitations to coverages and deductibles for certain perils in such regions and reinsurance. The Company has adopted the
industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events promulgated by Insurance Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”) to
track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event causes $25 million or
more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers. ISO-classified
catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions throughout this
2015 Annual Report utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,”
under the caption “Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/
or financial condition” for a discussion of catastrophe risk. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the factors that influence the process of estimating and establishing reserves for
catastrophes.

Reinsurance

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of risks insured in certain regions and reinsurance. To limit its exposures
to catastrophic events, the Company maintains a primary catastrophe reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty
Insurance segment. Coverage for the primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers and reinsurance
contracts. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment and the Life & Health Insurance segment also purchase reinsurance from
the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund (the “FHCF”) for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described
below for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program.

Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program for 2016 is provided by
two three-year reinsurance contracts. Each reinsurance contract provides coverage in two layers, which together provide
coverage for losses on individual catastrophes of $300 million in excess of $50 million. The first reinsurance contract provides
coverage over the three-year period of January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017 (the “2015 Reinsurance Contract’). The
percentage of coverage under the 2015 Reinsurance Contract in the first, second and third years is 95%, 63.3% and 31.7%,
respectively. Under the 2015 Reinsurance Contract, the participation of each reinsurer decreases by one-third in the second year
and another one-third in the third year. Accordingly, in order to maintain the same percentage of coverage for 2016 as provided
in the initial year of the 2015 Reinsurance Contract, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment entered into a second
reinsurance contract covering the three-year period of January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2018 (the “2016 Reinsurance
Contract”). Under the 2016 Reinsurance Contract, the percentage of coverage is 31.7% for each year in the three-year period,
and participation of each reinsurer remains the same over the entire three-year period. Coverage provided under the combined
programs for 2016 (January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016) is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses
and LAE

Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
RELAINEA ..ottt $ — 8 50.0 —%
15t Layer OFf COVETAZE ....ccvevieiieiieiieeiieie ettt ettt e et esseenaeensesneensean 50.0 150.0 95.0
20d Layer Of COVETAZE .....veeveevieiieieeiiesiieieeieseteteete st ie et e et e seenteesaesseesaessesseensens 150.0 350.0 95.0



To maintain the same percentage of coverage in subsequent years as provided by the combined programs in 2016, the Property
& Casualty Insurance segment will need to purchase additional reinsurance in the future.

The estimated aggregate annual premium in 2016 for the combined programs presented in the preceding table is $12.6 million.
Premiums due to the reinsurers will decrease proportionately with the decline in their respective participations in the second
and third years of the 2015 Reinsurance Contract. In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered
by its catastrophe reinsurance program exceed the retention for a particular layer, the combined programs require one
reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers
to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium for the first layer of coverage
is a percentage of the full original premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the
reinsurers’ coverage limit. The reinstatement premium for the second layer of coverage is a percentage of half the original
premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.

The coverage presented in the preceding table differs from the coverage provided in 2014 and 2013. See Note 20, “Catastrophe
Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining to the primary catastrophe reinsurance
programs for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment for 2014 and 2013.

In addition to the catastrophe loss exposures caused by natural events described above, Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies are exposed to losses from catastrophic events that are not the result of acts of nature, such as acts of
terrorism, the nature, occurrence and severity of which in any period cannot be accurately predicted. The companies have
reinsurance coverage to address certain exposures to potential future terrorist attacks. The reinsurance coverage for certified
events, as designated by the federal government, is from the Terrorist Risk Insurance Act and the coverage for non-certified
events is available in the catastrophe reinsurance program for Kemper’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. However,
certain perils, such as biological, chemical, nuclear pollution or contamination, are excluded from the reinsurance coverage for
non-certified events.

In addition to the catastrophe reinsurance programs described above, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies
utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize
exposures on larger risks.

Under the various reinsurance arrangements, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies are indemnified by
reinsurers for certain losses incurred under insurance policies issued by the reinsurers. As indemnity reinsurance does not
discharge an insurer from its direct obligations to policyholders on risks insured, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance
companies remain directly liable. However, provided that the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s
property and casualty insurance companies is limited to the amount of risk that they retain. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies purchase their reinsurance only from reinsurers rated “A-" or better by A. M. Best Co., Inc. (“A.M. Best”),
at the time of purchase. A.M. Best is an organization that specializes in rating insurance and reinsurance companies.
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For further discussion of the reinsurance programs, see Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” and Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,’
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pricing

Pricing levels for property and casualty insurance products are influenced by many factors, including the frequency and severity
of claims, state regulation and legislation, competition, general business and economic conditions, including market rates of
interest, inflation, expense levels, and judicial decisions. In addition, many state regulators require consideration of investment
income when approving or setting rates, which could reduce underwriting margins. See MD&A under the caption “Property &
Casualty Insurance.”

Competition

Based on the most recent annual data published by A.M. Best, as of the end of 2014, there were 1,242 property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States. Kemper’s property and casualty group was among the top 8% of property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States as measured by net written premiums, policyholders’ surplus and admitted assets in 2014.
Among all personal lines automobile insurance writers, Kemper’s property and casualty group was the 26th largest writer as
measured by net written premiums in 2014.



Rankings by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile
Measurement Rank Rank
INEt AQMILEEA ASSELS . .eueeuieuieuieiieiieiieiieitetetet ettt et et est et et et estest et estentensessensesensensensensensensensesesensensan 89 92%
INet WITTEN PrOMIUIMS ....o.eiuiiiiiieiieieieiieeteteee ettt ettt ettt e et e e b e b e s e sensesensensan 55 95
Capital aNd SUIPIUS. .....c.eiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt et ettt e et e e b e e teeabeessesasebeeasesaseseenseens 91 92

In 2014, the U.S. property and casualty insurance industry’s estimated net premiums written were $507 billion, of which nearly
80% were accounted for by the top 50 groups of property and casualty insurance companies. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies wrote less than 1% of the industry’s 2014 premium volume.

The property and casualty insurance industry is highly competitive, particularly with respect to personal automobile insurance.
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies compete on the basis of, among other measures, (i) using suitable pricing
segmentation, (ii) maintaining underwriting discipline, (iii) settling claims timely and efficiently, (iv) offering products in
selected markets or geographies, (v) utilizing technological innovations for the marketing and sale of insurance, (vi) controlling
expenses, (vii) maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and other ratings agencies and (viii) providing quality services to
independent agents and policyholders. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “The insurance industry is highly
competitive, making it difficult to grow profitability and within expectations of investors.”

Life and Health Insurance Business

The Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment consists of Kemper’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, United Insurance Company
of America (“United Insurance”), The Reliable Life Insurance Company (“Reliable”), Union National Life Insurance Company
(“Union National Life”), Mutual Savings Life Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Life”), United Casualty Insurance
Company of America (“United Casualty”), Union National Fire Insurance Company (“Union National Fire”), Mutual Savings
Fire Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Fire”’) and Reserve National Insurance Company (“Reserve National”). As
discussed below, United Insurance, Reliable, Union National Life, Mutual Savings Life, United Casualty, Union National Fire
and Mutual Savings Fire (the “Kemper Home Service Companies”) distribute their products through a network of employee, or
“career,” agents. Reserve National distributes its products through a network of independent agents and brokers. These career
agents, independent agents and brokers are paid commissions for their services.

Earned premiums from life insurance accounted for 19%, 21% and 19% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums
earned in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Revenues from life insurance accounted for 25%, 27% and 24% of the Company’s
consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As shown in the following table, five
states provided 51% of the premium revenues in this segment in 2015.

Percentage
of Total

State Premiums
TEXAS 1o iuree e ettt e ettt ettt eet e e ee et e e eetee e eebeeeeebaeeeeaaeaeeeabaeeeabaeeetaae e e ataeeeatae e et raeeeatbaeeeatbaeeeatraeeeatraeeeatraeeentreeeentreeeenans 21%
LLOUISIANA ......eevvieiee ettt ettt ettt e et et e e ae e e teeenaeeesseeesseesaeesesenseeeaseseaseeessseseeenteeasseeeaseesasseseeenseeenreesaneens 12
J N E:1 0T 15 s T AU USROS
IMISSISSIPP «vuveeuviieeeteeteeeteeteeeteeteetteeteebeetteeteeaeessaesseeseesseessessesseess e ssesseesseeasesssesssesseassenseesseessenseenseessenseenseseneseenseeens
FLOTIAA ...ttt e e ettt e et e eaaeeeaa e eeteeeteeenteeeaeeeeaseeeae e e aeeentesanteeeaeeeeaesenaeeeteeereeeareens

Kemper Home Service Companies

The Kemper Home Service Companies, based in St. Louis, Missouri, focus on providing individual life and supplemental
accident and health insurance products to customers of modest incomes who desire basic protection for themselves and their
families. Their leading product is ordinary life insurance, including permanent and term insurance. Face amounts of these
policies are lower than those of policies typically sold to higher income customers by other companies in the life insurance
industry. Approximately 78% of the Life & Health Insurance segment’s premium revenues are generated by the Kemper Home
Service Companies.

The Kemper Home Service Companies employ nearly 2,200 career agents to distribute insurance products in 25 states and the
District of Columbia. These career agents are full-time employees who call on customers in their homes to sell insurance
products, provide services related to policies in force and collect premiums, typically monthly. Premiums average about $20 per



policy per month with an average face value of $5,300. Permanent and term policies are offered primarily on a non-
participating, guaranteed-cost basis. These career agents also distribute and/or service certain property insurance products for
the Kemper Home Service Companies.

Reserve National

Reserve National, based in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, is licensed in 48 states throughout the United States and has traditionally
specialized in the sale of Medicare Supplement insurance and limited health insurance coverages, such as fixed indemnity and
accident-only plans, primarily to individuals in rural areas who often do not have access to a broad array of accident and health
insurance products tailored to meet their individual and family needs. Reserve National’s traditional distribution channel
consists of approximately 300 independent agents.

Reserve National began expanding its distribution channels during 2013 by launching two marketing channel initiatives —
Kemper Senior Solutions and Kemper Benefits. Kemper Senior Solutions markets life insurance and home health care products
focusing on the individual, senior-age demographic of the market place. Kemper Benefits sells voluntary products in the
employer market place. Brokers and non-exclusive independent agents are utilized to market and distribute products in these
new distribution channels. Reserve National has appointed approximately 22,000 independent agents in connection with these
initiatives.

Reinsurance

Consistent with insurance industry practice, the Company’s life and health insurance companies utilize reinsurance
arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposures on larger risks in its
life and health insurance businesses. As the face amounts of its issued policies are relatively small, the ceded risks and
corresponding premiums are also relatively small, particularly when compared to other companies in the industry. The segment
is also exposed to losses from catastrophes arising from insurance policies distributed by career agents of the Kemper Home
Service Companies. Over the last several years, the Kemper Home Service Companies have been intentionally reducing their
exposure to catastrophic events through the run-off of their dwelling insurance business. Accordingly, except for reinsurance
provided by the FHCF for catastrophe losses in Florida, the Kemper Home Service Companies have not carried catastrophe
reinsurance since 2012.

Lapse Ratio

The lapse ratio is a measure of a life insurer’s loss of in-force policies. For a given year, this ratio is commonly computed as the
total face amount of individual life insurance policies lapsed, surrendered, expired and decreased during such year, less policies
increased and revived during such year, divided by the total face amount of policies at the beginning of the year plus the face
amount of policies issued and reinsurance assumed in the prior year. The Life & Health Insurance segment’s lapse ratio for
individual life insurance was 6%, 7% and 7% in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The customer base served by the Kemper Home Service Companies and competing life insurance companies tends to have a
higher incidence of lapse than other demographic segments of the population. Thus, to maintain or increase the level of its
business, the Kemper Home Service Companies must write a high volume of new policies.

Pricing

Premiums for life and health insurance products are based on assumptions with respect to mortality, morbidity, investment
yields, expenses, and lapses and are also affected by state laws and regulations, as well as competition. Pricing assumptions are
based on the experience of Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries, as well as the industry in general, depending on the
factor being considered. The actual profit or loss produced by a product will vary from the anticipated profit if the actual
experience differs from the assumptions used in pricing the product.

Premiums for policies sold by the Kemper Home Service Companies are set at levels designed to cover the relatively high cost
of “in-home” servicing of such policies. As a result, Kemper Home Service Companies’ premiums have a higher load for
expense than the life insurance industry average.

Premiums for Medicare supplement and other accident and health policies must take into account the rising costs of medical
care. The annual rate of medical cost inflation has historically been higher than the general rate of inflation, necessitating
frequent rate increases, most of which are subject to approval by state regulators.



Competition

Based on the most recent data published by A.M. Best, as of the end of 2014, there were 466 life and health insurance company
groups in the United States. The Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment ranked in the top 20% of life and health
insurance company groups, as measured by admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus. Rankings by
admitted assets, net premiums written and capital and surplus were:

Ordinal Percentile
Measurement Rank Rank
NEt AQMILEEA ASSEES...euviitirtiitiitieiieteetiee et ete et e e ete et ete et eraeseeseeseeseeseeseessessessessessessessessessessassessassessessanses 87 81%
Net WIItEEN PIrOIMIUIMS ......ccviiviiiiciiciiciieiceieeieee ettt te et teeteeteeseeseeseessessessessessessessessessessessessessessansas 93 80
Capital ANd SUIPIUS.....ccuiiiiiieeiee ettt ettt et e st e se e st e e saesseesbeessesseensesnsesseensennsennes 91 80

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries generally compete by using appropriate pricing, offering products to selected
markets or geographies, controlling expenses, maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and providing competitive services
to agents and policyholders.

Investments

The quality, nature and amount of the various types of investments that can be made by insurance companies are regulated by
state laws. Depending on the state, these laws permit investments in qualified assets, including, but not limited to, municipal,
state and federal government obligations, corporate bonds, real estate, preferred and common stocks, investment partnerships,
limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships. In addition, the quality, nature and amount of the various types
of investments held by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries affect the amount of asset risk calculated by regulators and rating
agencies in determining required capital. See “Regulation” immediately following this subsection and Item 1A., “Risk Factors,”
under the caption “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net
investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses.”

The Company employs a total return investment strategy, with an emphasis on yield, while maintaining liquidity to meet both
its short- and medium-term insurance obligations. See the discussions of the Company’s investments under the headings
“Investment Results,” “Investment Quality and Concentrations,” “Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Critical Accounting Estimates,” in the MD&A, “Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” in Item 7A and Note 4, “Investments,” Note 13, “Income from Investments,” and
Note 22, “Fair Value Measurements,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Regulation
Overview of State Regulation

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they conduct business. Such
regulation pertains to a variety of matters, including, but not limited to, policy forms, premium rate plans, licensing of agents,
licenses to transact business, market conduct, trade practices, claims practices, transactions with affiliates, payment of
dividends, investments and solvency. Insurance regulatory authorities perform periodic examinations of an insurer’s financial
condition, market conduct and other affairs.

Approval of Policy Rates and Forms

The majority of Kemper’s insurance operations are in states requiring prior approval by regulators before proposed policy or
coverage forms and rates for property, casualty, or health insurance policies may be implemented and used. However, provided
that the policy form has been previously approved, rates proposed for life insurance generally become effective immediately
upon filing with a state, even though the same state may require prior rate approval for other types of insurance.

Financial Reports and Standards

Insurance companies are required to report their financial condition and results of operation in accordance with statutory
accounting principles prescribed or permitted by state insurance regulators in conjunction with the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”). State insurance regulators also prescribe the form and content of statutory financial
statements, perform periodic financial examinations of insurers, set minimum reserve and loss ratio requirements and establish
standards for the types and amounts of investments. In addition, state regulators require minimum capital and surplus levels and
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incorporate risk-based capital (“RBC”) standards promulgated by the NAIC. These RBC standards are intended to assess the
level of risk inherent in an insurance company’s business and consider items such as asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk
and other business risks relevant to its operations. In accordance with RBC formulas, a company’s RBC requirements are
calculated and compared to its total adjusted capital to determine whether regulatory intervention is warranted. At
December 31, 2015, the total adjusted capital of each of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels
required under applicable RBC rules.

Guaranty Funds and Risk Pools

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to pay assessments up to prescribed limits to fund policyholder losses or liabilities
of insolvent insurance companies under the guaranty fund laws of most states in which they transact business. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries are subject to certain fees imposed on health insurers by the Health Care Acts, including the Health
Insurance Providers Fee, but not the fees associated with the Reinsurance, Risk Adjustment and Risk Corridor programs, as
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries do not have any policies subject to those fees. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also
required to participate in various involuntary pools or assigned risk pools, principally involving windstorms and high risk
drivers. In most states, the involuntary pool participation of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is set in proportion to their
voluntary writings of related lines of business in such states. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Catastrophe
losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/or financial condition” for a
discussion of the impact of required participation in windstorm pools and joint underwriting associations on the ability of the
Company to manage its exposure to catastrophic events.

Dividends and Other Transactions with Affiliates

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are also subject to the insurance holding company laws of a number of states. Certain
dividends and distributions by an insurance subsidiary are subject to prior approval by the insurance regulators of its state of
domicile. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service
its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders and/or make repurchases of its stock.” Other significant transactions between an
insurance subsidiary and its holding company or other affiliates may require approval by insurance regulators in the state of
domicile of each participating insurance subsidiary.

Holding Company Regulation, Including Enterprise Risk Management and Governance

A number of pending and recently approved legislative and regulatory measures may significantly affect the insurance business.
In particular, nearly half of all states have already adopted extensive modifications to their holding company laws based on
amendments to the Model Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Act (the “Model Holding Company Act”) adopted
by the NAIC in December 2010. With varying effective dates beginning in 2014, these modifications impose new reporting
requirements and substantially expand the oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators with regulatory
authority over an insurance company to assess enterprise risks within such company’s entire holding company system that may
arise from operations of its insurance and non-insurance affiliates. They also impose new reporting requirements on the ultimate
controlling persons of such insurance companies in respect of, among other things, affiliated transactions and divestiture of
controlling interests in the insurance companies.

In addition, a number of states have adopted the Risk Management and Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Model Act (the
“Risk Management and Solvency Model Act”) adopted by the NAIC in 2012. With varying effective dates beginning in 2015,
the Risk Management and Solvency Model Act requires insurers to maintain an enterprise risk management (“ERM”)
framework, perform regular assessments of the adequacy of the ERM framework and the company’s solvency and file an
annual ERM assessment summary report. Similarly, the Corporate Governance Annual Disclosure Model Act (the “Model
Governance Act”) and Model Regulation adopted by the NAIC in 2014, requires, when adopted by an insurer’s (or insurance
group’s) lead state, an insurer (or insurance group) to submit an annual disclosure with information about board structure,
policies, meeting frequency and oversight of critical risk areas and practices. The Company anticipates that most states will
adopt legislation based on the Model Holding Company Act, the Risk Management and Solvency Model Act and the Model
Governance Act.

Additional regulation has also resulted from other measures in recent years including, among other things, tort reform, the
Health Care Acts, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), consumer privacy
and data security requirements, credit score regulation, producer compensation regulations, cybersecurity and financial services
regulation initiatives. In late 2015, the NAIC adopted the Cybersecurity Bill of Rights, a set of directives aimed at protecting
consumer data, for insurance companies to follow to the extent incorporated in NAIC model laws and regulations adopted by
states. Also in late 2015, the NAIC adopted amendments to the information technology section of its handbook for examiners to
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strengthen and enhance the existing cybersecurity guidance. The Company anticipates a continuing focus on new regulatory
and legislative proposals at the state and federal levels that further regulate practices regarding privacy and security of personal
information.

Change in Control Requirements

State insurance laws also impose requirements that must be met prior to a change of control of an insurance company or
insurance holding company based on the insurer’s state of domicile and, in some cases, additional states in which it is deemed
commercially domiciled due to the substantial amount of business it conducts therein. These requirements may include the
advance filing of specific information with the state insurance regulators, a public hearing on the matter, and the review and
approval of the change of control by such regulators. The Company has insurance subsidiaries domiciled or deemed
commercially domiciled in Alabama, California, Illinois, Louisiana, Missouri, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas and
Wisconsin. In these states, except Alabama, “control” generally is presumed to exist through the direct or indirect ownership of
10% or more of the voting securities of an insurance company. Control is presumed to exist in Alabama with a 5% or more
ownership interest in such securities. Any purchase of Kemper’s shares that would result in the purchaser owning Kemper’s
voting securities in the foregoing percentages for the states indicated would be presumed to result in the acquisition of control
of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries in those states. Therefore, acquisitions subject to the 10% threshold generally would
require the prior approval of insurance regulators in each state in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled or
deemed commercially domiciled, including those in Alabama, while acquisitions subject to the 5% threshold generally would
require the prior approval of only Alabama regulators. Similarly, consistent with the Model Holding Company Act, several of
the states in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled have enacted legislation that requires either the
divesting and/or acquiring company to notify regulators of, and in some cases to receive regulatory approval for, a change in
control.

Many state statutes also require pre-acquisition notification to state insurance regulators of a change of control of an insurance
company licensed in the state if specific market concentration thresholds would be triggered by the acquisition. Such statutes
authorize the issuance of a cease and desist order with respect to the insurance company if certain conditions, such as undue
market concentration, would result from the acquisition. These regulatory requirements may deter, delay or prevent transactions
effecting control of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries, or the ownership of Kemper’s voting securities, including transactions
that could be advantageous to Kemper’s shareholders.

Federal Government Regulation

Kemper’s health insurance subsidiaries are subject to additional regulation by the federal government. For example, the Health
Care Acts, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, have established minimum loss ratios, rating restrictions, mandates for
essential health benefit coverages, and restrictions or prohibitions on pre-existing condition exclusions and annual and lifetime
policy limits for health insurance policies.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act, enacted in 2010, profoundly increases federal regulation of the financial services industry, of
which the insurance industry is a part. Among other things, the Dodd-Frank Act formed a Federal Insurance Office (“FIO”)
charged with monitoring the insurance industry and conducting a study on methods to modernize and improve the insurance
regulatory system in the United States. FIO’s report, delivered to Congress in 2013, concluded that a hybrid approach to
regulation, involving a combination of state and federal government action, could improve the U.S. insurance system by
attaining uniformity, efficiency and consistency, particularly with respect to solvency and market conduct regulation. A hybrid
approach was also recommended to address the perceived need for uniform supervision of insurance companies with national
and global activities. FIO established the Federal Advisory Committee on Insurance (“FACI”’) whose mission is to provide
recommendations to FIO on issues it monitors for Congress. While the NAIC continues to promote the strengths of the U.S.
state-based insurance regulatory system, both FIO/FACI and international standard setting authorities such as the International
Association of Insurance Supervisors are actively seeking a role in shaping the future of the U.S. insurance regulatory
framework. It is not yet known whether or how these organizations’ recommendations might result in changes to the current
state-based system of insurance industry regulation or ultimately impact Kemper’s operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Kemper is exposed to numerous risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from recent results or anticipated
future results. The following discussion details the significant risk factors that are specific to the Company. In addition to those
described below, the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected by other
factors not presently known by, or considered material to, the Company. Readers are advised to consider all of these factors
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along with the other information included in this 2015 Annual Report and to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on
related subjects in its filings with the SEC.

Changes in the application of state unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices could have a
significant effect on (including an acceleration of) the payment and/or escheatment of life insurance death benefits and
significantly increase claims handling costs relative to what is currently contemplated by Kemper (the “Unclaimed Property
Risk Factor”).

In recent years, many states have begun to aggressively expand the application of their unclaimed property laws as they relate
to life insurance proceeds. The treasurers or controllers (collectively, “Treasurers”) of a large majority of states have engaged
private audit firms to examine the practices and procedures of life insurance companies with respect to the reporting and
remittance of proceeds associated with life insurance policies, annuity contracts and retained asset accounts under state
unclaimed property laws. Related measures are also being taken or considered by state insurance regulators, both individually
and collectively through the auspices of the NAIC, and some state insurance regulators have initiated market conduct
examinations focused on claims handling and unclaimed property practices of life insurers. Additionally, since 2012, a number
of states have enacted legislation pertaining to unclaimed property.

As a result of these audits and examinations, a number of large life insurance groups have agreed to alter historic practices that
were previously considered to be lawful and appropriate relative to claims handling and the reporting and remittance of life
insurance policy proceeds under state unclaimed property laws. Based on published reports, at least twenty life insurance
groups have entered into settlement agreements with state insurance regulators and twenty-four groups with Treasurers. Under
the terms of these agreements, the settling companies typically agree to establish a practice of periodically searching for
deceased insureds, even prior to the receipt of a claim, by comparing their in-force policy records against a database of reported
deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration or a comparable database (collectively, a “Death Master File” or
“DMF”). The settlements usually apply to policies that were in force at any time since January 1, 1992. In conducting these
comparisons against a DMF, the insurers are required to use complex “fuzzy” matching criteria which in many cases result in a
large volume of potential matches for any given insured. In such cases, the insurer must either assume a costly and
administratively burdensome process of disproving any such ambiguous matches which may necessitate a review of older
records that are not in electronic form, or accept such matches as valid and escheat the related policy benefits to the states if the
beneficiaries cannot be found. All settlements to date with insurance regulators have involved payment of monetary penalties
(ranging from about $1.2 million up to $40 million), while settlements with Treasurers have required payment of interest on
sums remitted, calculated from the date of death of the insured (rather than from the insurer’s first knowledge of death or
receipt of a claim) and extending as far back as 1992. The amounts publicly reported by the settling companies to have been
paid to beneficiaries and/or escheated to the states have been substantial. Kemper’s life insurance subsidiaries (the “Life
Companies”) have thus far resisted attempts by certain state officials and their designated audit firms to effect changes to the
Life Companies’ claims handling and unclaimed property practices of the sort embodied in the foregoing settlements and have
challenged through multiple legal proceedings the authority of such officials to require such changes. There can be no
assurances that the Life Companies will ultimately be successful in resisting such attempts or any that may arise in the future.

Separately, the National Conference of Insurance Legislators (“NCOIL”) has adopted model legislation which, if enacted,
would require life insurance companies to compare their in-force life insurance policy records against a DMF for the purpose of
identifying potentially deceased insureds with respect to whom the subject life insurance company has not yet received a claim,
including due proof of death. Nineteen states have adopted versions of the NCOIL model legislation (the “DMF Statutes”).
Nine of such states have enacted DMF Statutes that apply to in-force life insurance policies and if such statutes are construed to
apply to life insurance policies in force on each respective statute’s effective date, could have a significant effect on, including
an acceleration of, the payment of life insurance benefits to beneficiaries or, in instances where beneficiaries cannot be located,
the remittance of such benefits to the states under their unclaimed property laws. Four other states have enacted DMF Statutes
that apply only prospectively to insurers, like the Life Companies, that have not previously used a DMF, and six additional
states have enacted DMF Statutes that apply only to policies issued on or after their respective effective dates, without regard to
prior DMF use. Additionally, in 2015, a drafting subgroup of the NAIC began work on possible model legislation that would
also address unclaimed property in the life insurance context; while the future and final provisions of such NAIC model
legislation are unclear, the adoption of such model could increase the likelihood that unfavorable legislation could be adopted in
states in which the Life Companies operate. Kemper cannot presently predict whether any other states will enact similar
legislation or, if enacted, exactly what form such legislation will take.

The Life Companies are the subject of an unclaimed property compliance audit (the “Treasurers’ Audit”) by a private audit firm
retained by the Treasurers of more than thirty states (the “Audit Firm”). In July 2013, the California State Controller (the “CA
Controller”) filed a complaint against the Life Companies in state court in California, seeking an order requiring the Life
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Companies to produce their in-force insurance policy records to the Audit Firm to enable the firm to perform a comparison of
such records against a DMF. The Life Companies have filed a cross-complaint against the CA Controller, adding the Audit Firm
and California Insurance Commissioner as cross-defendants. In October 2015, certain of the Life Companies filed a complaint
in state court in Illinois seeking a declaration that the Treasurer of the State of Illinois (“the IL Treasurer”) lacks the authority to
compel those Life Companies to produce all in-force policy records to the Audit Firm, which is also a named defendant. See
Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on the legal proceedings with the CA
Controller and IL Treasurer.

A market conduct examination of the Life Companies was initiated in 2012 by the Illinois Department of Insurance (the
“IDOTI”), focusing on the Life Companies’ claim settlement and policy administration practices, and specifically compliance
with unclaimed property statutes. Five additional states joined the examination in May 2013 (the “Multi-State Exam”) and,
shortly thereafter, the Life Companies received requests from the IDOI, as the Multi-State Exam’s managing lead state, for a
significant volume of information beyond that which the Life Companies had already produced, including all of the subject Life
Companies’ records of in-force policies and other information of the type requested by the Audit Firm as part of the Treasurers’
Audit. This request prompted the Life Companies to file declaratory judgment actions against the insurance regulators of four
states (Illinois, California, Pennsylvania and Florida) participating in the Multi-State Exam; these actions include the cross-
complaint against the CA Controller described above. In December 2015, the Life Companies voluntarily dismissed the
litigation against the IDOI after that department agreed to withdraw the request for records of all in-force policies and advised
the Life Companies of the IDOI’s intent to proceed with a single-state market conduct exam without use of a DMF. At least one
or more of the states remaining in the Multi-State Exam are expected to continue with the exam, including the attempted use of
a DMF. See Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on the litigation connected
to the Multi-State Exam.

Should these various efforts by state officials succeed in retroactively imposing new claims handling and escheatment
requirements with regard to previously issued life insurance policies, such requirements could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s profitability, financial position and cash flows. The Company’s stance in opposition to the aforementioned
actions by state legislators, Treasurers and insurance regulators, including the Life Companies’ initiation of the litigation
described above and in Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, also creates a risk of reputational
damage to the Company among various constituencies (including its principal insurance regulators, rating agencies, investors,
insurance agents, and current and prospective policyholders), particularly if the Company’s position is not ultimately
vindicated. Regardless of the outcome, the Company will incur significant attorneys’ fees, direct litigation and examination
costs, and substantial amounts of management time that would otherwise be spent on running the Company’s operations.

See Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the sections of the MD&A entitled “Life & Health
Insurance” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for additional information on the legal proceedings, including lawsuits,
regulatory examinations and inquiries, and other matters described above.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and the evolving legal and regulatory landscape in
which they operate could result in increased operating costs, reduced profitability and limited growth.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries operate under an extensive insurance regulatory system. Current laws and regulations
encompass a wide variety of matters, including policy forms, premium rates, licensing, market conduct, trade practices, claims
practices, reserve and loss ratio requirements, investment standards, statutory capital and surplus requirements, restrictions on
the payment of dividends, approvals of transactions involving a change in control of one or more insurance companies,
restrictions on transactions among affiliates and consumer privacy. They also require the filing of annual and quarterly financial
reports and holding company reports. Pre-approval requirements often restrict the companies from implementing premium rate
changes for property, casualty and health insurance policies, introducing new, or making changes to existing, policy forms and
many other actions. Insurance regulators conduct periodic examinations of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries and can suspend or
delay their operations or licenses, require corrective actions, and impose penalties or other remedies available for compliance
failures. For a more detailed discussion of the regulations applicable to Kemper’s subsidiaries and these new developments, see
“Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 10.

These laws and regulations, and their interpretation by the various regulators and courts, are undergoing continual revision and
expansion. The legal and regulatory landscape within which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries conduct their businesses is often
unpredictable. As industry practices and regulatory, judicial, political, social and other conditions change, issues may emerge,
whether intended or not. These emerging practices, conditions and issues could adversely affect Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in a variety of ways, including, for example, by expansion of coverages beyond the underwriting intent, increasing
the number or size of claims, accelerating the payment of claims or adding to operational costs. Industry practices that were
once considered approved, compliant and reasonable may suddenly be deemed unacceptable by virtue of a court or regulatory
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ruling or changes in regulatory enforcement policies and practices. One example is the changing application of state unclaimed
property laws and related claims handling practices discussed in the preceding risk factor. It is not possible for the Company to
predict such shifts in legal or regulatory enforcement or to accurately estimate the impact they may have on the Company and
its operations.

The financial services industry, including insurance companies and their holding company systems, remains under regulatory
scrutiny. While it is not possible to predict how new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws and regulations
may impact the operations of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, several developments have the potential to significantly impact
such operations. This includes state adoption of extensive modifications to state holding company laws that substantially
expand the oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators beyond licensed insurance companies to their non-
insurance affiliates and their organizations as a whole, particularly with respect to enterprise risk. In addition, the federal Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively the “Health
Care Acts”) have resulted in regulations affecting health insurers such as Reserve National, and potential changes to the state
insurance regulatory system may result from the Dodd-Frank Act. See the discussion of the NAIC model act and the Dodd-
Frank Act under “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 10.

These new developments and significant changes in, or new interpretations of, existing laws and regulations could make it more
expensive for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to conduct and grow their businesses.

Legal and regulatory proceedings are unpredictable and could produce one or more unexpected verdicts against the
Company that could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial results for any given period.

Kemper and its subsidiaries are from time to time involved in lawsuits, regulatory inquiries and other legal proceedings arising
out of the ordinary course of their businesses. Some of these proceedings may involve matters particular to Kemper or one or
more of its subsidiaries, while others may pertain to business practices in the industry in which Kemper and its subsidiaries
operate. Some lawsuits may seek class action status that, if granted, could expose the Company to potentially significant
liability by virtue of the size of the putative classes. These matters often raise difficult factual and legal issues and are subject to
uncertainties and complexities. The outcomes of these matters are difficult to predict, and the amounts or ranges of potential
loss at particular stages in the proceedings are in most cases difficult or impossible to ascertain. A further complication is that
even where the possibility of an adverse outcome is deemed to be remote using traditional legal analysis, juries sometimes can
and do substitute their subjective views in place of facts and established legal principles. Given the unpredictability of the legal
and regulatory landscape in which the Company operates, there can be no assurance that one or more of these matters will not
produce a result that could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial results for any given period.

For information about the Company’s pending legal proceedings, see Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Catastrophe losses could materially and adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and/or financial
condition.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are subject to claims arising out of catastrophes that may have a
significant effect on their results of operations, liquidity and financial condition. Catastrophes can be caused by various events,
including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, windstorms, earthquakes, hailstorms, explosions, severe winter weather and
wildfires and may include man-made events, such as terrorist attacks and hazardous material spills. The incidence, frequency
and severity of catastrophes are inherently unpredictable and may be impacted by the uncertain effects of climate change. The
extent of the Company’s losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposure in the geographic
area affected by the event and the severity of the event. The Company could experience more than one severe catastrophic
event in any given period.

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries are particularly exposed to risks of catastrophic mortality, such as pandemic or
other events that result in large numbers of deaths. In addition, the occurrence of such an event in a concentrated geographic
area could have a severe disruptive effect on the Company’s workforce and business operations. The likelihood and severity of
such events cannot be predicted and are difficult to estimate.

The property and casualty insurance subsidiaries use catastrophe modeling tools developed by third parties to project their
potential exposure to property damage resulting from catastrophic events under various scenarios. Such models are based on
various assumptions and judgments which may turn out to be wrong. The actual impact of one or more catastrophic events
could adversely and materially differ from these projections.
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The availability and cost of catastrophe reinsurance and the ability of reinsurers to meet their obligations could result in
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries retaining more risk and could adversely and materially affect the Company’s results of
operations, financial condition and/or liquidity.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries seek to reduce their exposure to catastrophe losses through the purchase
of catastrophe reinsurance. Catastrophe reinsurance does not relieve such subsidiaries of their direct liability to their
policyholders. As long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for such subsidiaries is limited to the amount of
risk that they retain. While such subsidiaries’ principal reinsurers are each rated “A-" or better by A.M. Best at the time
reinsurance is purchased, the Company cannot be certain that reinsurers will pay the amounts due from them either now, in the
future, or on a timely basis. A reinsurer’s insolvency or inability to make payments under the terms of its reinsurance agreement
could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

In addition, market conditions beyond the Company’s control determine the availability of the reinsurance protection that
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries may purchase. A decrease in the amount of reinsurance protection that
such subsidiaries purchase generally should increase their risk of a more severe loss. However, if the amount of available
reinsurance is reduced, such subsidiaries may be forced to incur additional expenses for reinsurance or may not be able to
obtain sufficient reinsurance on acceptable terms, which could adversely affect the ability of such subsidiaries to write future
insurance policies or result in their retaining more risk with respect to such policies.

The extent to which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries can manage their catastrophe exposure through underwriting
strategies may be limited by law or regulatory action and could adversely and materially affect the Company’s results of
operations, financial condition and/or liquidity.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries also manage their exposure to catastrophe losses through underwriting
strategies such as reducing exposures in, or withdrawing from, catastrophe-prone areas, establishing appropriate guidelines for
insurable structures, and setting appropriate rates, deductibles, exclusions and policy limits. The extent to which such
subsidiaries can manage their exposure through such strategies may be limited by law or regulatory action. For example, laws
and regulations may limit the rate or timing at which insurers may non-renew insurance policies in catastrophe-prone areas or
require insurers to participate in wind pools and joint underwriting associations. Generally, an insurer’s participation in such
pools and associations are based on the insurer’s market share determined on a state-wide basis. Accordingly, even though
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries may not incur a direct insured loss as a result of managing direct
catastrophe exposures, they may incur indirect losses from required participation in pools and associations. Laws and
regulations requiring prior approval of policy forms and premium rates may limit the ability of Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries to increase rates or deductibles on a timely basis, which may result in additional losses or lower returns
than otherwise would have occurred in an unregulated market. See the risk factor above under the title “Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation, and the evolving legal and regulatory landscape in which they operate could
result in increased operating costs, reduced profitability and limited growth.”

A significant downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries could materially and adversely affect the
Company.

Third-party rating agencies assess the financial strength and rate the claims-paying ability of insurance companies based on
criteria established by the rating agencies. Third-party ratings are important competitive factors in the insurance industry.
Financial strength ratings are used to assess the financial strength and quality of insurers. Ratings agencies may downgrade the
ratings of Kemper and/or its insurance subsidiaries or require Kemper to retain more capital in its insurance businesses to
maintain existing ratings following developments that they deem negative. This can include factors directly related to the
Company, such as an increase in the catastrophic risk retained by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, or developments in industry
or general economic conditions. A significant downgrade by A.M. Best in the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries,
particularly those operating in the preferred and standard market or offering homeowners insurance, could result in a substantial
loss of business if independent agents and brokers or policyholders of such subsidiaries move to other companies with higher
claims-paying and financial strength ratings. Any substantial loss of business could materially and adversely affect the financial
condition and results of operations of such subsidiaries. A downgrade in Kemper’s credit rating by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”),
Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s”) or Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) may reduce Kemper’s ability to access the capital markets
or may increase the cost to refinance existing debt.
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The insurance industry is highly competitive, making it difficult to grow profitability and within expectations of investors.

The Company’s insurance businesses face significant competition, and their ability to compete is affected by a variety of issues
relative to others in the industry, such as product pricing, service quality, financial strength and name recognition. Competitive
success is based on many factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

»  Competitiveness of prices charged for insurance policies;

*  Sophistication of pricing segmentation;

*  Design and introduction of insurance products to meet emerging consumer trends;

»  Selection of agents and other business partners;

+  Compensation paid to agents;

*  Underwriting discipline;

e Selectiveness of sales markets;

+  Effectiveness of marketing materials and name recognition;

+  Product and technological innovation;

+  Ability to settle claims timely and efficiently;

+  Ability to detect and prevent fraudulent insurance claims;

»  Effectiveness deployment and use of information technology across all aspects of operations;
*  Ability to control operating expenses;

*  Financial strength ratings; and

*  Quality of services provided to, and ease of doing business with, independent agents and brokers or policyholders.

The inability to compete effectively in any of the Company’s insurance businesses could materially reduce the Company’s
customer base and revenues and could materially and adversely affect the future results and financial condition of the Company.

See “Competition” in Item 1 of Part I beginning on page 7 and page 10, for more information on the competitive rankings in the
property and casualty insurance markets and the life and health insurance markets, respectively, in the United States.

Failure to maintain the security of personal data may result in lost business, reputational harm, and legal costs and
regulatory penalties.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries obtain and store vast amounts of personal data that can present significant risks to the
Company and its customers and employees. An increasing array of laws and regulations govern the use and storage of such
data, including, for example, social security numbers, credit card data and personal health information. Despite the
implementation of various security measures, the Company’s data systems, or those of its third party administrators working on
behalf of the Company, may be vulnerable to security breaches due to the increasing sophistication of cyber-attacks, viruses,
malware, hackers and other external hazards, as well as equipment and system failures and inadvertent errors, negligence or
intentional misconduct of employees and/or contractors. The Company also relies on the ability of its business partners to
maintain secure systems and processes that comply with legal requirements and protect personal data. These increased risks and
expanding regulatory requirements related to personal data security expose the Company to potential data loss and resulting
damages, reputational risk and significant increases in compliance and litigation costs. Although Kemper maintains cyber risk
insurance, there is no guarantee that it will be sufficient to cover all of the costs associated with a data breach.

In the event of non-compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, an information security framework for
organizations that handle cardholder information for the major debit, credit, prepaid, e-purse, ATM and point-of-sale cards, such
organizations could prevent Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries from collecting premium payments from customers by way of
such cards and impose significant fines on Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries.

Failure to maintain the availability of critical systems may result in lost business, reputational harm, and legal costs and
regulatory penalties.

The Company’s business operations rely on the continuous availability of its computer systems, including computer systems
used by third party administrators working on behalf of the Company. In addition to disruptions caused by cyber-attacks or
other data breaches, such systems may be adversely affected by natural and man-made catastrophes. The Company’s or its third
party administrators’ failure to maintain business continuity in the wake of such events may prevent the timely completion of
critical processes across its operations, including, for example, insurance policy administration, claims processing, billing,
treasury and investment operations and payroll. These failures could result in significant loss of business, fines and litigation.
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The Company'’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net investment income and
cause realized and unrealized losses.

The Company maintains a diversified investment portfolio that is exposed to significant financial and capital market risks,
including interest rate (risk-free and spread), equity price, and liquidity, as well as risks from changes in tax laws and
regulations and other risks from changes in general economic conditions.

The interest rate environment has a significant impact on the Company’s financial results and position. In recent years, rates
have been at or near historic lows. A protracted low interest rate environment would continue to place pressure on net
investment income, particularly related to fixed income securities, short-term investments and limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships accounted for under the equity method of accounting (“Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments”) that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt of other companies. A decline in interest rates would generally
increase the carrying value of the Company’s fixed income securities and its Equity Method Limited Liability Investments that
exhibit debt-like characteristics, but it may adversely affect the Company’s investment income as it invests cash in new
investments that may yield less than the portfolio’s average rate. In a declining interest rate environment, borrowers may seek
to refinance their borrowings at lower rates and, accordingly, prepay or redeem securities the Company holds as investments
more quickly than the Company initially expected. Such prepayment or redemption action may cause the Company to reinvest
the redeemed proceeds in lower yielding investments. An increase in interest rates would generally reduce the carrying value
of a substantial portion of the Company’s investment portfolio, particularly fixed income securities and Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments.

The Company invests a portion of its investment portfolio in equity securities, which generally have more volatile returns than
fixed income securities and may experience sustained periods of depressed values. There are multiple factors that could
negatively impact the performance of the Company’s equity portfolio, including general economic conditions, industry or
sector deterioration and issuer-specific concerns. A decline in equity values may result in a decrease in dividend income,
realized losses upon sales of the securities, or other-than-temporary impairment charges on securities still held.

Interest rates and equity returns also have a significant impact on the Company’s pension and other postretirement employee
benefit plans. In addition to the impact on carrying values and yields of the underlying assets of the funded plans, interest rates
also impact the discounting of the projected and accumulated benefit obligations of the plans. A decrease in interest rates may
have a negative impact on the funded status of the plans.

The nature and cash flow needs of the Company and the insurance industry in general present certain liquidity risks that may
impact the return of the investment portfolio. If the Company were to experience several significant catastrophic events over a
relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in advance of their maturity dates to fund payments to
claimants, which could result in realized losses. Additionally, increases in illiquidity in the financial markets may increase
uncertainty in the valuations of the Company’s investments. This increases the risk that the fair values reported in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements may differ from the actual price that may be obtained in an orderly sales
transaction.

The Company has also benefited from certain tax laws related to its investment portfolio, including dividends received
deductions and tax-exempt municipal securities. Changes in tax laws may have a detrimental effect on the after-tax return of
the Company’s investment portfolio.

The Company’s entire investment portfolio is subject to broad risks inherent in the financial markets, including, but not limited
to, inflation, regulatory changes, inactive capital markets, governmental and social stability, economic outlooks,
unemployment and recession. Changes to these risks and how the market perceives them may impact the financial
performance of the Company’s investments.

Kemper and its insurance subsidiaries are subject to various capital adequacy measurements that are significantly impacted by
various characteristics of their invested assets, including, but not limited to, asset type, class, duration and credit rating. The
Company’s insurance subsidiaries are also subject to various limitations on the amounts at which they can invest in individual
assets or certain asset classes in the aggregate. Asset risk is one factor used by insurance regulators and rating agencies to
determine required capital for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries. Accordingly, a deterioration in the quality of the investments
held by Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries or an increase in the investment risk inherent in their investment portfolios could
increase capital requirements. See the risk factor below under the title “Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its
subsidiaries to service its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders and/or make repurchases of its stock.” These factors may
inhibit the Company from shifting its investment mix to produce higher returns. The Company is also subject to concentration
of investment risk to the extent that the portfolio is heavily invested, at any particular time, in specific asset types, classes,
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industries, sectors or collateral types, among other defining features. Developments and the market’s perception thereof in any
of these concentrations may exacerbate the negative effects on the Company’s investment portfolio compared to other
companies.

The determination of the fair values of the Company’s investments and whether a decline in the fair value of an investment
is other-than-temporary are based on management’s judgment and may prove to be incorrect.

The Company holds a significant amount of assets without readily available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair
value cannot be measured from actively quoted prices. These assets are generally deemed to require a higher degree of
judgment used in measuring fair value. The assumptions used by management to measure fair values could turn out to be wrong
and the actual amounts that may be realized in an orderly transaction with a willing market participant could be either lower or
higher than the Company’s estimates of fair value.

The Company reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment is
other-than-temporary. This evaluation is based on subjective factors, assumptions and estimates and may prove to be materially
incorrect, which may result in the Company recognizing additional losses in the future as new information emerges or
recognizing losses currently that may never materialize in the future in an orderly transaction with a willing market participant.

Estimating losses and LAE for determining property and casualty insurance reserves, or determining premium rates, is
inherently uncertain, and the Company’s results of operations may be materially impacted if the Company’s insurance
reserves or premium rates are insufficient.

The Company establishes loss and LAE reserves to cover estimated liabilities, which remain unpaid as of the end of each
accounting period, and to investigate and settle all claims incurred under the property and casualty insurance policies that it has
issued. Loss and LAE reserves are established for claims that have been reported to the Company as of the end of the
accounting period, as well as for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to the Company. The estimates of
loss and LAE reserves are based on the Company’s assessment of the facts and circumstances known to it at the time, as well as
estimates of the impact of future trends in the severity of claims, the frequency of claims and other factors. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 57 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

The process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves is complex and imprecise. The reserves established by the
Company are inherently uncertain estimates and could prove to be inadequate to cover its ultimate losses and expenses for
insured events that have occurred. The estimate of the ultimate cost of claims for insured events that have occurred must take
into consideration many factors that are dependent on the outcome of future events associated with the reporting, investigation
and settlement of claims. The impacts on the Company’s estimates of property and casualty insurance reserves from these
factors are difficult to assess accurately. A change in any one or more of the factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate loss
that is different than the previous projected ultimate loss and may have a material impact on the Company’s estimate of the
projected ultimate loss. Increases in the estimates of ultimate losses and LAE will decrease earnings, while decreases in such
estimates will increase earnings, as reported by the Company in the results of its operations for the periods in which the changes
to the estimates are made by the Company.

The Company’s actuaries also consider trends in the severity and frequency of claims and other factors when determining the
premium rates to charge for its property and casualty insurance products. An unanticipated change in any one or more of these
factors or trends, as well as a change in competitive conditions, may also result in inadequate premium rates charged for
insurance policies issued by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries in the future. Such pricing inadequacies
could have a material impact on the Company’s operating results.

Kemper relies on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service its debt, to pay dividends to its shareholders and/or
make repurchases of its stock.

As a holding company, Kemper depends on the dividend income that it receives from its subsidiaries as the primary source of
funds to pay interest and principal on its outstanding debt obligations, to pay dividends to its shareholders and to make
repurchases of its stock. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory restrictions under state insurance
laws and regulations that limit their ability to declare and pay dividends. These laws and regulations impose minimum solvency
and liquidity requirements on dividends between affiliated companies and require prior notice to, and may require approval
from, state insurance regulators before dividends can be paid. In addition, third-party rating agencies monitor statutory capital
and surplus levels for capital adequacy. Even though a dividend may be payable without regulatory approval, an insurance
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subsidiary may forgo paying a dividend to Kemper and retain the capital in its insurance subsidiaries to maintain or improve the
ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, or to offset increases in required capital from increases in premium volume or
investment risk. The inability of one or more of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to pay sufficient dividends to Kemper may
materially affect Kemper’s ability to pay its debt obligations on time, to pay dividends to its shareholders or make repurchases
of'its stock.

Technology initiatives, particularly multi-year initiatives in the Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment, to
address business developments and regulatory requirements present significant economic and competitive challenges to the
Company. Failure to complete and implement such initiatives in a timely manner could result in incurring internal use
software development costs that may not be recoverable and the inability to meet emerging consumer and competitive needs
which may result in the loss of business.

Data and analytics play an increasingly important role in the insurance industry. While technology developments can facilitate
the use of data and analytics, streamline business processes and ultimately reduce the cost of operations, technology initiatives
can present significant economic and organizational challenges to the Company and potential short-term cost and
implementation risks. In addition, projections of expenses and implementation schedules may be inaccurate and can escalate
over time, while the ultimate utility of a technology initiative could deteriorate over time. In 2015, the Company’s Property &
Casualty Insurance segment abandoned a multi-year computer software development project intended to replace its aging
billing systems and recorded a charge of $11.1 million before taxes to write off the costs to develop such software. In 2014, the
Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment determined that that it was no longer probable that another multi-year
computer software development project intended to replace its aging policy administration systems would be fully implemented
and recorded a charge of $54.6 million before taxes to write off the costs to develop such software. The Company continues to
believe that it is necessary to replace these systems to remain competitive. In addition, due to the highly-regulated nature of the
financial services industry, the Company faces rising costs and competing time constraints in adapting technology to meet
compliance requirements of new and proposed regulations. Accordingly, it is in the process of undertaking new multi-year
projects to replace these systems.

The costs to develop and implement the replacement systems are expected to be material. Due to the complexities involved and
the results of the Company’s past attempts to replace these systems, there can be no assurances that the new multi-year projects
will be successful and that the costs incurred to develop and implement the replacement systems will be recoverable.
Furthermore, failure to implement the replacement systems in a timely manner could result in loss of business from the
Company’s inability to design and introduce new insurance products to meet emerging consumer and competitive trends.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.
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Item 2. Properties.
Owned Properties

Kemper’s subsidiaries together own and occupy seven buildings located in six states consisting of approximately 25,000 square
feet in the aggregate. Kemper’s subsidiaries own four buildings totaling approximately 15,000 square feet which were vacant at
December 31, 2015. Kemper’s subsidiaries hold additional properties that are not occupied by Kemper or its subsidiaries solely
for investment purposes.

Leased Facilities

The Company leases five floors, or approximately 67,000 square feet, in a 41-story office building in Chicago for its corporate
headquarters and Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s headquarters. The lease expires in September 2023. Kemper’s
Property & Casualty Insurance segment leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 474,000 at 15
locations in nine states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in September 2023. Kemper’s Life & Health
Insurance segment leases facilities with aggregate square footage of approximately 476,000 at 124 locations in 27 states. The
latest expiration date of the existing leases is in January 2025. Kemper’s corporate data processing operation leases facilities
with aggregate square footage of approximately 36,000 square feet at two locations in two states. The latest expiration date of
the existing leases is in December 2018.

The properties described above are in good condition. The properties utilized in the Company’s operations consist of facilities
suitable for general office space, call centers and data processing operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Proceedings

Information concerning pending legal proceedings is incorporated herein by reference to Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART 1I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

Kemper’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol of “KMPR.” Quarterly
information pertaining to market prices of Kemper common stock in 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Common Stock Market Prices:
Highoooeeee e $ 40.13 $ 40.12 $ 40.28 $ 41.65 $ 41.65
LOW ettt 34.31 35.06 34.08 34.43 34.08
ClOSC...uieuiieeieeiiett ettt ettt eanenes 38.96 38.55 35.37 37.25 37.25
Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
Common Stock Market Prices:
Highuoeooceee $ 4099 $ 40.51 $ 37.57 $ 37.63 $ 40.99
LOW oot 35.63 33.64 31.82 32.66 31.82
CLOSC ettt 39.17 36.86 34.15 36.11 36.11
Holders

As of January 22, 2016, the number of record holders of Kemper’s common stock was 3,961.
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Dividends

Quarterly information pertaining to payment of dividends on Kemper’s common stock is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)...... $ 024 $ 024 § 024 $ 024 $ 0.96

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)...... $ 024 $ 024 § 024 § 024 § 0.96

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state insurance laws that may restrict the ability of these insurance
subsidiaries to pay dividends without prior regulatory approval. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 9,
“Shareholders’ Equity,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on Kemper’s ability and intent to pay
dividends.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Information pertaining to purchases of Kemper common stock for the three months ended December 31, 2015 follows.

Total Maximum

Number of Shares  Dollar Value of Shares

Average Purchased as Part that May Yet Be
Total Price of Publicly Purchased Under
Number of Shares Paid per Announced Plans the Plans or Programs
Period Purchased (1) Share or Programs (1) (Dollars in Millions)
October 1 - October 31.....coovvvveieeieeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeee 63,998 $ 35.07 63,998 $ 247.5
November 1 - November 30...........ccocoeveviiveverinnnenn — N/A — 3 247.5
December 1 - December 31.......ccccocoevevvvevereernnnnne. — N/A — 3 247.5

(1) On August 6, 2014, Kemper’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million of Kemper’s common
stock. The repurchase program has no expiration date. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
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Kemper Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2010 in (i) Kemper common stock, (ii) the S&P MidCap 400

Index and (iii) the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index, in each case with dividends reinvested. Kemper is a constituent of
each of these two indices.

The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future
performance of Kemper common stock.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return

$200 1

$150

$100

$50 +
$0 T T T T |
12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13 12/31/14 12/31/15
=@— Kemper Corporation = =A== S&P MidCap 400 Index
=—@— S&P Composite 1500 Insurance
Company / Index 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Kemper Corporation ..............ccceveeveveeererverenreesreeenenns $ 100.00 $ 123.17 §$ 12849 § 183.10 $ 166.06 $ 175.77
S&P MidCap 400 IndexX.......ccccoeverereneneneneneneenns 100.00 98.27 115.83 154.64 169.74 166.05
S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index ...........cccueeee. 100.00 93.09 110.89 161.61 175.70 182.09
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR
Earned Premiums .......ooooevviiiieeiecceee e

Net Investment [NnCOmMe .........cocceeviiiniiiiiiiiiiieeceee
Other INCOME........oiuiiiieieciieiiee et
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments........................
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings .................
Total REVENUES.....ccueeiieeieiieiieieeieee et

Income from Continuing Operations..............cceecverveevenennne.

Income from Discontinued Operations ............cceeveeveeenenee.
Net INCOME ....couviiiiiiiiiieicrieeeeeeece et
Per Unrestricted Share:
Income from Continuing Operations..........c..ccceveceeveeennes
Income from Discontinued Operations ............c..eceeveeee.
Net INCOME ..o
Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution:
Income from Continuing Operations.............ceccecvevveneenen.
Income from Discontinued Operations .............ceceeueee.
Net INCOME .....ooviviiiiiiiiiiiiiicce,
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share.............cccoeueeneen.

AT YEAR END
TOtAl ASSELS.....ccoureeeieireeeeeireeeeereeeeereeeeetreeeeetreeeeetreeeeerreeeeeanes

Shareholders’ EQUIty ......ccccovierieriiienieieeceece e
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity.........ccccccevueneeee.

Book Value Per Share..........cocovviieveieeeiieieeeeeeeeee e

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

$ 2,0096 $§ 18622 §$§ 2,0258 $ 2,107.1 § 2,173.6
302.6 309.1 314.7 295.9 298.0

3.7 1.4 0.8 0.8 1.0

52.1 39.1 99.1 65.4 33.7
(27.2) (15.2) (13.9) (6.9) (11.3)

$ 23408 $ 2,196.6 $§ 24265 $ 24623 § 2,495.0
$ 8.2 § 1126 $ 2145 § 91.8 $ 61.7
5.5 1.9 32 11.6 12.8

$ 857 § 1145 § 2177 § 1034 § 74.5
$ 155 § 208 $ 375 % 1.55 % 1.02
0.10 0.04 0.06 0.20 0.21

$ 1.65 § 212§ 381 $ 1.75 $ 1.23
$ 155 § 208 § 374 § 1.54 % 1.02
0.10 0.04 0.06 0.20 0.21

$ 1.65 2.12 3.80 1.74 1.23
$ 0.96 0.96 0.96 0.96 0.96

613.1 536.9 598.9 650.9 666.2
750.6 752.1 606.9 611.4 610.6
476.2 446.1 338.1 452.9 409.5
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Index to
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

Net Income was $85.7 million ($1.65 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to
$114.5 million ($2.12 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2014. Income from Continuing
Operations was $80.2 million ($1.55 per unrestricted common share) in 2015, compared to $112.6 million ($2.08 per
unrestricted common share) in 2014.

A reconciliation of Segment Net Operating Income to Consolidated Net Operating Income (a non-GAAP financial measure)
and to Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is presented below.

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
from 2014 from 2013
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 to 2015 2013 to 2014
Segment Net Operating Income:
Property & Casualty Insurance............c.cceeveveeeeevennannns $ 26.7 $ 249 % 1.8 $ 1006 $ (75.7)
Life & Health Insurance ...........cccceeevevveniieienieieeieeenenne. 71.7 91.8 (20.1) 89.3 2.5
Total Segment Net Operating Income............cceecveerveeennne 98.4 116.7 (18.3) 189.9 (73.2)
Unallocated Net Operating LosS ......ccccoceveverererineneneenen. (28.5) (19.6) (8.9) (30.7) 11.1
Consolidated Net Operating Income............cccecveveerveennnne 69.9 97.1 (27.2) 159.2 (62.1)
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments................... 339 25.4 8.5 64.4 (39.0)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............. 17.7) 9.9 (7.8) ©.1) (0.8)
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt........................ 5.9 — (5.9 — —
Income from Continuing Operations.............ceceeeeveveeennene 80.2 112.6 (32.4) 214.5 (101.9)
Income from Discontinued Operations ............cecueveveeennens 5.5 1.9 3.6 32 (1.3)
NEt INCOME ...t $ 8.7 $§ 1145 $ (288 $ 217.7 $ (103.2)

The Company’s net income decreased $28.8 million in 2015, compared to 2014. In the Property & Casualty Insurance segment,
segment net operating income increased $1.8 million due primarily to a lower amount of write-offs of internal use software,
lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums and lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
reserve development), partially offset by higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and a lower
level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development. See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” beginning on page 31 for
additional discussion of the segment’s results. See MD&A, “Write-offs of Long-lived Assets,” beginning on page 51 for
additional information related to the internal use software write-offs. In the Life & Health Insurance segment, segment net
operating income decreased $20.1 million due primarily to a $13.9 million after-tax dividend in 2014 from an investment that
had sold substantially all of its operations, an after-tax adjustment to earned premiums of $4.9 million recorded in the first
quarter of 2015 to correct deferred premium reserves on certain limited pay life insurance policies, and higher policyholders’
benefits on life insurance. See MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,” beginning on page 41 for additional discussion of the
segment’s results. The Company’s results were also significantly and negatively impacted in 2015, compared to 2014, by higher
net impairment losses recognized in earnings and a loss from early extinguishment of debt in 2015, partially offset by higher net
realized gains on sales of investments. See MD&A, “Investment Results,” beginning on page 44 and MD&A, “Liquidity and
Capital Resources,” beginning on page 52 for additional discussion.

Revenues

Earned Premiums were $2,009.6 million in 2015, compared to $1,862.2 million in 2014, an increase of $147.4 million. Earned
Premiums increased by $165.7 million in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment and decreased by $18.3 million in the
Life & Health Insurance segment. See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” beginning on page 31 and MD&A, “Life &
Health Insurance,” beginning on page 41 for discussion the changes in each segment’s earned premiums.

Net Investment Income decreased by $6.5 million in 2015 due primarily to $27.5 million in lower net investment income from
Dividends on Equity Securities, partially offset by $10.0 million of higher investment income on Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments and $8.8 million of higher Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities. See MD&A, “Investment Results,”
under the sub-caption “Net Investment Income” beginning on page 44 for additional discussion.

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments were $52.1 million in 2015, compared to $39.1 million in 2014. See MD&A,
“Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments” beginning on page 45 for additional
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMARY OF RESULTS (Continued)

discussion. Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $27.2
million and $15.2 million, respectively. See MD&A, “Investment Results,” under the sub-caption “Net Impairment Losses
Recognized in Earnings” beginning on page 46 for additional discussion. The Company cannot predict when or if similar
investment gains or losses may occur in the future.

CATASTROPHES

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more
likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty
insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
that follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The number of catastrophic events and catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by range of
loss and business segment for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 are presented below.

Year Ended
Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and Number of Losses and

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:

Below $5 ... 37§ 43.6 27§ 31.1 27§ 443

85 =810 i 3 24.7 3 20.4 1 6.4

S10 - 815 e — — 1 13.1 —

SI5-820 i — — — — —

820 - 825 — — — — —

Greater Than $25 .........cccoooveiviiviiiiiiiee, — — 1 33.9 —

TOtal.eeieieieeeeeee e 40 S 68.3 32 % 98.5 28 $ 50.7
Property & Casualty Insurance ....................... $ 64.5 $ 96.5 $ 47.1
Life & Health Insurance.............cccoevvrvrrvenenne. 3.8 2.0 3.6
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE................ $ 68.3 $ 98.5 $ 50.7

2015 Compared with 2014

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE decreased for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to
2014, due primarily to two significant catastrophe events in 2014 (one event with losses and LAE of $33.9 million and another
event with losses and LAE of $13.1 million), compared to no such events exceeding $10 million in 2015, partially offset by
higher frequency of events below $5 million of losses in 2015, compared to 2014. The event in the preceding table with $33.9
million in catastrophe losses and LAE in 2014 was incurred in multiple states, particularly Montana. The event in the preceding
table with $13.1 million in catastrophe losses and LAE in 2014 was primarily related to hail in Texas.

2014 Compared with 2013

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE increased for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
2013, due primarily to one catastrophe event that exceeded $25 million of losses and LAE and four other catastrophe events
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CATASTROPHES (Continued)

that each exceeded $5 million of losses and LAE in 2014, compared to only one such event exceeding $5 million in 2013,
partially offset by lower severity of losses below $5 million per event in 2014, compared to 2013.

Catastrophe Reinsurance

The Company primarily manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, management of the amount and location of risks insured in certain regions and a primary catastrophe
reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Coverage for this segment’s primary catastrophe
reinsurance program is provided in various layers (see Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion of this program). In addition to this program, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment had
a reinsurance treaty covering the three-year period that ended June 1, 2013 for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions
lower than its primary catastrophe reinsurance program (“the NC Program”). The Property & Casualty Insurance segment also
purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than its primary catastrophe
reinsurance program. The Life & Health Insurance segment also purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in
Florida. Except for the coverage provided by the FHCEF, the Life & Health Insurance segment has not carried any other
catastrophe reinsurance since 2012, primarily due to actions taken by KHSC to reduce its exposures to catastrophes.

See the “Reinsurance” subsections of the “Property and Casualty Insurance Business” and “Life and Health Insurance
Business” sections of Item 1(c), “Description of Business,” and Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on the Company’s reinsurance programs.

LOSS AND LAE RESERVE DEVELOPMENT

Increases (decreases) in the Company’s property and casualty loss and LAE reserves for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 to recognize adverse (favorable) loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years in continuing
operations, hereinafter also referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Property & Casualty Insurance:

NON-CALASITOPRE .....evivieviitieiieiieiieiieit ettt ettt ettt et et ess e b e b essessessessessessessessessessessenes $ 5.0)0 § (38.6) $§ (459

Catastrophe . 7.9) (15.8) (12.5)

TOLAL. ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et at b e st eabesbesb e st e b eab e b easesb et e s b e b e s enbesbensenbenras (12.9) (54.4) (58.0)
Life & Health Insurance:

INON-CALASTIOPRE ...ttt ettt e e teesbe e b e sss e baesseeesasseas 1.3 (0.2) 0.2

Catastrophe 0.1 1.1 (2.0)

1.4 0.9 (1.8)

Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years:

INON-CALASTIOPRE ......icviiieiiiecie ettt b et be e te e beesseeaseaeas 3.7 (38.8) (45.3)

CAASITOPIIEC ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e te e e ete e teesbeesseessesbeesseessesseesseessesseenseens (7.8) (14.7) (14.5)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years........ccocevvevveverienienieneennen $ @dA15) $ (535 $ (59.8)

See MD&A, “Property & Casualty Insurance,” MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,” and Note 6, “Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the Company’s reserve
development. See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” of this 2015 Annual Report for additional information pertaining to
the Company’s process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and the estimated variability
thereof, development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE, and a discussion of some of the variables that may
impact them.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, the Company is required to file consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). The Company is permitted to
include non-GAAP financial measures in its filings provided that they are defined along with an explanation of their usefulness
to investors, are no more prominent than the comparable GAAP financial measures and are reconciled to such GAAP financial
measures.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES (Continued)

These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered a substitute for the comparable GAAP financial measures, as
they do not fully recognize the overall profitability of the Company’s businesses.

Underlying Combined Ratio

The following discussions of segment results use the non-GAAP financial measures of (i) Underlying Losses and LAE and

(i1) Underlying Combined Ratio. Underlying Losses and LAE (also referred to in the discussion as “Current Year Non-
catastrophe Losses and LAE”) exclude the impact of catastrophe losses and loss and LAE reserve development from prior years
from the Company’s Incurred Losses and LAE, which is the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure. The
Underlying Combined Ratio is computed by adding the Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio with the
Insurance Expense (including write-offs of long-lived assets) Ratio. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is
the Combined Ratio, which is computed by adding total incurred losses and LAE, including the impact of catastrophe losses
and loss and LAE reserve development from prior years, with the Insurance Expense (including write-offs of long-lived assets)
Ratio. The Company believes Underlying Losses and LAE and the Underlying Combined Ratio are useful to investors and are
used by management to reveal the trends in the Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance business that may be obscured by
catastrophe losses and prior year reserve development. These catastrophe losses may cause the Company’s loss trends to vary
significantly between periods as a result of their incidence of occurrence and magnitude, and can have a significant impact on
incurred losses and LAE and the combined ratio. Prior-year reserve developments are caused by unexpected loss development
on historical reserves. Because reserve development relates to the re-estimation of losses from earlier years, it has no bearing on
the performance of the Company’s insurance products that were in force in the current period. The Company believes it is
useful for investors to evaluate these components separately and in the aggregate when reviewing the Company’s underwriting
performance.

Consolidated Net Operating Income

Consolidated Net Operating Income is an after-tax, non-GAAP financial measure and is computed by excluding from Income
from Continuing Operations the after-tax impact of:

1) Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments;

2) Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings related to investments;

3) Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt; and

4) Significant non-recurring or infrequent items that may not be indicative of ongoing operations.

Significant non-recurring items are excluded when (a) the nature of the charge or gain is such that it is reasonably unlikely to
recur within two years, and (b) there has been no similar charge or gain within the prior two years. The most directly
comparable GAAP financial measure is Income from Continuing Operations. There were no applicable significant non-
recurring items that the Company excluded from the calculation of Consolidated Net Operating Income for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

The Company believes that Consolidated Net Operating Income provides investors with a valuable measure of its ongoing
performance because it reveals underlying operational performance trends that otherwise might be less apparent if the items
were not excluded. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings related to
investments included in the Company’s results may vary significantly between periods and are generally driven by business
decisions and external economic developments such as capital market conditions that impact the values of the Company’s
investments, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt is
driven by the Company’s financing and refinancing decisions and capital needs, as well as external economic developments
such as debt market conditions, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Significant non-
recurring items are excluded because, by their nature, they are not indicative of the Company’s business or economic trends.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE

Selected financial information for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Net Premitms WITHETL .........o.iie oot $1,406.2 $1,189.1 $1,342.2
Barned PremMIUITIS .......oouviuiie oottt $1,415.2 $1,2495 $1,3929
Net Investment INCOME .........c.oocuiiiiiieieeieieie ettt e e sseense e 73.3 72.7 90.9
Other INCOME ....o.viiviiiiieieiiciccece ettt ettt ettt ettt esaess e st esbessessessessessessessansas 0.6 0.5 0.5
TOtAl REVEIIUES......ccuviiiieiiiie ettt ettt e et e ettt e e e st e e e e eaaeeessteseeenaeeesenaeeesanaeeas 1,489.1 1,322.7 1,484.3
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c.cccooiiiiiiinieiieieeeeeeeee et 1,034.6 845.2 980.2
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccoooiiiiiiiieiecieeeeetee e 64.5 96.5 47.1
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ........c.cocooviiiiiiiiiiiiiecieeceeeee e 5.0) (38.6) (45.5)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccoooiiiiiiiiiicieeeeeee et 7.9 (15.8) (12.5)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE .........cc.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee et 1,086.2 887.3 969.3
Insurance Expenses, Excluding Write-offs of Long-lived ASSets..........ccceovevverieeeienenne. 368.1 353.7 375.4
Write-0ffs Of Long-lived ASSELS.......coccuiiiiriiiiieieeiieieeieee ettt sbe s e 11.1 54.6 —
OPErating Profit .......ooviiiiiiiiiicieeece ettt et 23.7 27.1 139.6
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE).......ccuveiiiuiiiiiiiieiieiieieeteeeie ettt 3.0 2.2) (39.0)
Segment Net Operating INCOME............ccvevviiiiiuiiiiciiee ettt $ 267 $ 249 $ 100.6
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cooceveencininncnccnccncene. 73.2% 67.7% 70.4%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........cccocvevveievieieiienienieieieieeieenen 4.6 7.7 34
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccccecvevvevieiievienienieieieieieneen 0.4) 3.1 (3.3)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccecuevieieieieieieieieieieieeieenen 0.6) (1.3) (0.9)
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio........c.cccocveirieieieiieieieieieeeeteeeeeee e 76.8 71.0 69.6
Insurance Expense Ratio, Excluding Write-offs of Long-lived Assets............cccvervenenen. 26.0 28.3 27.0
Impact on Ratio from Write-offs of Long-lived ASSets........ccecvevvevrevievierierieieieieieniennnn 0.8 4.4 —
CombINEd RALIO ......ecuiiiiiiiiieicicieiee ettt ettt se et e s esse s essessessessessensensas 103.6% 103.7% 96.6%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccceevevvevieieieieieieieieennen 73.2% 67.7% 70.4%
Insurance Expense Ratio, Excluding Write-offs of Long-lived Assets............ccccvevenenen. 26.0 28.3 27.0
Impact on Ratio from Write-offs of Long-lived ASSets........cccevveieieieierieieieieieiennen 0.8 4.4 —
Underlying Combined RaAtiO..........ccocieuieieieieiieieiieieieieeee ettt sa s saens 100.0% 100.4% 97.4%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation -
Underlying Combined RAtiO..........cccceeuieiiiiiiieiieiieieieeeeeeeeeeeee et 100.0% 100.4% 97.4%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccccoecvevienieniieiineeeeieceeeee 4.6 7.7 34
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccccevievieniinienieeiiceeieeee, 0.4) 3.1 3.3)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccocvevieviinieiieiecieeeeeeeeeee 0.6) (1.3) 0.9)
Combined Ratio as REPOTted ..........coocueviiiiieiiciiiiieieeieeee e 103.6% 103.7% 96.6%
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CATASTROPHE FREQUENCY AND SEVERITY

Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2014
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:

BeLOW 85 .ot ens 37§ 40.9 27 $ 30.1

85 = BL0 ettt 3 23.6 3 19.8

S10 - 15 ettt — — 1 12.8

SIS =820 i — — — —

820 - 825 e — — — —

Greater Than $25........cooioiiiiceeeeeeeeeeeeee e — — 1 33.8

TOtAL ittt b e e naens 40 $ 64.5 32 3 96.5

INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Insurance Reserves:

AULOMODILE ..ottt bttt e b et s e b s s e st ese bbb s s bt et s b st se s enens $ 6563 $ 5014

HOMEOWIIETS ...ttt ettt ettt a et et st e bttt s e sae et eanenas 98.9 102.4

OBRCT .ttt ettt s et e s e s et e e s et e e s e n et e b e s et et et et e bentenbebebentens 45.3 473
INSUTANCE RESETVES ......viviivieieiietciieet ettt ettt ettt s et se e s et se e s s sbebesese s sessss s s esessssesesens $ 8005 $ 6511
Insurance Reserves:

Loss Reserves:

CBSE...ueeeeeeeeeet ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e et ettt a ettt a sttt a sttt as ettt a et et an e s s eanees $ 5371 $§ 4236
Incurred But NOt REPOTLEd........cciiiiieiieiieieiieieiieieietet ettt ettt et et e b s neas 147.6 135.8

TOtAl 0SS RESEIVES ....ecuveuieiieiieiieiieieiieiteitetetetet ettt ettt et e e e se s e s e s sessensensensensensensensensensensens 684.7 559.4

LAE RESEIVES ....cutiiiieiieitietteie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e e st e e st e b e e s teeaee st ensesaeesseenseentesaeenseensenaes 115.8 91.7
INSUTANCE RESETVES ....eotiiiiiiiieciieit ettt sttt ettt e e et e s bt et e et e saeebeenaesae e teeneeens $ 8005 $ 651.1

See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and
Loss Adjustment Expenses” beginning on page 57 for additional information pertaining to the Company’s process of estimating
property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE
from prior accident years, also referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, estimated variability
of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and a discussion of some of the variables that may impact
development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE and the estimated variability of property and casualty
insurance reserves for losses and LAE.

Acquisition of Alliance United

As discussed in Note 3, “Acquisition of Business,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company completed its
acquisition of Alliance United on April 30, 2015. The results of its operations have been included in the preceding tables of
selected financial information for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment since the date of its acquisition. Alliance United
is a provider of nonstandard personal automobile insurance in California and adds significant scale to the Property & Casualty
Insurance segment’s premium base.
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Selected financial information illustrating the incremental impact of Alliance United on the Property & Casualty Insurance
segment’s premiums, incurred losses and LAE and insurance expenses since the date of acquisition through December 31, 2015
is presented below.

From Date
of
Acqutisition
Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015
Net Premitms WITEEI ... .ccuiiiiiiiiiieieeieie ettt ettt et e te et e et esseesseessesseessesssesseessenssesseessenssesseensennsesseansenns m
Earned PrOmMIUMIS........couiiiiiiiiiieieciesttee ettt ettt e e et e s st e beessesseesseessessaesseasseesaesseessesssasseensessseseensensns $ 2729
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........c.ocoiiiioiiiiiieeeeeeee ettt e e b s e sre b s aesbeenbeesseseeas $ 2533
Pre-acquisition Periods:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiieceeeeeetet ettt e e ve b e saeesbeeaaesees 7.7
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiceeeee ettt ettt ettt e naeeas $ 261.0
INSUTANCE EXPENSES ...ocuviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeti ettt ettt ettt e et e b e et e eaeebeessesssebeessasssesbeesseessesseessesssesseenseessesseenseeens $ 38.6
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........cccccvevieieieieieieieieieieieieese et 92.8%
Pre-acquisition Periods Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio ...........cccoovieiiiiiiieiiciccececeeee e 2.8
Total Incurred Loss and LAE RatI0..........ccociiiriiieieieieieieieteteeeteie ettt ettt nse s nnas 95.6%
INSUrance EXPEnse RALIO ........cccccieiiiiiiieicieieieieteeeet ettt ettt et et et e s e s e s e s ensensenbensensensensensan 141
Combined Ratio 109.7%

Alliance United’s underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums since the acquisition date were significantly
higher than what had been reported by Alliance United prior to the acquisition date. Alliance United has experienced
significantly higher frequency of claims on all coverages and higher severity of losses on most coverages, particularly bodily
injury, than the trend that Kemper had anticipated prior to the acquisition. Alliance United’s premium rates have become
inadequate due in part to the significant adverse changes in underlying frequency and severity trends. The Company continues
to analyze its experience against industry information as it becomes available and believes that Alliance United’s trends may be
worse than industry trends due in part to anti-selection resulting from inadequate rates and higher growth rates for new
business, which tends to run at a higher underlying loss and LAE ratio than renewal business. In addition, Alliance United’s
results since the acquisition date include adverse loss and LAE reserve development of $7.7 million, net of anticipated
indemnification recoveries of $5.9 million, related to periods prior to the acquisition date. Several events have resulted in the
historical development factors becoming less reliable in predicting how losses will ultimately emerge. For example, in fourth
quarter of 2014, Alliance United’s number of claims closed without payment was significantly higher than historical levels.
Subsequent to the acquisition date, the Company’s actuaries have observed a higher level of reopened claims compared to
historical levels. In addition, payment development patterns, as well as claim severity patterns, may have been influenced by an
inadequate level of claims adjusters, as staffing levels for Alliance United’s claims adjusters were not able to keep pace with
Alliance United’s growth rate prior to and after the acquisition date and the recent spike in frequency. See MD&A, “Loss and
LAE Reserve Development,” for additional discussion on how changes in business processes may influence development
patterns. The Company is taking various actions to address Alliance United’s performance, including increasing the staffing
levels for claims adjusters, slowing growth rates for new business, various agency management actions and filing and
implementing rate increases.
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Overall
2015 Compared with 2014

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Segment Net Operating Income of $26.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015, compared to $24.9 million in 2014. Segment Net Operating Income improved by $1.8 million due
primarily to the impact of write-offs of internal use software, lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums and
lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development), partially offset by higher underlying losses and
LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development.

Earned Premiums in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment increased by $165.7 million. Excluding the $272.9 million
impact from Alliance United, earned premiums decreased by $107.2 million, as lower volume accounted for a decrease of
$138.4 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $31.2 million. Excluding Alliance United,
the lower volume was driven primarily by personal automobile insurance and homeowners insurance, which had volume
decreases of $99.9 million and $32.0 million, respectively. Excluding Alliance United, the increase in average earned premium
was driven primarily by personal automobile insurance and homeowners insurance, which had increases of $23.3 million and
$5.9 million, respectively.

Net Investment Income in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment increased by $0.6 million for the year ended

December 31, 2015, compared to the same period in 2014, due primarily to higher investment income from Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments, higher yields on fixed income securities and investment income from the investments acquired
from the acquisition of and, the capital contributed to, Alliance United, partially offset by lower dividends on equity securities
and lower levels of allocated investments resulting from a decline in the level of capital needed to support the legacy business.
The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Net Investment Income from Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments of $11.9 million in 2015, compared to $8.4 million in 2014.

Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 73.2% in 2015, an increase of 5.5 percentage points,
compared to 2014. Alliance United, which runs at a higher underlying losses and LAE ratio but lower insurance expense ratio,
added 4.8 percentage points to the overall underlying losses and LAE ratio. Excluding the impact of Alliance United,
underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 68.4% in 2015, compared to 67.7% in 2014, or an
increase of 0.7 percentage points, as personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and commercial automobile
insurance deteriorated, while other personal insurance improved. Underlying incurred losses and LAE exclude the impact of
catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $64.5
million in 2015, compared to $96.5 million in 2014, which is a decrease of $32.0 million due primarily to two catastrophe
events in 2014 that exceeded $10.0 million of losses and LAE, compared to no such events in 2015, partially offset by an
increase in the number of catastrophe events in 2015 with losses and LAE less than $5 million. Excluding the impact of
Alliance United, favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe reserve development) was $20.6 million
in 2015, compared to $54.4 million in 2014.

Insurance expenses, including write-offs of long-lived assets, were $379.2 million in 2015, compared to $408.3 million in 2014,
which is a decrease of $29.1 million due primarily to the impact of write-offs of internal use software, lower variable costs in
line with a general decline in the size of the Company’s legacy business and cost-cutting measures implemented by the
Company, partially offset by the inclusion of Alliance United. The write-off of internal use software was $11.1 million in 2015,
compared to $54.6 million in 2014. See “Write-offs of Long-lived Assets” of the MD&A for further discussion. Excluding the
software write-offs, insurance expenses were $368.1 million, or 26.0% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $353.7
million, or 28.3% of earned premiums, in 2014. The inclusion of Alliance United accounted for a reduction of 3.0 percentage
points in the segment’s overall insurance expense ratio. Insurance expenses for Alliance United include a write-oft of deferred
policy acquisition costs of $9.0 million due to a premium deficiency and legal expenses of $5.2 million, net of indemnification,
for a certain legal matter. See Note 3, “Acquisition of Business,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Excluding the
impact of the software write-offs and Alliance United, insurance expenses decreased by $24.2 million in 2015, compared to
2014, but increased, as a percentage of earned premiums, from 28.3% in 2014 to 28.8% in 2015. The increase in the ratio was
due primarily to the reduction in legacy earned premiums outpacing the reduction in fixed costs.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to tax-exempt investment income, dividends received deductions and estimated indemnification recoveries recognized
in earnings pursuant to the Alliance United purchase agreement. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received
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deductions were $22.6 million in 2015, compared to $20.9 million in 2014. Indemnification recoveries result in an adjustment
to the tax purchase price and are excluded from the determination of taxable income and income tax expense. Estimated
indemnification recoveries recognized in earnings were $10.4 million in 2015, of which $5.9 million has been reported as a
reduction of Incurred Losses and LAE and $4.5 million has been recorded as a reduction of Insurance Expenses.

2014 Compared with 2013

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported Segment Net Operating Income of $24.9 million in 2014, compared to
$100.6 million in 2013. Segment Net Operating Income decreased by $75.7 million due primarily to the write-off of certain
internal use software during the third quarter of 2014, higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve
development), lower net investment income and higher insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums, partially offset
by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. See MD&A, “Write-offs of Long-lived Assets” for
more information related to the internal use software write-off.

Earned Premiums in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment decreased by $143.4 million, as lower volume accounted for a
decrease of $211.4 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $68.0 million. The lower volume
was driven primarily by personal automobile insurance and homeowners insurance, which had volume decreases of $167.6
million and $39.8 million, respectively. The increase in average earned premium was also driven primarily by personal
automobile insurance and homeowners insurance, which had increases of $39.9 million and $26.0 million, respectively. The
decrease in premium volume was on both new business production and retention levels and was due primarily to the rate and
resegmentation efforts of the Company in the past few years. The Company had undertaken various actions to improve its
retention and new business production, including moderating rate increases in its more recent rate filings due to the
improvement in profitability of the book of business.

Net Investment Income in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment decreased by $18.2 million in 2014, compared to 2013,
due primarily to lower investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, lower yields on fixed maturities
and lower levels of investments resulting from a decline in the scale of the business. The Property & Casualty Insurance
segment reported net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments of $8.4 million in 2014, compared
to $16.5 million in 2013.

Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 67.7% in 2014, a decrease of 2.7 percentage points
compared to 2013, as personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and commercial automobile insurance improved,
while other personal insurance deteriorated. Underlying losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes and loss and LAE
reserve development. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $96.5 million in 2014, compared to
$47.1 million in 2013, which was an increase of $49.4 million due primarily to one catastrophe event that exceeded $25 million
of losses and LAE and four other catastrophe events that each exceeded $5 million of losses and LAE in 2014, compared to no
such events in excess of $5 million in 2013. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe reserve
development) was $54.4 million in 2014, compared to $58.0 million in 2013. Insurance expenses, excluding the write-off of the
long-lived software asset, decreased by $21.7 million in 2014, compared to 2013, but increased as a percentage of earned
premiums from 27.0% in 2013 to 28.3% in 2014, due primarily to lower earned premiums to absorb fixed costs. The Property
& Casualty Insurance segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-
exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received
deductions were $20.9 million in 2014, compared to $27.1 million in 2013.
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Personal Automobile Insurance

Selected financial information for the personal automobile insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Net Premitums WITEEIL . .......c.oouiieee oottt $1,030.5 $ 789.0 $ 9142
Barned PrEmMIUITIS .......couviee oot $1,027.7 $ 8314 $ 959.1

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:

Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE...........c.cccoooiieiieiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 8204 $ 6160 § 7417
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ........cccooioiiiiiinieiieeceeeeetee et 6.7 12.7 7.6
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........cccooiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeee e 1.5 (31.0) (29.9)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cocooiiiiiiiniiiieee e 0.3) (0.6) 0.2)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ...........c.ccocviieieieieeieieeeieeeee ettt s s s s s $ 853 § 5971 § 7192
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ration........cccccevveievieieieieieieieiene, 79.7% 74.1% 77.3%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cccocvveiiiieiieiicieieeieeeeeee 0.7 1.5 0.8
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........c.ccccoeveiieiiiieniieiiceeieeee 0.1 (3.7 3.1
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccooeevieiiiieiieiicieieeeeeeee — 0.1) —
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio........cccecveiririninieieieieieieeteeeeee e 80.3% 71.8% 75.0%

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in personal automobile insurance increased by $196.3 million. Excluding the $272.9 million impact from
Alliance United, earned premiums decreased by $76.6 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $99.9 million, while
higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $23.3 million. The run-off of the direct-to-consumer business
accounted for approximately 24% of the decrease in earned premiums attributed to lower volume.

Incurred losses and LAE were $825.3 million, or 80.3% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $597.1 million, or 71.8% of
earned premiums, in 2014. Excluding the $261.0 million impact from Alliance United, incurred losses and LAE were $564.3
million, or 74.8% of related earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $597.1 million, or 71.8% of earned premiums, in 2014.
Excluding Alliance United, incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to a lower level of
favorable loss and LAE reserve development and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums on the
nonstandard book of business, partially offset by lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development)
and lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums on the preferred book. Excluding Alliance United,
underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of related earned premiums were 75.1% in 2015, compared to 74.1% in 2014, which
was an increase of 1.0 percentage point due primarily to higher frequency of claims in the nonstandard book and higher severity
of losses on most coverages in the preferred book and property damage losses in the nonstandard book, partially offset by
higher average earned premium across both books, lower frequency of claims on bodily injury, uninsured/underinsured
motorists, property damage and comprehensive coverages in the preferred book and lower severity of bodily injury losses in the
nonstandard book.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $6.7 million in 2015, compared to $12.7 million in 2014.
Excluding the impact of Alliance United, favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $9.5 million in 2015, compared to
$31.6 million in 2014.

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums in personal automobile insurance decreased by $127.7 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of
$167.6 million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $39.9 million. The run-off of the direct-to-
consumer business accounted for approximately 20% of the decrease in earned premiums attributed to lower volume.
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Incurred losses and LAE were $597.1 million, or 71.8% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $719.2 million, or 75.0% of
earned premiums, in 2013. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower underlying
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and a higher level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development,
partially offset by higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development). Underlying losses and LAE as
a percentage of earned premiums were 74.1% in 2014, compared to 77.3% in 2013, which was an improvement of 3.2
percentage points due primarily to the impact of pricing and underwriting actions taken by the Company, lower severity of
bodily injury losses and lower frequency of claims across most liability coverages, partially offset by higher severity of losses
on most coverages except bodily injury.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $12.7 million in 2014, compared to $7.6 million in 2013.
Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $31.6 million in 2014, compared to $30.1 million in 2013.

Homeowners Insurance

Selected financial information for the homeowners insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Net Premiums WITEEEIL . .....oviiiitieieeeeie ettt et e e e e eeaeeeeaseeaeessseesaseesaseesnnesnns $ 276.0 $ 2965 $ 32009

Earned PremiUIMS ........c.ooviiiiieiieeieeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ss s s sennas $ 2863 $§ 3124 $ 3262

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:

Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........c..ccoooiiiiiiiiiiicceeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1451 $ 1565 $ 1704
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccooiviiiiiiinieieeeeeeeeeee e 55.4 80.8 38.2
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiicceeeeeeeeeeee e 3.3) (1.5) 8.9)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........cccccoooiiiiioiiiiicceceeeee e (7.5) (13.3) (11.2)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ...........ccceciriiiiinieirieieeieieeeeees et $ 1897 § 2225 § 1885
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccevvevevievierienieienieieiennen 50.7% 50.1% 52.2%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cecveeveieieieiienienieieieieieieienen 194 25.9 11.7
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.cccocvevveieiievieienieieieieieneen 1.2) (0.5) 2.7
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........c..ccocuevvevieieieienieieieieieieieieeenen (2.6) 4.3) (3.4)
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio........cccecveieieieiiieieieieieieeeeeeeeee e 66.3% 71.2% 57.8%

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in homeowners insurance decreased by $26.1 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $32.0
million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $5.9 million.

Incurred losses and LAE were $189.7 million, or 66.3% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $222.5 million, or 71.2% of
earned premiums, in 2014. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower incurred
catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development), partially offset by a lower level of favorable loss and LAE
reserve development and higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as
a percentage of earned premiums were 50.7% in 2015, compared to 50.1% in 2014, which was an increase of 0.6 percentage
points due primarily to higher severity of losses, partially offset by lower frequency of claims and higher average earned
premium.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $55.4 million in 2015, compared to $80.8 million in 2014.
Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $10.8 million in 2015, compared to $14.8 million in 2014.
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2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums in homeowners insurance decreased by $13.8 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $39.8
million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $26.0 million.

Incurred losses and LAE were $222.5 million, or 71.2% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $188.5 million, or 57.8% of
earned premiums, in 2013. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to higher incurred
catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) and a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development,
partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums were 50.1% in 2014, compared to 52.2% in 2013, which was an improvement of 2.1 percentage
points due primarily to the impact of pricing and underwriting actions taken by the Company, partially offset by higher
frequency of claims and higher severity of losses.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $80.8 million in 2014, compared to $38.2 million in 2013.
Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $14.8 million in 2014, compared to $20.1 million in 2013.

Commercial Automobile Insurance

Selected financial information for the commercial automobile insurance product line follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Net Premiums WITTEEIL. .......c.ooviiviiiiieieeieeeeee ettt ettt ess e eeesesesesenens $ 541 $ 556 $ 537
Earned PremiUmS ........cooiiiiiiiiiceece ettt ettt seaennas $ 545 $ 548 $§ 523

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:

Current Year:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........ccc.cooooiiiiiiieiieieeeeeeeeeeee e $ 457 $ 446 $ 437
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiicceceeeeeeeee e 0.2 0.2 0.1
Prior Years:

Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE.........cccccooieirieiieiieieieieieeeeeeeee e 1.8 (2.6) (3.0)

Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccooiviriiiiinieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — — —
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ...........cccocoovoviiieeirieiieececeeeeeeeeee e $ 477 $ 422 § 408
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cccceeveeievieievieieniesieieiennen 83.8% 81.3% 83.5%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccocvevveiecieieiienienieieieieieieienen 0.4 0.4 0.2
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccocvevveiecievieienieieieieieennen 33 4.7 5.7
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccvevieieieieieieieieieieieieieenen — — —

Total Incurred Loss and LAE RaAtiO.........c.ccocuiiviiiiiiiieceecceeeeeeeeeeeeetee et 87.5% 77.0% 78.0%

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in commercial automobile insurance decreased by $0.3 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to a
slight decrease in volume, nearly offset by an increase in average earned premium.

Incurred losses and LAE were $47.7 million, or 87.5% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $42.2 million, or 77.0% of
earned premiums, in 2014. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due primarily to adverse loss
and LAE reserve development in 2015, compared to favorable development in 2014 and higher underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 83.8% in 2015,
compared to 81.3% in 2014, which was an increase of 2.5 percentage points due primarily to higher frequency of losses across
all coverages, particularly bodily injury, partially offset by lower severity of losses across most coverages, particularly bodily
injury and comprehensive. Adverse loss and LAE reserve development was $1.8 million in 2015, compared to favorable
development of $2.6 million in 2014.
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2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums in commercial automobile insurance increased by $2.5 million due to higher volume with average earned
premium remaining consistent. Incurred losses and LAE were $42.2 million, or 77.0% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared
to $40.8 million, or 78.0% of earned premiums, in 2013.

Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due to lower underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums, partially offset by a lower level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 81.3% in 2014, compared to 83.5% in 2013, which was an
improvement of 2.2 percentage points due primarily to lower severity of losses across most coverages, partially offset by higher
frequency of claims across most coverages.

Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $2.6 million in 2014, compared to $3.0 million in 2013.
Other Personal Insurance

Other personal insurance products include umbrella, dwelling fire, inland marine, earthquake, boat owners and other liability
coverages. Selected financial information for other personal insurance product lines follows.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Net Premiums WIIHEIL.......c.cvioiiieiieiieieiieiieieieeci ettt se s st s sesesnenes $ 456 $ 480 $ 534
Earned Premitms .........ocoovoveiioieieiiieieieiiieteteesiet ettt es et s et s st esns $ 467 $§ 509 § 553
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........cccooooiiiiiiiiiicieeeeeeeeeeee e $ 234 $ 281 $ 244
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........ccocoooiiiiioiiiicceceeeeeee e 2.2 2.8 1.2
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE.........cccccooieiriieienienieieeiceeeeeeee e 2.0) (3.5 3.7
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccooiviiiiiniieieiececceeteee et ©0.1) (1.9) (1.1)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE ...........cccocoovoviiiieririeiieeeeeeeeeteeeee e $ 235 $ 255 $§ 2038
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccoceevevvevievievienieieieieienen, 50.1% 55.2% 44.1%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........cocvevveieieieiienieieieieieieieeenen 4.7 5.5 22
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccocvevveieiieiecienieieieieieeneen “4.3) (6.9) (6.7)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio...........ccccuevveieieieiecieieieieieieeeeeenen 0.2) 3.7 (2.0)

Total Incurred Loss and LAE RaAtiO...........cocouiiviiiiiiiiiceecceeeeee et 50.3% 50.1% 37.6%

2015 Compared with 2014

Earned premiums in other personal insurance decreased by $4.2 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $5.5
million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $1.3 million.

Incurred losses and LAE were $23.5 million, or 50.3% of earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $25.5 million, or 50.1% of
earned premiums, in 2014. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to a lower level of
favorable loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
premiums and lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development). Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage
of earned premiums were 50.1% in 2015, compared to 55.2% in 2014, which was an improvement of 5.1 percentage points due
primarily to lower frequency of umbrella claims, partially offset by higher severity of losses across all coverages.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $2.2 million in 2015, compared to $2.8 million in 2014.
Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $2.1 million in 2015, compared to $5.4 million in 2014.
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2014 Compared with 2013

Earned premiums in other personal insurance decreased by $4.4 million as lower volume accounted for a decrease of $6.6
million, while higher average earned premium accounted for an increase of $2.2 million.

Incurred losses and LAE were $25.5 million, or 50.1% of earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $20.8 million, or 37.6% of
earned premiums, in 2013. Incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased due to higher underlying
losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums and higher catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development),
partially offset by a higher level of favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of
earned premiums were 55.2% in 2014, compared to 44.1% in 2013, which was an increase of 11.1 percentage points due
primarily to higher severity of losses and frequency of claims across most coverages.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $2.8 million in 2014, compared to $1.2 million in 2013.
Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $5.4 million in 2014, compared to $4.8 million in 2013.
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LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE

Selected financial information for the Life & Health Insurance segment is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Earned Premiums:
L ettt et e et e ete et e et e te et e eneeeaeeteens $ 3741 $ 387.6 § 3927
Accident and Health ..............oooiiiiiiiiiiic e 144.9 148.6 161.4
PO CTEY .ttt ettt ettt et et e st et e nt e s e e seenbeentenneenrens 75.4 76.5 78.8
Total Earned Premilms .........ooouiiiiiiiiiccie ettt ettt et ve e teeeaneeeneeenns 594.4 612.7 632.9
Net Investment INCOMIE. .........oooiiiiiiiiiiecie ettt ettt et eeeteeeeaeeeaaeean 214.2 218.7 209.9
Other INCOME ..ottt ettt e et e et e e etae e etaeeebeeeteeeateeeaseeeaeeenes 2.4 0.9 0.2
TOtAl REVEIUES ......viiiiieiieeiie ettt ettt et e e et e e eaaeeebeeeteeesteeeaseeeaeeenns 811.0 832.3 843.0
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE..........cccocceeoiieienieiieeieeeeeeeeee 381.3 374.4 387.9
INSUTANCE EXPENSES ...vouviiviiiiieiieiieieetieit et e st ete et estteaeesaesseeseessessseseassesssesseassesssesseensenns 320.0 316.0 318.2
OPerating Profit.........ccciuiiiiiiiiiiiiicieicc ettt 109.7 141.9 136.9
INCOME TaX EXPENSE...cuviiiiriiiniiiiiiieitieitcteettcte ettt ettt sttt sbe et (38.0) (50.1) (47.6)
Segment Net Operating INCOME ........cooveveueeiieieieiiieiereieieieteeiet ettt se s eseseseesesens $ 717 § 918 § 893
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Insurance Reserves:
Future Policyholder Benefits.......cccveieirieieieieieieieeeeee ettt et $3,2784 §$ 3,214.7
Incurred Losses and LAE Reserves:
L oottt et ettt et ettt te et e e tteetseteetseeatebeeabeeaseeteenreeaseatean 41.2 38.8
Accident and HEalth ...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiieceeceeeee ettt e et eae s 21.4 20.2
POPETLY ..ttt et ettt ettt a ettt e et et e b e ea e ehe et en b e eat e beenteeatenaean 5.2 4.5
Total Incurred Losses and LAE RESEIVES .....cc.occvieuiiiuiiiieiecieeteeeeete ettt et et ere e eaeen 67.8 63.5
INSUTANCE RESEIVES....cuvvviiieeieieietiee ettt e e e et e et e e eetae e e eeaaeeeeeaaeeeeetteeeeesaeeeeesteeeeeteeeserreeeenseeas $3,346.2 §$ 3,278.2
2015 Compared with 2014

Earned Premiums in the Life & Health Insurance segment decreased by $18.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
compared to the same period in 2014. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $13.5 million in 2015, compared to
2014, due primarily to an adjustment of $7.6 million recorded in 2015 to correct deferred premium reserves on certain limited
pay life insurance policies and lower volume. Excluding the adjustment, earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $5.9
million as a decrease of $8.9 million from life insurance products offered by the Kemper Home Service Companies (“KHSC”)
was partially offset by an increase of $3.0 million from life insurance products offered by Reserve National Insurance Company
(“Reserve National) due in part to the impact of the expansion of its distribution channels. Earned premiums on accident and
health insurance decreased by $3.7 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to lower volume resulting from the non-
renewal and run-off of certain health insurance products largely due to the impact of the Health Care Acts, partially offset by
higher volume of supplemental health insurance products and higher average earned premium. In particular, provisions,
effective in 2014, prohibiting the renewal of certain policies issued by Reserve National after the issuance of the Health Care
Acts and also establishing health insurance exchanges, and a provision that sets minimum loss ratios for certain health
insurance policies have adversely impacted Reserve National’s business. Such affected health insurance products (the “HCA
Affected Products™) accounted for $20.4 million, or 14%, of the segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in
2015 and $30.8 million, or 21%, of the segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2014. Reserve National has
adapted its business model in response to the Health Care Acts, has ceased selling HCA Affected Products at the end of 2011,
and has transitioned its sales to supplemental health insurance products that are not expected to be as severely impacted by the
Health Care Acts. Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by $1.1 million in 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily
to lower volume of insurance, partially offset by higher premium rates in a few states.
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Net Investment Income decreased by $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to the same period in 2014,
due primarily to lower investment income from other equity interests, partially offset by higher investment income from fixed
income securities and Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. Investment income from other equity interests in 2014
included dividend income of $21.4 million from one company that had sold substantially all of its operations. Investment
income from fixed income securities increased by $8.8 million due to higher yields and higher levels of investments. The
weighted-average book yield on the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities was
approximately 5.8% and 5.7% at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. A protracted low interest rate environment could
adversely impact the weighted-average book yield on these subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities. For example, the
weighted-average book yield on the subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities will decline if new money is invested at yields
below the portfolio rate. Also, the weighted-average book yield on the subsidiaries’ investments in fixed maturities will decline,
to the extent that investments maturing over the next five years are not used for such purposes as paying claims and expenses, if
the reinvested portion is at a yield that is lower than the book yield of the maturing investment. The subsidiaries’ investments in
fixed maturities that are maturing over the next five years totaled $607.5 million at December 31, 2015. The weighted-average
book yield on such investments was 8.3% at December 31, 2015. The reinvestment rate for the subsidiaries’ investments in
fixed maturities was approximately 8.0% in 2015 with an average duration of 4.6 years at December 31, 2015. Net investment
income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments was $5.4 million in 2015, compared to net investment loss of $0.4
million in 2014, which is an increase of $5.8 million due primarily to higher investment returns on two distressed debt funds.

Operating Profit in the Life & Health Insurance segment was $109.7 million before income taxes for the year ended

December 31, 2015, compared to $141.9 million in 2014. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE increased by
$6.9 million in 2015 due primarily to higher policyholders’ benefits on life insurance and higher incurred losses and LAE on
property insurance. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $274.9 million in 2015, compared to $268.7 million in 2014,
an increase of $6.2 million due primarily to higher death claims and a lower lapse ratio related to insurance policies issued by
KHSC and higher volume of insurance from policies issued by Reserve National. Incurred accident and health insurance losses
were $80.8 million, or 55.8% of accident and health insurance earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $81.1 million, or 54.6%
of accident and health insurance earned premiums, in 2014. Incurred accident and health insurance losses increased as a
percentage of earned premiums due primarily to higher average claim costs, partially offset by the impact of a change in
business mix resulting from the non-renewal and run-off of certain health insurance products with higher loss ratios and the
issuance of supplemental insurance products with lower loss ratios. Incurred losses and LAE on property insurance were $25.6
million, or 34.0% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $24.6 million, or 32.2% of property insurance
earned premiums, in 2014. Underlying losses and LAE on property insurance were $20.4 million, or 27.1% of property
insurance earned premiums, in 2015, compared to $21.7 million, or 28.4% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2014 and
decreased due primarily to lower frequency and severity of fire insurance losses, partially offset by higher severity of losses
from storms that were not large enough to be classified as a catastrophe by ISO. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
development) were $3.8 million in 2015, compared to $2.0 million in 2014. Unfavorable loss and LAE reserve development
was $1.4 million in 2015, compared to $0.9 million in 2014. Insurance Expenses in the Life & Health Insurance segment
increased by $4.0 million due primarily to higher legal costs and costs incurred in connection with a project to digitize historical
records, partially offset by lower salary expenses from a lower level of field staff managers and district managers resulting from
a consolidation of The Kemper Home Service Companies’ field operations substantially completed in the first quarter of 2015
and lower agent incentive conference expense. Segment Net Operating Income in the Life & Health Insurance segment was
$71.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $91.8 million in 2014.

2014 Compared with 2013

Earned Premiums in the Life & Health Insurance segment decreased by $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2014,
compared to 2013. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $5.1 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to a
lower volume of insurance, as a decrease of $12.6 million from life insurance products offered by KHSC was partially offset by
an increase of $7.5 million from life insurance products offered by Reserve National. Earned premiums on accident and health
insurance decreased by $12.8 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to lower volume of insurance resulting
primarily from the run-off of certain health insurance products largely due to the impact of the Health Care Acts, partially offset
by higher volume of supplemental health insurance products. HCA Affected Products accounted for $30.8 million, or 21%, of
the Life & Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2014 and $49.6 million, or 31%, of
the Life & Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned
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premiums in 2013. Earned premiums on property insurance decreased by $2.3 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due
primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium.

Net Investment Income increased by $8.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to
higher investment income from other equity interests, partially offset by lower investment income from Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments and lower book yields on fixed maturities. Investment income from other equity interests in 2014
included dividend income of $21.4 million from one company that had sold substantially all of its operations. Net investment
loss from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments was $0.4 million in 2014, compared to net investment income of $8.4
million in 2013.

Operating Profit in the Life & Health Insurance segment was $141.9 million before taxes for the year ended December 31,
2014, compared to $136.9 million in 2013. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE decreased by $13.5 million in
2014 due primarily to lower incurred accident and health insurance losses, lower underlying losses on property insurance, lower
catastrophe losses and LAE and lower policyholders’ benefits on life insurance, partially offset by an unfavorable impact of
property insurance reserve development. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $81.1 million, or 54.6% of accident
and health insurance earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $90.9 million, or 56.3% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, in 2013. Incurred accident and health insurance losses as a percentage of accident and health insurance earned
premiums decreased due primarily to a change in business mix from the aforementioned run-off of certain health insurance
products. Incurred losses and LAE on property insurance were $24.6 million, or 32.2% of property insurance earned premiums,
in 2014, compared to $27.4 million, or 34.8% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2013. Underlying losses and LAE on
property insurance were $21.7 million, or 28.4% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2014, compared to $25.6 million,
or 32.5% of property insurance earned premiums, in 2013 and decreased due primarily to lower frequency and severity of
insurance losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development) were $2.0 million in 2014, compared to $3.6
million in 2013. Unfavorable loss and LAE reserve development was $0.9 million in 2014, compared to favorable loss and
LAE reserve development of $1.8 million in 2013. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development in 2013 resulted primarily
from a final assessment issued by the Mississippi Windstorm Underwriting Association (“MWUA”) that reduced KHSC’s share
of MWUA's losses for the 2004 through 2006 policy periods by $2.0 million. Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were
$268.7 million in 2014, compared to $269.6 million in 2013, which is a decrease of $0.9 million due primarily to a lower
provision for future policyholders’ benefits and lower death claims related to insurance policies issued by KHSC, partially
offset by the higher volume of insurance from policies issued by Reserve National. Insurance Expenses in the Life & Health
Insurance segment decreased by $2.2 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to lower non-deferrable career agent
incentive compensation and service commissions, lower legal costs and lower salary expense from the capitalization of certain
salaries in connection with an internal use software project, partially offset by higher commissions and other expenses resulting
from the expansion of Reserve National’s distribution channels. Segment Net Operating Income in the Life & Health Insurance
segment was $91.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $89.3 million in 2013.

Unclaimed Property

Certain state insurance regulators, legislators and treasurers/controllers are involved in an array of initiatives that could result in
significant changes to the application of unclaimed property laws and related claims handling practices with respect to life
insurance policies. These initiatives seek, in various ways, to impose a new duty on the part of life insurers to proactively
search for deaths of their insureds. It is the Company’s position that state officials lack the legal authority to impose new
requirements where such requirements have the effect of changing the terms of existing life insurance contracts. See Item 1A.,
“Risk Factors,” under the caption “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor,” MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” and Note 23,
“Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about these matters.
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Net Investment Income

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Investment Income (Loss):
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities. ........cceveueireiruenieieneieieceieeeeseee e $ 2362 $ 2274 § 2355
Dividends on EQUIty SECUTIIES .....eccveeieriieriieieeieiieie ettt eie ettt eaesee e sesneesseense e 324 59.9 38.0
Equity Method Limited Liability InVesStments ...........cccecvevierieeciinierieeiesieseeie e 19.0 9.0 26.4
Fair Value Option INVEStMENTS........cceeiierieiiieieeieiieie ettt sie e sae e e 0.2 0.7) —
Short-term INVESTMENTS. ... covervirtiriirierierieriereeeeteeteeeeeee ettt ettt 0.4 0.6 0.1
Loans to POIICYNOIACTS .....cc.ecviiieiieiieieeiieie ettt sbe e ees 21.1 20.5 19.8
REAL ESLALE ..c..eveiieiieiieieeiee ettt ettt 11.9 12.1 20.8
ORET .ttt ettt ettt ettt et et et et et et et et et etenten — 0.1 —
Total Investment INCOME...........cceviririririiiiiieeeeeeeee e 321.2 328.9 340.6
Investment Expenses:
REAL ESTALE ...ttt ettt ettt 11.3 11.3 18.3
Other INVeStMENt EXPENSES .......cccueieieirieiiieieiieieieteeete ettt 7.3 8.5 7.6
Total Investment EXPENSES........ccociviririririniieiieiteieeitetetetetete ettt ettt neen 18.6 19.8 25.9

Net INVESTMENT INCOIMIE. .......cviiviieiieiieiceecee ettt eae s $ 3026 $ 309.1 $ 3147

2015 Compared with 2014

Net Investment Income decreased by $6.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to
lower Dividends on Equity Securities, partially offset by higher income on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and
higher Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities. Dividends on Equity Securities decreased by $27.5 million. Dividends on
Equity Securities in 2014 included dividend income of $21.8 million from one company that had sold substantially all of its
operations. Investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments increased by $10.0 million due primarily to
higher returns on two distressed debt funds. Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities increased by $8.8 million due primarily
to higher yields.

2014 Compared with 2013

Net Investment Income decreased by $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to
lower income on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and lower Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities, partially
offset by higher dividends on Equity Securities. Investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
decreased by $17.4 million due to lower investment returns. Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities decreased by $8.1
million due primarily to lower yields and, to a lesser extent, lower levels of Fixed Maturities. Dividends on Equity Securities in
2014 included dividend income of $21.8 million from one company that had sold substantially all of its operations. Interest
income from loans to policyholders increased by $0.7 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due to a higher level of loans
outstanding. Net investment income from real estate decreased by $1.7 million in 2014, compared to 2013, due primarily to
income from the early termination of one tenant’s lease in 2013.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS ON SALES. ...ttt ettt e ettt e e eteeeae e e eaeeeteeeteeneeaaneeeens $ 161 § 70 $ 309

LLOSSES ON SALCS ..c.veeuvieeiesiieiieie ettt eie ettt et e st e e e eese et e esteessesseensaensesseeseensesnsenseensenns (1.1) (0.2) 0.4)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES......viiiiiiiiii ettt et ettt et e e et e et e et e e aeeeateeetaeeesaeeteeeaveeesbeeeanas 39.2 33.1 21.8

LLOSSES ON SALES .....eeuvieeieiieiieieeiesi i eieete st ettt et et e s e esaeseesseessesseesseessessseseessesssanseensenes (1.6) (2.0) (0.5)
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:

GAINS ON SALES......oiiiuiiitieiiie ettt ettt ettt e e e et e et e ettt e e aeeeabeeeateeeaseeteeeareeeateeeaeas — — 2.5
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SALES......oiieuiiitieiiie ettt et ettt e e et e et e e eteeeeaeeeateeetaeeeraeeteeereeeareeeanas — — 442

LOSSES 01 SIS .....eeiiiiiieiieiieiieiieiteteete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt nean 0.2) (0.2) —
Other Investments:

Gain on Sale of SUDSIAIATY ......ccveiiiiiiieieieeeee et — 1.6 —

GAINS ON SALES....c.viiiiieiiitieti ettt et ettt ettt et este e b e eteebeesbeessesseesseessesssesseessesssasseessens — — 0.1

LLOSSES ON SALCS .....eeuviieiiiieiieieeiieete ettt et ettt et ete e s e eteebeesbeesbesseesseessesssesseesseessesseessens — (0.1) 0.1)

Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES) ..c.vevereieierieieieieieieieieteeetete et 0.3) (0.1) 0.6
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........c.ocveveeveriirereereeereereeeeteeeteeee e $ 521 $ 391 $ 99.1
GIOSS GAINS ON SALES ......cvvoviveeicieeeeteeeeteet ettt ettt ettt et eae et e s ese s eseesensesensesesesseseneas $ 553 $ 417 $ 995
GrOSS LOSSES ON SALES ....vviieiiiiiieiiiecie ettt ettt ettt e sbeeseveestaeestaeesbeeesseeesseessseesaneenns 2.9 2.5) (1.0)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTILIES .........cveieieieieieieieieieieteeeieeete e seeens 0.3) 0.1 0.6
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENTS ...........cvevieierieiiieeereeeeeee et $ 521 $ 391 $ 99.1

Fixed Maturities

In 2013, the Company sold several corporate bonds and notes in conjunction with a comprehensive review of the prospects of
each issuer in the Company’s publicly-traded corporate bond portfolio. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Fixed Maturities for the
year ended December 31, 2013 include realized gains of $24.8 million from such sales. Other sales activity in 2015, 2014 and
2013 was due to normal portfolio management.

Equity Securities

In 2015, the Company sold $149.9 million of equity securities due to portfolio allocation adjustments and tax planning
initiatives. The Company recognized Gains on Sales of Equity Securities of $31.4 million and Losses on Sales of Equity
Securities of $0.7 million resulting from such sales.

In 2014, the Company sold certain common stocks and other equity interests to reduce a concentration with an external
investment manager and to accelerate utilization of net operating loss carryforwards. Net Realized Gains on Sales of Equity
Securities for the year ended December 31, 2014 include net realized gains of $21.6 million from such sales.

In 2013, the Company sold certain common stocks to accelerate the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards. Net
Realized Gains on Sales of Equity Securities for the year ended December 31, 2013 include realized gains of $19.8 million
from such sales.

Other sales activity in 2015, 2014 and 2013 was due to normal portfolio management.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Real Estate

In 2013, the Company sold the building where Kemper’s corporate offices are headquartered and recognized a realized gain of
$43.6 million. The sale was part of an effort to reduce the Company’s real estate exposure and reduce the real estate portfolio’s
concentration risk.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an
investment is other-than-temporary. Losses arising from other-than-temporary declines in fair value are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the declines are determined to be other-than-temporary. Information
pertaining to Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is presented below.

2015 2014 2013
Number of Number of Number of
Issuers/ Issuers/ Issuers/

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Properties Amount Properties Amount Properties
FIX€d MAUITHES +vveoeveoeeeeeeeeeee oo $ (11.5) 9 % (57 21§ (10.3) 5
Equity SeCUrities ........cccoevvervieviiiieniieie e 15.7) 25 (7.1) 22 (3.6) 11
ReEal EState......cccviivieiiciiciieiieieciieeee et — — (2.4) 1 — —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings $ (27.2) $ (15.2) $ (13.9)

Fixed Maturities

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2015 related to
Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $4.3 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds
of four issuers and credit losses of $7.2 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed
maturities of six issuers.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2014 related to
Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $0.4 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds
of 18 issuers and credit losses of $5.3 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed
maturities of three issuers.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2013 related to
Investments in Fixed Maturities include losses of $0.8 million due to the Company’s intent to sell or requirement to sell bonds
of two issuers and credit losses of $9.5 million from other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of investments in fixed
maturities of three issuers.

Real Estate

In 2014, the Company determined that the book value of one property was not recoverable based on the Company’s estimate of
the weighted-average, undiscounted cash flows from such property. Accordingly, the Company wrote down the property to its
estimated fair value and recognized an impairment loss of $2.4 million in 2014.
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Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses)

The components of Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is
presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS ON SALES ...ttt ettt ettt ee $ 553 § 40.1 $ 99.5
LLOSSES ON SALCS ....eeeiieiieiieeiieit ettt ettt ettt et ebeesee s e esseenseesaeseansessseseensenssenes 2.9 (2.5) (1.0)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ...........ccoevevveeienieiiiecienieneeieeeenene (27.2) (15.2) (13.9)
Gain on Sale of SUDSIAIATY........cciiieriieiicieieie et — 1.6 —
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUrities.........ceveveieieieieieieieieieieeeteeeeeeeens 0.3) 0.1) 0.6
Net Gain Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income...........cccceecvevvevieeiennenen. 249 23.9 85.2
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (LOSS) ......ceveveeieieieieieieieieieieieennen (178.7) 233.6 (362.6)
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (LOSSES).......ccceveeeieieieieieieieieieieieieeenen $ (@1538) $ 2575 § (2774)

INVESTMENT QUALITY AND CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is comprised primarily of high-grade municipal, corporate and agency
bonds. At December 31, 2015, 90% of the Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio was rated investment-grade, which is
defined as a security having a rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB from S&P; a rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa from Moody’s; a rating of
AAA, AA, A or BBB from Fitch; or a rating from the NAIC of 1 or 2. The following table summarizes the credit quality of the
fixed maturity investment portfolio at December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2014
NAIC Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
Rating S&P Equivalent Rating in Millions of Total in Millions of Total
1 AAA; AA, A it $ 3,2225 66.4% § 3,249.3 68.0%
2 BBB ..ottt 1,149.0 23.7 1,156.4 242
3-4 BB, Bttt 2224 4.6 166.7 35
5-6  CCC Or LOWET ..ot 258.4 5.3 205.2 43
Total Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s ........ccccovvvevvieeeeiieieeieeeeeeereeeeneeenne $ 4,852.3 100.0% $ 4,777.6 100.0%

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in below-investment-grade fixed maturities were $16.5 million and $5.6
million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in governmental fixed maturities at December 31,
2015 and 2014:

Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2014
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.................. $ 3206 5.0% $ 3455 5.4%
States and Political Subdivisions:
Pre-refunded with U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
Authorities Held in TTUSE.........oovviiiiiiiiiieeiieceeeee e 93.7 1.5 85.4 1.3
SHALES. ..ottt et ettt s et e e et r e e enaaeas 605.0 9.4 644.6 10.0
Political SUDAIVISIONS ........oovvviiiiiiiiieiiiececeiee ettt e e envee e 172.1 2.7 141.1 2.2
Revenue BondS.........cc.oooviiiiiiiiiiiieececce e 751.8 11.7 606.0 9.4
Total Investments in Governmental Fixed Maturities ............ccceovvvveeennns $ 1,943.2 30.3% $ 1,822.6 28.3%
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The Company’s short-term investments primarily consist of U.S Treasuries, overnight repurchase agreements, money market
funds, overnight interest bearing accounts and certificates of deposit. At December 31, 2015, the Company had $84.6 million
invested in overnight repurchase agreements primarily collateralized by securities issued by the U.S. government and
government agencies and authorities, $50.1 million of certificates of deposit issued by a single bank, $78.7 million invested in
overnight interest bearing accounts with one of the Company’s custodial banks and $21.6 million invested in money market
funds which primarily invest in U.S. Treasury securities. At the time of borrowing, the repurchase agreements generally require
the borrower to provide collateral to the Company at least equal to the amount borrowed from the Company. The Company
bears some investment risk in the event that a borrower defaults and the value of collateral falls below the amount borrowed.
The Company does not have any investments in sovereign debt securities issued by foreign governments.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed maturities by industry
at December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31,2014
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
MaANUTACTUTING ... .ccvieiiieieiieie ettt ete ettt ete st ete b e eteeseessesssessaesseessennas $ 1,160.4 18.0% § 1,247.4 19.4%
Finance, Insurance and Real EState ...........cccccoovvuviiivieiiiiiiiiiieciieeeeieeeias 707.4 11.0 785.6 12.2
SETVICES c.evetitietietisieeteett ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt se st se e st st et e st e st e st esee st entenean 374.4 5.8 305.0 4.7
Transportation, Communication and Utilities...........ceceevvrvveieieieieeennene. 334.4 5.2 3129 4.9
IMITINE ..ttt ettt ettt e ae b e e et ebeesbeeseebeesseesseseesseessennas 139.7 2.2 139.7 2.2
Retail TIade.......coevviviiiiiiiiciieieteete et 91.1 1.4 74.5 1.2
Wholesale Trade..........cccooeviriiiiiiiiieieeeeeeee ettt 80.6 1.3 69.7 1.1
Agriculture, Forestry and FiShing............cccccoeviiiiviiiiiiieiciecceeeieee 20.6 0.3 15.3 0.2
ORET .ottt ettt enes 0.5 — 4.9 0.1
Total Investments in Non-governmental Fixed Maturities........................ $ 2,909.1 452% $ 2,955.0 46.0%

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed maturities by range of
amount invested at December 31, 2015.

Number of Aggregate

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Issuers Fair Value
BLOW $5 .ttt b e h ettt ettt 389 § 8847
B3 o L0 ettt ettt bRt s et ettt e bt ene e s tenenes 108 766.0
B 10 = 820 ettt aeh ettt s e a sttt n bt n e s tenenen 66 920.9
820 = B30 ettt a ettt e Rt a ettt et et e bt ene e s tenenes 11 271.3
Greater TRan $30.......c.ciiiiiiii ettt 2 66.2
TOTAL ..ttt b bbbttt b bbbttt ettt ettt et et et nen 576 $ 2,909.1
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s ten largest exposures, excluding investments in U.S.
Government and Government Agencies and Authorities, pre-refunded municipal bonds and Short-term Investments, at
December 31, 2015.

Percentage
Fair of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Investments
Fixed Maturities:
States including their Political Subdivisions:
TIEXAS ettt ettt ettt bbbt b bbbt b b e bbbt b e bt bbbt et e s et et et e et et et nee $ 1098 1.7%
GROTEIA .t eteti et eeie et ettt et et e et e et e st eetesat e seesseest e seanseesse s e enseassenseesseassesssensaessesseensenssesseensennsennns 79.2 1.2
() 11T F SRS 78.0 1.2
IMHICRIZAN ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et e e te e st e eta e seesseessesaesseassesssessaessasseensenssesssensennsensns 76.9 1.2
FLOTIAR ...ttt ettt s ettt ettt ettt ettt nee 66.5 1.0
COLOTAAO ..ttt ettt b bbbt b e st e st e st a e et et e et e st et e et et et e nenee 66.3 1.0
WVESCOMSIN ...ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt b e bt e bt e bt e bt e bt e bt e bt e st es e e st e st et e st e st e st e st en b e b e tensensensenee 59.3 0.9
LIOUISTANA ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e bttt s e st b e e st e st e st e st et et e st e st en b et e b et et et ensenee 54.5 0.8
Equity Securities—Other Equity Interests:
Vanguard Total Stock Market ETF..........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeete ettt 77.8 1.2
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:
Tennenbaum Opportunities Fund V, LLC........ccccviiiiiiiiiieieieieieeeeee e 58.7 0.9
TOTAL. ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt $ 727.0 11.1%
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INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES AND LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The Company owns investments in various limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest
in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. The Company’s investments in these limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships are reported either as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, Other Equity Interests
and included in Equity Securities, or Fair Value Option Investments depending on the accounting method used to report the
investment. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Additional information pertaining to these investments at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

Unfunded
Commitment Reported Value in Millions
Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31,
Asset Class 2015 2015 2014
Reported as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus
Cumulative Undistributed Earnings:

DiStresSEd DIEDL......c.coviieiiieiieieceieeeseee et $ — 3 9.5 $ 93.0

Secondary TranSaCtions ..........eeeeverererererereneeeeeeieeie ettt 20.2 38.5 48.9

MezZzanine DEbE........c.coviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 37.8 38.8 27.0

Growth EQUILY ....coveiiiiiiiieiiccicecccct et — 4.8 53

SENIOT DEDL ...ttt 0.7 10.8 5.0

Leveraged BUYOUL.......cccueieieiiiiieieieieeeteetetet ettt 0.1 2.8 3.9

OFRET ..ttt ettt — 4.4 1.7
Total Equity Method Limited Liability Investments............c.ccccoeeevevrcnecnencns 58.8 190.6 184.8
Reported as Other Equity Interests at Fair Value:

Mezzanine Debt..........cociniiiiiiiiiincc s 65.8 83.8 69.7

SENIOT DEDL ...ttt ettt 17.0 37.9 21.4

DiStressed DDt ......c.cceviiirieirieiiiiiiicrce et 12.3 18.9 18.2

Secondary TranSaCtioNS ..........eceeeeeeeeieieieeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeseeeeseessessessesenees 10.0 14.2 15.6

Hedge FUNQ......ooiii e — — 9.1

Leveraged Buyout 1.6 5.9 8.0

ORET .ttt ettt 0.9 44.8 442
Total Reported as Other Equity Interests at Fair Value.........cccooceevevieniincnnenne 107.6 205.5 186.2
Reported as Fair Value Option Investments:

Hedge FUNQ......ooie e — 164.5 533
Total Investments in Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships.... $ 166.4 $ 560.6 $ 4243

The Company expects that it will be required to fund its commitments over the next several years. The Company expects that
the proceeds from distributions from these investments will be the primary source of funding of such commitments.

The Company does not directly participate, as either a lender or borrower of securities, in any securities lending program. The
Company does not participate directly in credit default swaps. The Company does not engage directly in hedging activities,
including, but not limited to, activities involving interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, commodities contracts,
exchange traded and over-the-counter options or warrants. The Company has limited exposure to such programs and activities
by virtue of its investments in the limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships noted above.
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WRITE-OFFS OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

In June 2015, the Company decided to cease funding for and abandon a computer software development project for the
Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Accordingly, the Company recorded a charge of $11.1 million before taxes
to write off such software.

In September 2014, the Company determined that it was no longer probable that certain software for the Property & Casualty
Insurance segment would be completed and/or fully implemented. Accordingly, the Company recorded a charge of $54.6
million before taxes to write off such software in 2014.

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

Interest and Other Expenses was $107.6 million, $91.7 million and $100.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Interest expense, excluding interest on a mortgage note payable included in real estate investment
expense in 2013, was $46.5 million, $46.9 million and $38.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Other Corporate Expenses were $61.1 million, $44.8 million and $62.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses increased by $16.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2015, compared to 2014, due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs and, to a lesser extent, higher compensation
expense. Other Corporate Expenses decreased by $17.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013, due
primarily to lower postretirement benefit costs.

As shown in Note 16, “Pension Benefits,” the Company recognized an actuarial gain of $47.5 million related to its qualified
defined benefit pension plan in 2015. The Accumulated Actuarial Loss included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
(“AOCT”) for such plan was $152.2 million at December 31, 2015. The actuarial gain in 2015 was due primarily to an increase
in the discount rate assumed and, to a lesser extent, a change in the mortality rate assumed as a result of adopting newly-
published mortality tables. Amortization of accumulated actuarial losses included as a component of pension expense is
anticipated to decrease by $12.6 million in 2016, compared to 2015.

In 2016, the Company is changing its method for estimating the interest and service cost components of expense recognized for
its pension and other postretirement employee benefit plans. As a result, the Company is electing to use a full yield curve
approach to estimate these components of benefit cost by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the
determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. Historically, the interest and service cost
components were estimated using a single weighted-average discount rate derived from the yield curve used to measure the
projected benefit obligation or accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, as relevant, at the beginning of the period. The
change provides a more precise measurement of interest and service costs by improving the correlation between projected
benefit cash flows to the corresponding spot yield curve rates. The Company will account for this change as a change in
accounting estimate that is inseparable from a change in accounting principle and, accordingly, will recognize its effect
prospectively in 2016. The Company anticipates that the change in method for estimating the interest and service cost
components will decrease pension expense by $5.4 million in 2016, but will have no impact on the measurement of benefit
obligations.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rate from continuing operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the effects of tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions, interest related to unrecognized
tax benefits, estimated indemnification recoveries recognized in earnings pursuant to the Alliance United purchase agreement
and the net effects of state income taxes. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $27.9 million,
$25.6 million and $30.1 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Estimated indemnification recoveries recognized in
earnings result in an adjustment in the tax purchase price and are excluded from the determination of taxable income and
income tax expense. Such recoveries were $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. Tax expense for the year ended
December 31, 2015 includes an interest benefit of $2.1 million, including an interest benefit of $2.3 million from the settlement
of certain tax years. See Note 15, “Income Taxes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of such
settlement. State income tax expense, net of federal benefit, from continuing operations was $0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.2
million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

51



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Debt

In June 2015, Kemper amended and restated its $225.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement to, among other things,
extend the expiration date to June 2, 2020. Prior to the amendment, the credit agreement was scheduled to expire on March 7,
2016. The credit agreement, as amended and restated, provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to six months
at various interest rates. The credit agreement, as amended and restated, contains various financial covenants, including limits
on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s largest
insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity Universal Insurance Company (“Trinity”). Proceeds from advances under
the credit agreement, as amended and restated, may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of existing
indebtedness. Kemper did not borrow under its credit agreement during 2015, 2014 and 2013. There were no outstanding
borrowings under the credit agreement at December 31, 2015, and accordingly, $225.0 million was available for future
borrowings.

In February 2015, Kemper issued $250.0 million of its 4.35% senior notes due February 15, 2025. The net proceeds of the
issuance were $247.3 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield of 4.49%. The 2025 Senior Notes are
unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption
prices. Kemper used the net proceeds from the sale of the 2025 Senior Notes, together with available cash, to redeem in full the
$250.0 million outstanding principal amount of its 6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015. Kemper recognized a loss of
$9.1 million before income taxes in the first quarter of 2015 from the early redemption of these senior notes.

The outstanding principal balance of Kemper’s debt was $750.6 million at December 31, 2015, of which, $360 million is
scheduled to mature on May 15, 2017 (the “2017 Debt”), $250 million is scheduled to mature on February 15, 2025 (the “2025
Debt”) and $150 million is scheduled to mature on February 27, 2054 (the “2054 Debt”). The 2017 Debt and 2025 Debt are
currently redeemable at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. The 2054 Debt was issued in 2014 and is subordinated
to the 2017 Debt and 2025 Debt. Kemper cannot redeem the 2054 Debt prior to February 27, 2019 unless certain tax or rating
agency events have occurred. See Note 7, “Debt,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information
regarding Kemper’s debt.

Trinity and United Insurance are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) of Dallas and the FHLB of Chicago,
respectively. As members, Trinity and United Insurance may obtain advances from the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago,
respectively. Advances from the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago are subject to collateral requirements as specified in the
respective agreements with Trinity and United Insurance. From time to time, Trinity and United Insurance obtain advances from
the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago, respectively, for short-term liquidity needs. In 2015, Trinity borrowed and repaid $77.5
million under its agreement with the FHLB of Dallas, and United Insurance borrowed and repaid $21.0 million under its
agreement with the FHLB of Chicago. There were no advances from the FHLB of Dallas or Chicago outstanding at either
December 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.

Subsidiary Dividends

Under various state insurance laws, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may pay dividends without obtaining prior regulatory
approval based upon levels of statutory capital and surplus and/or net income, as defined by the applicable state law. Kemper’s
direct insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $285.0 million, $217.5 million and $95.0 million to Kemper in 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively. In 2016, Kemper estimates that its direct insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $168 million in
dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval.

In 2013, Kemper’s subsidiary, One East Wacker LLC (“One East”), sold the building where Kemper’s corporate offices are
headquartered for a gain of $43.6 million before taxes. In connection with the sale, Kemper entered into a long-term operating
lease for five floors of the 41-story office building, with naming and signage rights. One East’s proceeds from the sale before
taxes, net of repayment of a $45 million mortgage held by Trinity and an advance of $4.0 million from Kemper, and payment of
other transaction costs and liabilities, were approximately $50 million. In 2013, One East distributed $48 million of its capital
in cash to Kemper. The undistributed net assets of Kemper’s non-insurance subsidiaries were not material at December 31,
2015.

Acquisition of Alliance United Group

On April 30, 2015, Kemper completed its acquisition of Alliance United in a cash transaction for a total purchase price of $71.0
million, subject to certain post-closing indemnifications. After completing the transaction, Kemper contributed $75.0 million to
support the book of business acquired. Kemper contributed $30 million of additional capital in the fourth quarter of 2015 due
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primarily to support Alliance United’s growing book of business and reductions in statutory capital resulting from the impacts
of development of pre-acquisition losses and LAE and non-admission of indemnification receivables. On February 11, 2016
Kemper contributed $25 million of additional capital.

Common Stock Repurchases and Dividends to Shareholders

On August 6, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the 2014 Repurchase Program under which Kemper is authorized to
repurchase up to $300 million of its common stock and terminated Kemper’s remaining authorization under the 2011
Repurchase Program.

During 2015, Kemper repurchased approximately 1.2 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $43.5 million
in open market transactions under the 2014 Repurchase Program. During 2014, Kemper repurchased approximately 3.2 million
shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $115.5 million in open market transactions under the two repurchase
programs. The Company had $247.5 million of remaining capacity under the 2014 Repurchase Program at December 31, 2015.
During 2013, Kemper repurchased approximately 3.0 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $100.4 million
in open market transactions under the 2011 Repurchase Program.

Kemper paid a quarterly dividend to shareholders of $0.24 per common share in each quarter of 2015. Dividends paid were
$49.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Sources of Funds

Kemper directly held cash and investments totaling $341.2 million at December 31, 2015, compared to $330.3 million at
December 31, 2014. Sources available for the repayment of indebtedness, repurchases of common stock, future shareholder
dividend payments, additional capitalization of its direct insurance subsidiaries, and the payment of interest on Kemper’s senior
notes and subordinated debentures include cash and investments directly held by Kemper, receipt of dividends from Kemper’s
subsidiaries and borrowings under the credit agreement.

The primary sources of funds for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are premiums and fees from policyholders, investment
income and proceeds from the sales and maturity of investments, advances from the FHLBs of Dallas and Chicago, and capital
contributions from Kemper. The primary uses of funds are the payment of policyholder benefits under life insurance contracts,
claims and claims-related expenses under property and casualty insurance contracts and accident and health insurance contracts,
the payment of commissions and general expenses, the purchase of investments, repayments of advances from the FHLBs of
Dallas and Chicago and payment of dividends to Kemper. Generally, there is a time lag between when premiums are collected
and when policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid. Changes in the legal environment relative to application of state
unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices could result in changes in the manner in which
Kemper’s life insurance companies administer life insurance death benefits and escheat unclaimed benefits to the states, and
could have a significant effect on, including decreasing such time lag due to an acceleration of, the payment and/or remittance
of such benefits to the states under their unclaimed property laws relative to what is currently contemplated by Kemper. See
Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Unclaimed Property Risk Factor” MD&A, “Life & Health Insurance,” and Note
23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about these matters. During periods of
growth, insurance companies typically experience positive operating cash flows and are able to invest a portion of their
operating cash flows to fund future policyholder benefits and claims. During periods in which premium revenues decline,
insurance companies may experience negative cash flows from operations and may need to sell investments to fund payments
to policyholders and claimants. In addition, if the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries experience several
significant catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in advance of their
maturity dates to fund payments, which could result in either investment gains or losses. Management believes that its property
and casualty insurance subsidiaries maintain adequate levels of liquidity in the event that they were to experience several future
catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $81.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to
2014. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $11.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared
to 2013.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities was $100.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $19.7 million
for the same period in 2014. Kemper used $357.3 million of cash to repay debt for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which
$258.8 million was used to redeem the 2015 Senior Notes and $98.5 million to repay the FHLB advances. Net proceeds from
the issuance of debt provided $345.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which $247.3 million was related to the
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issuance of the 2025 Senior Notes and $98.5 million from FHLB advances, compared to net proceeds of $144.0 million related
to the issuance of the 2054 Subordinated Debentures in 2014. Kemper used $45.0 million of cash in 2015, including $1.5
million of cash to settle repurchases made at the end of 2014, to repurchase shares of its common stock, compared to using
$114.0 million of cash to repurchase shares of its common stock in 2014. Kemper used $49.7 million of cash to pay dividends
for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to $51.8 million in 2014. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24 per common
share for each quarter of 2015 and 2014.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities decreased by $137.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013,
due primarily to net proceeds of $144.0 million in 2014 related to the issuance of the 2054 Subordinated Debentures. Kemper
used $114.0 million of cash in 2014 to repurchase shares of its common stock, compared to using $100.4 million of cash to
repurchase shares of its common stock in 2013. Kemper used $51.8 million of cash to pay dividends in 2014, compared to
using $54.9 million of cash to pay dividends in 2013. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24 per common share for each quarter
0f 2014 and 2013.

Cash available for investment activities in total is dependent on cash flow from Operating Activities and Financing Activities
and the level of cash the Company elects to maintain. Net Cash Used by Investing Activities was $28.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015, compared to $104.3 million in 2014. Net cash provided by dispositions of short-term investments
was $104.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to net cash of $63.9 million used by acquisitions of short-
term investments in 2014. Fixed Maturities investing activities used net cash of $53.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2015, compared to providing net cash of $20.7 million in 2014. Equity Securities investing activities provided net cash of
$104.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to using net cash of $10.1 million in 2014. Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments investing activities provided net cash of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
compared to $33.8 million in 2014. Fair Value Option Investments investing activities used net cash of $111.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2015, compared to using net cash of $54.0 million in 2014. Net cash used to acquire Alliance United
was $57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to net cash of $8.9 million provided by the disposition of a
subsidiary in 2014. Purchases of Corporate-owned Life Insurance were $7.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
compared to $33.5 million in 2014.

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities increased by $109.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 2013.
Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of Fixed Maturities by $20.7 million in 2014. Purchases of Fixed Maturities
exceeded Sales of Fixed Maturities by $80.1 million in 2013. Sales of Equity Securities exceeded Purchases of Equity
Securities by $10.1 million in 2014. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $31.3 million in
2013. Purchases of Fair Value Option Investments exceeded Sales of Fair Value Option Investments by $54.0 million in 2014.
There were no purchases or sales of Fair Value Option Investments in 2013. In 2014, the Company made an initial purchase of
$33.5 million of Corporate-owned Life Insurance. There were no purchases or sales of Corporate-owned Life Insurance for the
same period in 2013. Cash provided by the sale of investment real estate was $0.9 million in 2014 compared to $102.7 million
in 2013. Net cash used by acquisitions of short-term investments was $63.9 million in 2014, compared to net cash of $41.8
million provided by dispositions of short-term investments in 2013.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no material obligations under guarantee contracts. The Company has no material retained or contingent
interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity. The Company has no material obligations, including contingent
obligations, under contracts that would be accounted for as derivative instruments. The Company has no obligations, including
contingent obligations, arising out of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity held by, and material to, the Company,
where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or research
and development services with the Company. Accordingly, the Company has no material off-balance sheet arrangements.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Estimated cash disbursements pertaining to the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2015 are presented below.

Jan 1, 2016 Jan 1, 2017 Jan 1, 2019

To To To After

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Dec 31,2016  Dec31,2018  Dec 31,2020  Dec 31,2020 Total

Long Term Debt Obligations $ — 8 3600 $ — 3 400.0 $ 760.0
Capital Lease Obligations ..............cc........ 2.4 0.8 — — 3.2
Operating Lease Obligations 17.8 28.4 14.9 14.2 75.3
Purchase Obligations.............cceeverueecienierieeiesieseeenne. 20.6 233 7.9 — 51.8
Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits................. 270.7 450.2 428.8 6,751.1 7,900.8
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves ................ 508.0 261.1 49.4 44.3 862.8

Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long
Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet under GAAP........cccoovvivereieeeeeee 44.1 53.0 44.7 419.7 561.5

Total Contractual Obligations $ 863.6 $ 1,176.8 $ 5457 $ 7,629.3 $ 10,215.4

Amounts included in Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits within the contractual obligations table above represent the
estimated cash payments to be made to policyholders and beneficiaries. Such cash outflows are based on the Company’s current
assumptions for mortality, morbidity and policy lapse, but are undiscounted with respect to interest. Policies must remain in
force for the policyholder or beneficiary to receive the benefit under the policy. Depending on the terms of a particular policy,
future premiums from the policyholder may be required for the policy to remain in force. The Company estimates that future
cash inflows would total $3.8 billion using the same assumptions used to estimate the cash outflows. The Company’s Life
Insurance Reserves in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are generally based on the historical assumptions for
mortality and policy lapse rates and are on a discounted basis. Accordingly, the sum of the amounts presented above for Life
and Health Insurance Policy Benefits significantly exceeds the amount of Life and Health Insurance Reserves reported on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2015.

In addition to the purchase obligations included above, the Company had certain investment commitments totaling $176.1
million at December 31, 2015. The funding of such investment commitments is dependent on a number of factors, the timing of
which is indeterminate. The contractual obligations reported above also exclude the Company’s liability of $3.8 million for
unrecognized tax benefits. The Company cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period of related future
payments, if any, for such liability. Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long Term Liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet under GAAP primarily consist of interest obligations related to Long Term Debt Obligations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Kemper’s subsidiaries conduct their businesses in two industries: property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance.
Accordingly, the Company is subject to several industry-specific accounting principles under GAAP. The preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The process of estimation is inherently uncertain. Accordingly,
actual results could ultimately differ materially from the estimated amounts reported in a company’s financial statements.
Different assumptions are likely to result in different estimates of reported amounts. The Company’s critical accounting policies
most sensitive to estimates include the valuation of investments, the valuation of property and casualty insurance reserves for
losses and LAE, the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and the valuation of pension benefit obligations.

Valuation of Investments

The reported value of the Company’s investments was $6,429.5 million at December 31, 2015, of which $5,544.7 million, or
86%, was reported at fair value, $190.6 million, or 3%, was reported under the equity method of accounting, $288.4 million, or
5%, was reported at unpaid principal balance and $405.8 million, or 6%, was reported at cost or depreciated cost. Investments,
in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and overall market volatility risk. Accordingly, it is
reasonably possible that changes in the fair values of the Company’s investments reported at fair value will occur in the near
term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. Also, it is reasonably possible
that changes in the carrying values of the Company’s Equity Method Limited Liability Investments will occur in the near term
and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements because these issuers follow
specialized industry accounting rules which require that they report all of their investments at fair value (See Item 1A., “Risk
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Factors” under the title “The Company’s investment portfolio is exposed to a variety of risks that may negatively impact net
investment income and cause realized and unrealized losses”).

As more fully described under the heading, “Fair Value Measurements,” in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes
and ranks the market observability used in fair value measurements.

The fair value of the Company’s investments measured and reported at fair value was $5,544.7 million at December 31, 2015,
of which $4,613.5 million, or 83%, were investments that were based on quoted market prices or significant value drivers that
are observable and $931.2 million, or 17%, were investments where at least one significant value driver was unobservable. Fair
value measurements based on readily available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair value can be measured from
actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of
judgment, compared to fair value measurements based on significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value. The
prices that the Company might realize from actual sales of investments are likely to vary from their respective estimated fair
values at December 31, 2015 due to changing market conditions and limitations inherent in the estimation process.

The classification of a company’s investment in a financial instrument may affect its reported results. For investments classified
as trading or for financial instruments for which a company has elected the fair value option method of accounting, a company
is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported. Accordingly, both the reported and fair
values of the Company’s investments classified as trading were $4.7 million at December 31, 2015. Both the reported and fair
values of the Company’s investments accounted for under the fair value option method of accounting were $164.5 million at
December 31, 2015. For investments in fixed maturities classified as held to maturity, a company is required to carry the
investment at amortized cost, with only amortization occurring during the period recognized into income. None of the
Company’s investments in fixed maturities were classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2015. Changes in the fair value
of investments in fixed maturities classified as available for sale, investments in equity securities classified as available for sale
and an insurance entity’s investments in equity securities without readily determinable fair values are not recognized to income
during the period, but rather are recognized as a separate component of AOCI until realized. All of the Company’s investments
in fixed maturities were classified as available for sale at December 31, 2015. Except for investments accounted for under the
equity method of accounting or classified as trading, all of the Company’s investments in equity securities at December 31,
2015 are reported at fair value with changes in fair value reported in AOCI until realized. The Company’s investments
accounted for under the equity method of accounting consist of the Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments and are valued at cost plus cumulative undistributed comprehensive earnings or losses, and not at fair value.

Under GAAP, a company may elect to use the fair value option for some or all of its investments in financial instruments.
Under the fair value option, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported.
Had the Company elected the fair value option for all of its investments in financial instruments, the Company’s reported net
income for the year ended December 31, 2015, would have decreased by $115.4 million.

The Company regularly reviews its investments for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost or amortized cost is other than temporary. Such reviews are inherently uncertain in that the value of the
investment may not fully recover or may decline further in future periods. Some factors considered for fixed maturity and
equity securities in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other than temporary include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Fixed Maturity Securities

+  The financial condition, credit rating and prospects of the issuer;

*  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

*  The ability of the issuer to make scheduled principal and interest payments;

*  The volatility of the investment;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

+  The Company’s intentions to sell or not to sell the investment; and

*  The Company’s determination of whether it will be required to sell the investment before a full recovery in value.

Equity Securities

»  The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;
*  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;
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*  The volatility of the investment;

*  Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

*  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  Market liquidity;

*  Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

*  The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

Changes in these factors from their December 31, 2015 evaluation date could result in the Company determining that a
temporary decline in the fair value of an investment held and evaluated at December 31, 2015 is no longer temporary at a
subsequent evaluation date. Such determination would result in an impairment loss recognized in earnings in the period such
determination is made.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability
for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. The
Company had $862.8 million and $733.9 million of gross loss and LAE reserves at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for the Company’s business segments at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Business Segments:

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE ........c.eeiriririeiieiieieieteteieeet ettt ettt eas 800.5 651.1

Life & Health INSUIANCE.......c..ccvuiiiiiiiiiiciriciniecetc ettt 5.2 4.5
TOtal BUSINESS SEEIMENLS. ..c.viviriieiiiietietietietieieete ettt ettt ettt et ese e st estesee st eseesteseestestensensensensensensensensensensenes 805.7 655.6
Discontinued Operations 51.0 70.2
UNAllocated RESEIVES .....c.couiiiiiiiiiieiirieiitetet ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt sttt 6.1 8.1
Total Property and Casualty INSUrance RESEIVES........ccccuriririeieieieieieieieietetetete et $ 8628 $ 7339

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain, and the actual
ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving
process is particularly imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging
and/or long-tailed exposures which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended.
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s discontinued operations are predominantly long-tailed
exposures, $20.3 million of which was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at
December 31, 2015.

The Company’s actuaries generally estimate reserves at least quarterly for most product lines and/or coverage levels using
accident quarters spanning 10 or more years, depending on the size of the product line and/or coverage level or emerging issues
relating to them. The Company’s actuaries use a variety of generally accepted actuarial loss reserving estimation
methodologies, including, but not limited to, the following:

* Incurred Loss Development Methodology;

*  Paid Loss Development Methodology;

*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Incurred Loss Methodology;
*  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Methodology; and
*  Frequency and Severity Methodology.

The Company’s actuaries generally review the results of at least four of the estimation methodologies, two based on paid data
and two based on incurred data, to initially estimate the ultimate losses and LAE for the current accident quarter and re-estimate
the ultimate losses and LAE for previous accident quarters to determine if changes in the previous estimates of the ultimate
losses and LAE are indicated by the most recent data. In some cases, the methodologies produce a cluster of estimates with a
tight band of indicated possible outcomes. In other cases, however, the methodologies produce conflicting results and wider
bands of indicated possible outcomes, and the Company’s actuaries perform additional analyses before making their final
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selections. However, such bands do not necessarily constitute a range of outcomes, nor does the Company’s management or the
Company’s actuaries calculate a range of outcomes.

The key assumption in these estimation methodologies is that patterns observed in prior periods are indicative of how losses
and LAE are expected to develop in the future and that such historical data can be used to predict and estimate ultimate losses
and LAE. However, changes in the Company’s business processes, by their very nature, are likely to affect the development
patterns, which generally results in the historical development factors becoming less reliable over time in predicting how losses
and LAE will ultimately develop. The ultimate impact of a single change in a business process is difficult to quantify and
detect, and even more difficult if several changes to business processes occur over several years. Initially after a change is
implemented, there are fewer data points, as compared to the historical data, for the Company’s actuaries to analyze. With fewer
data points to analyze, the Company’s actuaries cannot be certain that observed differences from the historical data trends are a
result of the change in business process or merely a random fluctuation in the data. As the Company’s actuaries observe more
data points following the change in business process, the Company’s actuaries can gain more confidence in whether the change
in business process is affecting the development pattern. The challenge for the Company’s actuaries is how much weight to
place on the development patterns based on the older historical data and how much weight to place on the development patterns
based on more recent data.

At a minimum, the Company’s actuaries analyze 45 product and/or coverage levels for over 40 separate current and prior
accident quarters for both losses and LAE using many of the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified above as well
as other generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In all, there are over 10,000 combinations of accident quarters,
coverage levels, and generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies used to estimate the Company’s unpaid losses and
LAE. In some cases, the Company’s actuaries make adjustments to the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified
above or use additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE.

For each accident quarter, the point estimate selected by the Company’s actuaries is not necessarily one of the points produced
by any particular one of the methodologies utilized, but often is another point selected by the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, that takes into consideration each of the points produced by the several loss reserving estimation
methodologies used. In some cases, for a particular product, the current accident quarter may not have enough paid claims data
to rely upon, leading the Company’s actuaries to conclude that the incurred loss development methodology provides a better
estimate than the paid loss development methodology. Therefore, the Company’s actuaries may give more weight to the
incurred loss development methodology for that particular accident quarter. As an accident quarter ages for that same product,
the actuary may gain more confidence in the paid loss development methodology and begin to give more weight to the paid loss
development methodology. The Company’s actuaries’ quarterly selections are summed by product and/or coverage levels to
create the actuarial indication of the ultimate losses. More often than not, the actuarial indication for a particular product line
and accident quarter is most heavily weighted toward the incurred loss development methodology, particularly for short-tail
lines such as personal automobile insurance. Historically, the incurred loss development methodology has been more reliable in
predicting ultimate losses for short-tail lines, especially in the more recent accident quarters, compared with the paid loss
development methodology. However, in some circumstances changes can occur which impact numerous variables, including,
but not limited to, those variables identified below that are difficult to quantify and/or impact the predictive value of prior
development patterns relied upon in the incurred loss development methodology and paid loss development methodology. In
those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries must make adjustments to these loss reserving estimation methodologies or use
additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, may place more weight on the adjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies or other generally
accepted actuarial estimation methodologies until the newer development patterns fully emerge and the Company’s actuaries
can fully rely on the unadjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies. In the event of a wide variation among results
generated by the different projection methodologies, the Company’s actuaries further analyze the data using additional
techniques.

In estimating reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many
variables that are difficult to quantify, such as:

*  Changes in the level of minimum case reserves, and the automatic aging of those minimum case reserves;

+  Changes to claims practices, including, but not limited to, changes in the reporting and impact of large losses, timing
of reported claims, changes in claims closing and re-opening patterns, adequacy of case reserves, implementation of
new systems for handling claims, turnover of claims department staffs, timing and depth of the audit review of claims
handling procedures;

*  Changes in underwriting practices;
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*  Changes in the mix of business by state, class and policy limit within product line;

e Growth in new lines of business;

*  Changes in the attachment points of the Company’s reinsurance programs;

*  Medical costs, including, but not limited to, the ability to assess the extent of injuries and the impact of inflation;

*  Repair costs, including, but not limited to, the impact of inflation and the availability of labor and materials;

+  Changes in the judicial environment, including, but not limited to, the interpretation of policy provisions, the impact of
jury awards and changes in case law; and

+  Changes in state regulatory requirements.

A change in any one or more of the foregoing factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate net loss and LAE that is different
from the previously estimated reserve and/or previous frequency and severity trends. Such changes in estimates may be
material.

For example, the Company’s actuaries review frequency (number of claims per policy or exposure), severity (dollars of loss per
claim) and average premium (dollars of premium per exposure). Actual frequency and severity experienced will vary depending
on changes in mix by class of insured risk. Similarly, the actual frequency and rate of recovery from reinsurance will vary
depending on changes in the attachment point for reinsurance. In particular, in periods of high growth or expansion into new
markets, there may be additional uncertainty in estimating the ultimate losses and LAE. The contributing factors of this
potential risk are changes in the Company’s mix by policy limit and mix of business by state or jurisdiction.

Actuaries use historical experience and trends as predictors of how losses and LAE will emerge over time. However, historical
experience may not necessarily be indicative of how actual losses and LAE will emerge. Changes in case reserve adequacy,
changes in minimum case reserves and changes in internal claims handling procedures could impact the timing and recognition
of incurred claims and produce an estimate that is either too high or too low if not adjusted for by the actuary. For example, if,
due to changes in claims handling procedures, actual claims are settled more rapidly than they were settled historically, the
estimate produced by the paid loss development methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and
adjust for the impact of the changes in claims handling procedures. Similarly, if, due to changes in claims handling procedures,
actual claim reserves are set at levels higher than past experience, the estimate produced by the incurred loss development
methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and adjust for the impact of the changes in claims
handling procedures.

The final step in the quarterly loss and LAE reserving process involves a comprehensive review of the actuarial indications by
the Company’s corporate actuary and corporate management who apply their collective judgment and determine the appropriate
estimated level of reserves to record. Numerous factors are considered in this determination process, including, but not limited
to, the assessed reliability of key loss trends and assumptions that may be significantly influencing the current actuarial
indications, changes in claim handling practices or other changes that affect the timing of payment or development patterns,
changes in the mix of business, the maturity of the accident year, pertinent trends observed over the recent past, the level of
volatility within a particular line of business, the improvement or deterioration of actuarial indications in the current period as
compared to prior periods, and the amount of reserves related to third party pools for which the Company does not have access
to the underlying data and, accordingly, relies on calculations provided by such pools.

Estimated Variability of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and
LAE are fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE over time, also referred to as
“development,” will occur and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated
Financial Statements when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase
in net income in the period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when the Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net
income.
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Development for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, was:
Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Continuing Operations:

Property & Casualty Insurance:

Personal Automobile INSUTANCE ......c.ecveeuieiieiieiieiieiieiieee ettt ettt s e a s sens $ 1.8 $§ 316 $ 30.1

Homeowners Insurance.................. 10.8 14.8 20.1

Commercial Automobile Insurance (1.8) 2.6 3.0

Other Personal LINES .......c.ccveriieiieiieniieieeierieeie et et ete st e saeesteseaesseessessaesseessessaesseensenes 2.1 5.4 4.8

Life & Health Insurance:

PrOPEILY ettt ettt ettt nee 1.4) (0.9) 1.8
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net 11.5 53.5 59.8
Discontinued OPEIations.........c.coeveuerieririeirietrietetentetteteteseeesessesesteseesessesessesessesessessesessenens 8.6 3.6 4.8
Total Favorable Development, NEt..........ccviueimieeiiniiiiiiieee e esesesees $ 201 $§ 571 $§ 646

See MD&A, “Loss and LAE Reserve Development,” “Property & Casualty Insurance,” and “Life & Health Insurance,” for
further information on development reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Although development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines, development in the Company’s personal automobile
insurance product line could have the most significant impact due to the relative size of its loss and LAE reserves. To further
illustrate the sensitivity of the Company’s reserves for personal automobile insurance losses and LAE to changes in the
cumulative development factors, for each quarterly evaluation point the Company’s actuaries calculated the variability of
cumulative development factors observed in the incurred loss development methodology using one standard deviation. The
Company believes that one standard deviation of variability is a reasonably likely scenario to measure variability for its loss and
LAE reserves under the incurred development method for personal automobile insurance. Assuming that the Company’s
personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves were based solely on the incurred loss development methodology and the
variability in the cumulative development factors occurred within one standard deviation, the Company estimates that the
Company’s personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves could have varied by $65.2 million in either direction at
December 31, 2015 for all accident years combined under this scenario. In addition to the factors described above, other factors
may also impact loss reserve development in future periods. These factors include governmental actions, including court
decisions interpreting existing laws, regulations or policy provisions, developments related to insurance policy claims and
coverage issues, adverse or favorable outcomes in pending claims litigation, the number and severity of insurance claims, the
impact of inflation on insurance claims and the impact of required participation in windpools and joint underwriting
associations and residual market assessments. Although the Company’s actuaries do not make specific numerical assumptions
about these factors, changes in these factors from past patterns will impact historical loss development factors and, in turn,
future loss reserve development. Significant favorable changes in one or more factors will lead to favorable future loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even below, the lower end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Significant unfavorable changes in one or more factors will lead to unfavorable loss reserve
development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even above, the higher end of the Company’s
estimated reserve variability. Accordingly, due to these factors and the other factors enumerated throughout the MD&A and the
inherent limitations of the loss reserving estimation methodologies, the estimated and illustrated reserve variability may not
necessarily be indicative of the Company’s future reserve variability, which could ultimately be greater than the estimated and
illustrated variability. In addition, as previously noted, development will emerge in all of the Company’s product lines over
time. Accordingly, the Company’s future reserve variability could ultimately be greater than the illustrated variability.
Additional information pertaining to the estimation of, and development of, the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this 2015 Annual Report under the heading “Property and Casualty Loss and Loss
Adjustment Expense Reserves.”

Goodwill Recoverability

While the Company believes that none of its reporting units with material Goodwill are at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test, the process of determining whether or not an asset, such as Goodwill, is impaired or recoverable
relies on projections of future cash flows, operating results and market conditions. Such projections are inherently uncertain
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and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash flows. In evaluating the recoverability of
Goodwill, the Company performs a discounted cash flow analysis for each of the Company’s reporting units carrying Goodwill.
The discounted cash value may be different from the fair value that would result from an actual transaction between a willing
buyer and a willing seller. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in discount rates and investment rates. Changes to
these rates might result in material changes in the valuation and determination of the recoverability of Goodwill. For example,
an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows will decrease the discounted cash value. There is likely to be a similar, but
not necessarily as large as, increase in the investment rate used to project the cash flows resulting from investment income
earned on the Company’s investments. Accordingly, an increase in the investment rate would increase the discounted cash
value.

Pension Benefit Obligations

The process of estimating the Company’s pension benefit obligations and pension benefit costs is inherently uncertain and the
actual cost of benefits may vary materially from the estimates recorded. These liabilities are particularly volatile due to their
long-term nature and are based on several assumptions. The main assumptions used in the valuation of the Company’s pension
benefit obligations and pension costs are:

+  Estimated mortality of the participants and beneficiaries eligible for benefits;

+  Estimated expected long-term rates of returns on investments;

»  Estimated compensation increases;

»  Estimated employee turnover; and

»  Estimated rate used to discount the expected benefit payment to a present value.

A change in any one or more of these assumptions is likely to result in a projected benefit obligation or pension cost that differs
from the actuarial estimates at December 31, 2015. Such changes in estimates may be material. For example, a one—percentage
point decrease in the Company’s estimated discount rate would increase the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2015 by
$90.5 million, while a one—percentage point increase in the rate would decrease the pension benefit obligation at December 31,
2015 by $72.5 million. A one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s estimated long-term rate of return on plan assets
would increase the pension expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 by $5.2 million, while a one—percentage point
increase in the rate would decrease pension expense by $5.2 million for the same period.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws and a limited number of
grandfathered standards, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the sole source of authoritative GAAP
recognized by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) that is applicable to the Company. The FASB issues
Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs”) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC.

All recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates prior to January 1, 2016 have been adopted by the
Company. The Company also early adopted ASU 2015-01, Income Statement—Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic
225-20): Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary Items, ASU 2015-03, Interest
—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, and ASU 2015-16, Business
Combinations (Topic 805): Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments. See Note 2, “Summary of
Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes” for discussion on adoption of these ASUs and impacts to the Company’s
financial statements, which were not material. With the possible exceptions of ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments—Overall
(Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which the Company is
currently evaluating the impact of adoption, and the additional disclosure requirements of ASU 2015-09, Financial Services—
Insurance (Topic 944): Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts, the Company does not expect the adoption of all other
recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates after December 31, 2015 to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements. All other recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates after December 31,
2015 are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Quantitative Information About Market Risk

The Company’s consolidated balance sheets include four types of financial instruments subject to the material market risk
disclosures required by the SEC:

1. Investments in Fixed Maturities;

2. Investments in Equity Securities;

3. Fair Value Option Investments; and
4. Debt.

Investments in Fixed Maturities and Debt are subject to material interest rate risk. The Company’s Investments in Equity
Securities include common and preferred stocks and, accordingly, are subject to material equity price risk and interest rate risk,
respectively. The Company’s Fair Value Option Investments include hedge funds that are subject to material equity price risk.

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive financial instruments are divided into two categories: financial instruments
acquired for trading purposes and financial instruments acquired for purposes other than trading. The Company’s market risk
sensitive financial instruments are generally classified as held for purposes other than trading. The Company has no significant
holdings of financial instruments acquired for trading purposes. The Company has no significant holdings of derivatives.

The Company measures its sensitivity to market risk by evaluating the change in its financial assets and liabilities relative to
fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. The evaluation is made using instantaneous changes in interest rates and equity
prices on a static balance sheet to determine the effect such changes would have on the Company’s market value at risk and the
resulting pre-tax effect on Shareholders’ Equity. The changes chosen represent the Company’s view of adverse changes which
are reasonably possible over a one-year period. The selection of the changes chosen should not be construed as the Company’s
prediction of future market events, but rather an illustration of the impact of such possible events.

For the interest rate sensitivity analysis presented below, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100
basis points in the yield curve at both December 31, 2015 and 2014 for Investments in Fixed Maturities. Such 100 basis point
increase in the yield curve may not necessarily result in a corresponding 100 basis point increase in the interest rate for all
investments in fixed maturities. For example, a 100 basis point increase in the yield curve for risk-free, taxable investments in
fixed maturities may not result in a 100 basis point increase for tax-exempt investments in fixed maturities. For Investments in
Fixed Maturities, the Company also anticipated changes in cash flows due to changes in the likelihood that investments would
be called or prepaid prior to their contractual maturity. All other variables were held constant. For preferred stock equity
securities, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100 basis points in market interest rates from their
levels at both December 31, 2015 and 2014. All other variables were held constant. For Debt, the Company assumed an adverse
and instantaneous decrease of 100 basis points in market interest rates from their levels at December 31, 2015 and 2014. All
other variables were held constant. The Company measured equity price sensitivity assuming an adverse and instantaneous 30%
decrease in the Standard and Poor’s Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) from its level at December 31, 2015 and 2014, with all other
variables held constant. The Company’s investments in common stock equity securities were correlated with the S&P 500 using
the portfolio’s weighted-average beta of 0.99 and 1.00 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Beta measures a stock’s
relative volatility in relation to the rest of the stock market, with the S&P 500 having a beta coefficient of 1.00. The common
stock portfolio’s weighted-average beta was calculated using each security’s beta for the five-year periods ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, and weighted on the fair value of such securities at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. For equity
securities without observable market inputs, the Company assumed a beta of 1.00 at December 31, 2015 and 2014. The
Company’s Fair Value Option Investments were correlated with the S&P 500 using such portfolio’s weighted-average beta of
0.14 and 0.16 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which was calculated for each hedge fund in the portfolio and
weighted on the respective fair value of each of the hedge funds.
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The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2015 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities.............cccoeeevieeeeciiiieeicereeieeeeeeieee e $ 48523 § (307.6) $ — $ (307.6)
Investments in EQUItY SECUIILIES........c.ccvevriririeieieeieieieieeeieeeee s 523.2 (7.2) (126.0) (133.2)
Fair Value Option INVEStMENtS..........ccccveiririeierieieieieieieeeieeeeeeeneenns 164.5 — 6.7 6.7
LIABILITIES
DIEDL .. viiiiiicit ettt ra e s e sa e enes $ 7813 § 330 $ — § 33.0

The estimated adverse effects on the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2014 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk Market Risk
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities $ 47776 $ (3175 $ — $ (317.5)
Investments in EQUity SECUTIIHIES. ........cuevieriieierieieie e 632.2 9.1 (153.4) (162.5)
Fair Value Option INVestments............ccoeveviecienienieieeieeeie e 53.3 — (2.6) (2.6)
LIABILITIES
DIEDE ..ttt $§ 8044 S 228 $ — S 22.8

The market risk sensitivity analysis assumes that the composition of the Company’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities,
including, but not limited to, credit quality, and the equity price sensitive assets existing at the beginning of the period remains
constant over the period being measured. It also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is uniform across the yield
curve regardless of the time to maturity. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market interest rates. Also, any
future correlation, either in the near term or the long term, between the Company’s common stock equity securities and fair
value option portfolios and the S&P 500 may differ from the historical correlation as represented by the weighted-average
historical beta of the common stock equity securities and fair value option portfolios. Accordingly, the market risk sensitivity
analysis may not be indicative of, is not intended to provide, and does not provide, a precise forecast of the effect of changes of
market rates on the Company’s income or shareholders’ equity. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the
Company may undertake in response to changes in interest rates or equity prices.

To the extent that any adverse 100 basis point change occurs in increments over a period of time instead of instantaneously, the
adverse impact on fair values would be partially mitigated because some of the underlying financial instruments would have
matured. For example, proceeds from any maturing assets could be reinvested and any new liabilities would be incurred at the
then current interest rates.

Qualitative Information About Market Risk

Market risk is a broad term related to economic losses due to adverse changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is
inherent to all financial instruments. SEC disclosure rules focus on only one element of market risk—price risk. Price risk
relates to changes in the level of prices due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates or other factors
that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price underlying the financial instrument. The Company’s primary market
risk exposures are to changes in interest rates and equity prices.

The Company manages its interest rate exposures with respect to Investments in Fixed Maturities by investing primarily in
investment-grade securities of moderate effective duration.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2015 2014
Assets:
Investments:
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2015 - $4,560.7; 2014 - $4,341.7)................ $ 48523 $ 4,777.6
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2015 - $486.9; 2014 - $561.5).....ccceeinreiiieeeene 523.2 632.2
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative Undistributed
BTMINES....oviivieiieeieiieiieii ettt ettt ettt ettt st e st e st esaesbes s essessessessessessessensenbesbensenbensensensensn 190.6 184.8
Fair Value Option INVESTMENTS...........c.ccoeiiiiieieieieieieieteeeeeseeessesesessesessessessessessessessessens 164.5 533
Short-term Investments at Cost which Approximates Fair Value..........cccccocvevvevierienienienieniennenn. 255.7 342.2
Other INVESTMENES .......eiuieeiieiieieeieit e eiete et e st esteeetesseeseessesseeseessessaesseessesssesseensesssesseansenns 443.2 449.6
TOtAl INVESTMENTS. ....cuvviiiiiiie ittt ettt ettt e ettt e e e et e e e este e e e esteeesesaeeesssaeesssnseeessnseeessnaeeesnnes 6,429.5 6,439.7
CASI L.ttt ettt ettt s ettt b e st e st e st e st e st e st e st e st e s s erbeabeab e s s e b e st e b et e b enbe b enbesbensenns 161.7 76.1
Receivables from POlICYROIACTS .........ccviiiiiiiciiiiiciecicieeeetee ettt ees 3324 295.3
Other RECEIVADIES ......uveiieiiiiieciieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e e esae et esbeesbeesaesseessesssesseesseessesseensenns 193.2 187.0
Deferred Policy ACqUISItION COSES......cc.vivuieieiieriieieetiesieeieetiesteeseesesseeseessesseessesssessaessesssessasssenns 316.4 303.3
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt ettt s e st et e b e s e b e st esensesessesesseneesensesenseneas 323.0 311.8
Current and Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS.....c.ueveieieieieieieieieieeetete ettt 414 —
OTNET ASSEES ...c.euetinieiiieiiitctetet ettt ettt ettt ettt eb ettt ettt ettt ebe s eae s ese et et eae e enesneneas 238.5 220.2
TOLAL ASSEES....eeiieeeie ittt ettt e ettt e e et e e et e e eaaeeeeeaaeeeesaateseeaateeeanaseeeenaseesanateeeanateesaaaeesanaeeeenes $ 8,036.1 $ 7,833.4
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Insurance Reserves:
Life and Health .........cccciiiiiiiiiiiicieceete ettt ettt aenaens $ 3,341.0 $ 3,273.7
Property and Casualty .........ccoccuiiuiioiiiiieiiieeieee ettt ettt ettt e ere e ens 862.8 733.9
Total INSUTANCE RESEIVES ....eeiieeiiiiieiie ettt e et e e e et e e e et e e eeaeeeseeaeesssaeesssaeesenans 4,203.8 4,007.6
Unearned PremiUmS..........coeiveiiiiiiiinieiieinee ettt ettt ettt 613.1 536.9
Liabilities for INCOME TAXES .......c.cvueuirieiriirieiinieiirteirteeiert ettt ettt ettt 3.8 36.5
Debt at Amortized Cost (Fair Value: 2015 - $781.3; 2014 - $804.4).....ccoooveeveereereeeeeeeeeeeeen. 750.6 752.1
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities. ........c.ccuevverierieiieiienieieieieieieieeeete et saeeens 472.4 409.6
oL F1 B BT o T 1T 6,043.7 5,742.7
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value Per Share, 100 Million Shares Authorized; 51,326,751
Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 52,418,246 Shares Issued and
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 ........ccvoviiieieieieieieieeei ettt se s naas 5.1 52
Paid-in Capital ......ccocciiiiiiiiiciciceeeee ettt ettt ettt sa et et e b b e b e besbenbensens 654.0 660.1
Retained EAIMiNgS .......ccccciiiiieiiiieiciieieiteiteit ettt et ettt st eseessesaesaessessessessessessessessessessessassens 1,209.0 1,202.7
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME...........cveieieieieieieieieieteiee e saeaens 124.3 222.7
Total Shareholders” EQUILY.......cccccveierierieieieieieietetetetetestestessessessessessessesessessessessessessessessessenss 1,992.4 2,090.7
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” EQUILY.........cccvecueeierieiiieieiieieeieseecie et see e $ 8,036.1 $ 7,833.4

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2015 2014 2013
Revenues:
Barned PremiUMIS . ....o.oeie it e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeenaane $2,009.6 $1,862.2 $2,025.8
Net Investment INCOME..........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiieieie ettt 302.6 309.1 314.7
Other INCOME .....eovieiieiieiieiieieietetet ettt ettt ettt et et e s e s et essessessensessensensensensensas 3.7 1.4 0.8
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENES ..........ccoevveieieieieieieieieieiee e 52.1 39.1 99.1
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment LOSSES..........c.ccevvevievierierierierieieieiesieiesienens (27.4) (15.2) (15.8)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income...........cceevevvevveienenen. 0.2 — 1.9
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............ccceecvevievieeieniesieecienieeeieseenn (27.2) (15.2) (13.9)
TOtAl REVEIUES .....uvvviiiieiie ettt ettt e ettt e e et e e s s eaae e e esaaeeesesaeeesenaseesentsessanaeeas 2,340.8 2,196.6 2,426.5
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses................. 1,467.6 1,261.7 1,357.2
INSUTANCE EXPENSES......uviiiiiiieiiiiieeiieie ettt et eie et e et esteesaeessesseebeessessaessaessesssessaessens 645.1 628.4 654.4
Write-0ff Of LONG-livVed ASSELS.....cciivuiiiieiieiieiieieet ettt et essesea e as 11.1 54.6 —
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt............cccceeieiiiiiiiieiiiceccceeee e 9.1 — —
Interest and Other EXPENSES ........ccieviiiiiriiiiieiicieieeieete ettt ve e eeesre b e essesae s e 107.6 91.7 100.5
TOtAl EXPOINISES....ccuviiuiiiieiiceteetieie et ettt et este e e et esteesbe e st e seeseessesssesseessasssessaessesssesseensenns 2,240.5 2,036.4 2,112.1
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes .........cccecvevvereeierienieierienienieeennen 100.3 160.2 314.4
INCOME TaAX EXPENSE......iiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiietieie ettt ettt ettt ettt ae e e teeseesseeasesbeesseeesesseenseans (20.1) (47.6) (99.9)
Income from Continuing OPErations............ceevuievuieieerieireeieeteesreeteeteesreeseeeesseesseeeesseeseens 80.2 112.6 214.5
Income from Discontinued OPErations ............cc.ccueeieerieiureieeeenieeieeeesreeeeeeeereeseeeesseeneens 5.5 1.9 3.2
INEE INCOIMIE ..ottt ettt bbbttt bbbttt se s ese e sesens $ 857 $ 1145 $ 2177
Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC vttt ettt een $ 155 § 208 § 3.5
DAIULCA ... $ 155 § 208 $ 374
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt e st et et et et e s b e st et e st et ensentenbenbenbentn $ 165 $§ 212 $§ 381
DHIUIEA w..oovovvvvveeseeeeeeeeee s $ 165 S 212 § 380
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share ..............cccoovoveieieveviieeeeeeceeeeeee e $ 09 $ 09 $ 096

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For The Years Ended December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

NEETICOMNIE ... ettt ettt ettt $ 857 §$ 1145 § 2177

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES) ......ccceririeieieieieieieeeieeeeesseeessessessessesessessessessenes (177.3) 234.6 (362.8)

Foreign Currency Translation AdjuStMeEnts..........c.cccecveeeieieieeeieieieieeeeesesseseseesaeeens (1.4) (1.0) 0.2

Decrease (Increase) in Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs..........cccevevvenvennnn. 26.1 (98.5) 86.6
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes.........c.ccveveieievievierienienienieiennn (152.6) 135.1 (276.0)
Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPense)........ccoecvevveeierieniieiienienieeieeeeseeiens 54.2 47.7) 98.6
Other Comprehensive INCOmME (LOSS)......eccvirierieiieiesiieieeieeieie ettt ae e ees 98.4) 87.4 177.4)
Total Comprehensive INCOmME (LOSS)......c.cuveviriirieerieierieieeeeteeeteee ettt $ @127 $ 2019 $ 403

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Operating Activities:
INEE INCOIME ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et b sttt ettt se e seseseseseneseseaens $ 857 $ 1145 $ 2177
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Policy Acquisition COStS........ccvevveververierierierierienieieneen (13.1) 0.4) 0.5
Amortization of Intangible Assets ACQUITEd........c.eevuerieriieiiinierieeieeeeeee e 15.4 7.2 8.3
Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments.............c.ccccceene..e. (19.0) (9.0) (26.4)
Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability
INVESTMENLS ....eontiiiiiiiccit ettt ettt 8.6 21.7 15.4
Decrease (Increase) in Value of Fair Value Option Investments reported in Investment
TNCOMIE. ...ttt 0.3) 0.7 —
Amortization of Investment Securities and Depreciation of Investment Real Estate ..... 16.1 15.4 16.2
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INnVeStMents..........cceceeierierieecierieeeeeeeee e (52.1) (39.1) (99.1)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............ccoecveveeiierienieiieeierieeeie e 27.2 15.2 13.9
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt...........cccoeciriiiieiieieieeceeeeeeee e 9.1 — —
Depreciation of Property and EQUIPMENt ..........cccoveiieiiiieieeieeeeeeeeee e 13.5 16.0 17.4
Write-offs Of LoNG-liVed ASSELS.....cueiiereieiieieeieieeie ettt e et ee e be e e 11.1 54.6 —
Decrease in Other ReCeiVabIes.......cceoiiiriririiiiiiiiieieeeeeee e 49.6 46.2 43.5
Increase (Decrease) in Insurance RESEIVES ........covvveieriieiiieieeieiieieeeesie e 39.6 (54.7) (72.5)
Decrease in Unearned Premilms. .........ccveuieierienieeieeieieeieeiesieeieeresseeaessse e essessneenes 9.4) (62.0) (52.0)
Change in INCOME TaAXES........eviriririiriiiiniiniieieeieeieet ettt ettt (21.8) 11.2 57.9
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities..........cccceoevverienieiennnee. 22.6 (20.3) (54.8)
ORET, NEL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt s e e e se st e st et e e ese s eseeseneeseneenes 32.2 16.4 36.1
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACHVITIES ........c.ccveuerueuirieuirenieenieiieieieeeeesereseeeere e seenene 215.0 133.6 122.1
Investing Activities:
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturities.........c..cccoveereirenreenieencinennecnnenenns 627.8 573.7 664.4
Purchases Of FIXed Maturities .........cueovieieeieriieieeiiecieeieeieeete ettt ste e eeresteeseesesaeeseesneeeas (681.3) (553.0) (744.5)
Sales Of EQUILY SECUTTLIES........cueieieieieieieieieieteteteit ettt ettt 238.4 245.3 182.1
Purchases of EQUItY SECUITHES .....ee.eeuieuiririeieiieiieiieieiietet ettt aens (134.0) (235.2) (213.4)
Acquisition and Improvements of Investment Real Estate ..........ccccecvevieieieieienieieienen. (1.8) 2.1 (5.4)
Sales of Investment Real EState .........cccecueveiieieieieieieieieeeeeee e 7.7 0.9 102.7
Sales of and Return of Investment of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments......... 329 55.2 31.3
Acquisitions of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments ...........cccccevvevierienierieniennee. (324 (21.4) (20.5)
Sales of Fair Value Option INVEStMENTS........c.ecveveieieieieieieieieieieieieeeieeeae oo neens — 6.9 —
Purchases of Fair Value Option INVESTMENtS..........c.ccveierieieienieieieieieieieeeeeeeiesiesieeens (111.0) (60.9) —
Decrease (Increase) in Short-term INVEStMENTS .........c.ccveveveieienieieieieieieieeeeesieienieneens 104.9 (63.9) 41.8
Acquisition of Businesses, Net of Cash ACQUITEd........c.ccuevveierierierieierieieieieieeeeiens (57.6) — —
Disposition of Business, Net of Cash DiSpoSed..........coceveeririerienieiinieceeeeceeee e — 8.9 3.8
Increase in Other INVEStMENTS ........c..ecviiiiiiiieeiiecie ettt sre e e ebeeeeve e e 3.2) (8.0) 9.1
Purchase of Corporate-owned Life INSUTance..........ccceecereeniiieiiinieiecieceeeeee e (7.5) (33.5) —
AcqUISItION OF SOFEWATE ......cc.eeiiiiiiiiieii ettt 8.9 (11.3) (15.2)
ORET, INEE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt s bbb bt be e eseete e (2.6) (5.9 (13.2)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing ACtIVILIES .......ceeeueereeeiieeieniieieeieeieie et (28.6) (104.3) 4.8
Financing Activities:
Net Proceeds from Issuances of Debt ........ccccoceviriririiiiiiiiiiicicceeeeeeeee 345.8 144.0 —
Repayments 0Ff DEDt .........cooiiiiiieieeee ettt (357.3) — (5.5
Common Stock RepUIChases..........coveiieiirieiieieeieeee e (45.0) (114.0) (100.4)
Dividends and Dividend Equivalents Paid.............ccoooeeeieiiniiieieieeeeeeeeeee e (49.7) (51.8) (54.9)
Cash ExXercise 0f StOCK OPtiONS ........cccviecierieriieieeierieeie ettt ee e e e seeese e nnas 39 0.5 1.7
(050 1<) o8 A\ SOOI 1.5 1.6 2.4
Net Cash Used by FINancing ACHVItIES ........evueeeverieriieieeierieieeieseesie et seeeseeeeesseesseesaessaeseeas (100.8) (19.7) (156.7)
Increase (Decrease) iN Cash........cocuiiiiiieriieieciecee ettt e e ebeesseenas 85.6 9.6 (29.8)
Cash, BegINNINg Of YOI ........ccoccieiiiiiiiiieiieie ettt ettt ettt et e st se e b e saessaesseessenes 76.1 66.5 96.3
CaSh, ENA OF YBATL......uiiieiiiiii ettt ettt e st e st e s aaeesaaeesasesnsesnneesnneens $ 1617 $§ 761 $  66.5

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For The Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Accumulated
Number Other Total

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN MILLIONS, of Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS Shares Stock Capital Earnings Income Equity
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2012 ........................ 585 $ 58 $§ 7250 $ 1,1182 $ 3127 $ 2,161.7
Net INCOME ..o — — 217.7 — 217.7
Other Comprehensive Loss (Note 12).......cccccevevuenene — — — (177.4) (177.4)
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — (54.9) — (54.9)
Repurchases of Common Stock ............ccccceeueienann. (3.0 0.2) (36.8) (63.4) — (100.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 10) — 5.5 — — 5.5
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOE 10)..eoeiereierniereieeeiiseissesseessseseeesesesees 0.2 — 1.1 (1.8) — 0.7)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2013 ........................ 557 $ 56 $§ 6948 §$ 12158 $ 1353  § 2,051.5
Net INCOME .....ovviiiiiiicic e — — 114.5 — 114.5
Other Comprehensive Income (Note 12) ................... — — — 87.4 87.4
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — (51.8) — (51.8)
Repurchases of Common Stock .........ccocevveeveeereniennnne (3.2) 0.4) (40.2) (74.9) — (115.5)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 10).............. — 6.4 — — 6.4
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(Note 10) (0.1) — (0.9) (0.9) — (1.8)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2014 ........................ 524§ 52§ 660.1 $ 12027 $ 2227 $ 2,090.7
Net INCOME ... — — — 85.7 — 85.7
Other Comprehensive Loss (Note 12).......ccccevvnenee. — — — — 98.4) 98.4)
Cash Dividends and Dividend Equivalents to

Shareholders ($0.96 per share)..........cccccveuevneee. — — — 49.7) — 49.7)
Repurchases of Common Stock ..........cccceeeeiencnennne. (1.2) (0.1) (15.5) (27.9) — (43.5)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (Note 10) — — 6.5 — — 6.5
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(NOLE 10)..veeveerierieeiie e 0.1 — 2.9 1.8) — 1.1
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2015 ........................ 513§ 51 § 6540 $ 1,209.0 § 1243 $ 1,992.4

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statements included herein have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries
(individually and collectively referred to herein as the “Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ materially from
those estimates and assumptions.

The fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities, Investments in Equity Securities, Fair Value Option
Investments, Short-term Investments, Trading Securities and Debt are estimated using a hierarchal framework which prioritizes
and ranks market price observability. The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value
for Cash, Short-term Investments and certain other assets and other liabilities because of their short-term nature. The actual
value at which financial instruments could actually be sold or settled with a willing buyer or seller may differ from estimated
fair values depending on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, current and future economic conditions, the quantity
sold or settled, the presence of an active market and the availability of a willing buyer or seller.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance is inherently
uncertain, and the actual ultimate net cost of known and unknown claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts
reserved. The reserving process is particularly imprecise for claims involving long-tailed exposures, which may not be
discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Management considers a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to, past claims experience, current claim trends and relevant legal, economic and social conditions, in
estimating reserves. A change in any one or more factors is likely to result in the ultimate net claim costs to differ from the
estimated reserve. Changes in such estimates may be material and would be recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when such estimates change.

The process of determining whether an asset is impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows, operating
results and market conditions. Projections are inherently uncertain, and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ
materially from projected cash flows. As a result, the Company’s assessment of the impairment of long-lived assets is
susceptible to the risk inherent in making such projections.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Investments

Investments in Fixed Maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks. Investments in Fixed Maturities are
classified as available for sale and reported at fair value. Net Investment Income, including amortization of purchased
premiums and accretion of market discounts, on Investments in Fixed Maturities is recognized as interest over the period that it
is earned using the effective yield method.

Investments in Equity Securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and other equity interests and are
reported at fair value. Investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks with readily determinable fair values are
classified as available for sale. Dividend income on investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks is recognized
on the ex-dividend date. Other equity interests primarily consist of exchange traded funds and interests in limited liability
companies and limited partnerships in which the Company’s interests are deemed minor. The Company’s share of distributed
earnings from other equity interests is recognized as dividend income when received.

Unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of applicable deferred income taxes, on fixed maturities and equity securities
classified as available for sale is reported in AOCI included in Shareholders’ Equity.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting.

Fair Value Option Investments include investments in certain hedge funds, which the Company has elected the fair value option
(“FVO”) to account for such investments. Under the FVO method of accounting, the Company reports changes in the fair value
of such investments in Net Investment Income in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The hedge funds are designed to
preserve liquidity, while providing higher returns than Kemper would otherwise expect to earn had it invested in other short-
term investments.

Short-term Investments include fixed maturities that mature within one year from the date of purchase, U.S. Treasury bills,
money market mutual funds and repurchase agreements. Short-term Investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair
value.

Other Investments primarily include loans to policyholders and real estate. Loans to policyholders are carried at unpaid
principal balance. Real estate is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Real estate is depreciated over the estimated
useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of depreciation. Real estate is evaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss on real estate is recognized when the
carrying value exceeds the sum of undiscounted projected future cash flows as well as the fair value, or, in the case of a
property classified as held for sale, when the carrying value exceeds the fair value, net of costs to sell.

Gains and losses on sales of investments are computed on the specific identification method and are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the sales occur. The Company regularly reviews its investment
portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than temporary. Losses are computed
on the specific identification method and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the decline is
determined to be other than temporary. The portion of an impairment of an investment in a fixed maturity attributed to a credit
loss is reported in Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Income, with the portion
of the impairment that is not attributed to a credit loss reported in AOCI.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks the market observability of inputs used in fair value
measurements. Market price observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability and the
characteristics specific to the asset or liability being measured. Assets and liabilities with readily available, active, quoted
market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree
of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. The Company classifies the inputs
used to measure fair value into one of three levels as follows:

*  Level 1 — Quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities;

*  Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-derived prices whose
inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable; and

+ Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability being measured.

Observable inputs are based on market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the
Company’s market assumptions. Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases,
the inputs used to measure an asset or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Such determination requires significant management judgment. However, in accordance
with GAAP, the Company is not permitted to use management judgment to adjust quoted market prices in an active market.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs directly associated with the successful acquisition of business, principally commissions and certain premium taxes and
policy issuance costs, are deferred. Costs deferred on property and casualty insurance contracts and short duration health
insurance contracts are amortized over the period in which premiums are earned. Costs deferred on traditional life insurance
products and other long-duration insurance contracts are primarily amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

related policies in proportion to the ratio of the annual premiums to the total premiums anticipated, which is estimated using the
same assumptions used in calculating policy reserves.

Goodwill

The cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of net assets acquired is reported as Goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
rather is tested annually for recoverability or when certain triggering events require testing.

Insurance Reserves

Reserves for losses and LAE on property and casualty insurance coverage and health insurance coverage represent the
estimated claim cost and loss adjustment expense necessary to cover the ultimate net cost of investigating and settling all losses
incurred and unpaid. Such estimates are based on individual case estimates for reported claims and estimates for incurred but
not reported (“IBNR”) losses. These estimates are adjusted in the aggregate for ultimate loss expectations based on historical
experience patterns and current economic trends, with any change in the estimated ultimate liabilities being reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period of change. Changes in such estimates may be material.

For traditional life insurance products, the reserves for future policy benefits are estimated on the net level premium method
using assumptions as of the issue date for mortality, interest, policy lapses and expenses, including provisions for adverse
mortality. These assumptions vary by such characteristics as plan, age at issue and policy duration. Mortality assumptions are
based on the Company’s historical experience and industry standards. Interest rate assumptions principally range from 3% to
7%. Lapse rate assumptions are based on actual and industry experience. Insurance Reserves for life insurance products also
includes an estimate of the Company’s liability for unpaid life insurance claims and claims adjustment expenses, which
includes an estimate for IBNR life insurance claims. Except when required by applicable law, the Company does not utilize a
database of reported deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration or a comparable database in its operations,
including to determine its IBNR liability for life insurance products. Instead of using such a database, the Company calculates
its IBNR liability for life insurance products using Company-specific historical information, which includes analyzing average
paid claims and the average lag between date of death and the date reported to the Company for claims that due proof of death
has been provided.

Other Receivables
Other Receivables primarily include reinsurance recoverables and accrued investment income.
Other Assets

Other Assets primarily include property and equipment, internal use software, insurance licenses acquired in business
combinations, the value of other intangible assets acquired, corporate-owned life insurance and prepaid expenses.

Property and equipment is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets, generally using the straight-line or double declining
balance methods of depreciation depending on the asset involved.

Internal use software is amortized over the useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of amortization. Write-offs of
Long-lived Assets for the year ended December 31, 2015 was a charge of $11.1 million to write off the costs of a computer
software development project that was abandoned by the Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Write-offs of
Long-lived Assets for the year ended December 31, 2014 was a charge of $54.6 million to write off certain software for the
Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment after the Company determined that it was no longer probable that the
software would be fully implemented.

Insurance licenses acquired in business combinations and other indefinite life intangibles are not amortized, but rather tested
periodically for recoverability. Insurance Expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 includes a charge of $1.4 million to
write down the value of insurance licenses acquired for one of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to its estimated fair value.

Corporate-owned life insurance is reported at cash surrender value with changes due to cost of insurance and investment
experience reported in Other Income in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in life insurance in force acquired (“Life VIF”)
based on actuarial estimates of the present value of estimated net cash flows. Life VIF was $32.5 million and $36.5 million at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Life VIF is amortized using the effective interest method using interest rates
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

consistent with the rates in the underlying insurance contracts. The Company estimates that it will record Life VIF amortization,
net of interest, of $3.4 million in 2016, $3.2 million in 2017, $2.8 million in 2018, $2.4 million in 2019 and $2.0 million in
2020. The Company evaluates the Life VIF for recoverability annually.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance Customer
Relationships Acquired (“P&C Customer Relationships”) based on the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
customer relationships acquired. P&C Customer Relationships was $11.2 million and $13.3 million at December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively. P&C Customer Relationships is amortized using the effective interest method. P&C Customer Relationships
is tested for recoverability using undiscounted projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated fair value if the
carrying value exceeds the sum of such projections of undiscounted cash flows.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance Broker
Relationships Acquired (“P&C Broker Relationships™) based on the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
broker relationships acquired. P&C Broker Relationships was $18.1 million at December 31, 2015. P&C Broker Relationships
is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. P&C Broker Relationships is tested for recoverability using undiscounted
projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated fair value if the carrying value exceeds the sum of such
projections of undiscounted cash flows.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities primarily include accrued salaries and commissions, pension benefits, postretirement
medical benefits and accrued taxes, licenses and fees.

Recognition of Earned Premiums and Related Expenses

Property and casualty insurance and short duration health insurance premiums are deferred when written and recognized and
earned ratably over the periods to which the premiums relate. Unearned Premiums represent the portion of the premiums
written related to the unexpired portion of policies in force which has been deferred and is reported as a liability. The Company
performs a premium deficiency analysis typically at a product line level, namely automobile insurance, homeowners insurance
and other insurance, which is consistent with the manner in which the Company acquires and services policies and measures
profitability. Anticipated investment income is excluded from such analysis. A premium deficiency is recognized when the sum
of expected claim costs, claim adjustment expenses, unamortized deferred policy acquisition costs and maintenance costs
exceeds the related unearned premiums by first reducing related deferred policy acquisition costs to an amount, but not below
zero, at which the premium deficiency would not exist. If a premium deficiency remains after first reducing deferred policy
acquisition costs, a premium deficiency reserve is established and reported as a liability in the Company’s financial statements.
The Company determined that a premium deficiency existed at December 31, 2015 with respect to Alliance United’s
automobile insurance and recorded a charge of $9.0 million to reduce related deferred policy acquisition costs to the level at
which the premium deficiency did not exist.

Traditional life insurance premiums are recognized as revenue when due. Policyholders’ benefits are associated with related
premiums to result in recognition of profits over the periods for which the benefits are provided using the net level premium
method.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses include provisions for future policy benefits under
life and certain accident and health insurance contracts and provisions for reported claims, estimates for claims incurred but not
reported and loss adjustment expenses. Benefit payments in excess of policy account balances are expensed.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries reinsure certain risks above certain retention levels with
other insurance enterprises. These reinsurance agreements do not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their legal
obligations to the policyholder. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are included in Other Receivables.

Gains related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the life of the underlying reinsured
policies. Losses related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are recognized immediately. Any gain or loss associated with
reinsurance agreements for which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have been legally relieved of their obligations to the
policyholder is recognized in the period of relief.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)
Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is maintained for the portion of deferred income tax assets that
the Company does not expect to recover. Increases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as
income tax expense. Decreases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as income tax benefit.
The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which
the change is enacted.

The Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken, or expected to be
taken, in an income tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In January 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2015-01, Income Statement—Extraordinary
and Unusual Items (Subtopic 225-20): Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary
Items. The Company adopted ASU 2015-01 in the first quarter of 2015 and applied its provisions retrospectively. The
retrospective application had no impact on the Company’s previously issued financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis. The
amendments in ASU 2015-02 affect reporting entities that are required to evaluate whether they should consolidate certain legal
entities. All legal entities are subject to reevaluation under the revised consolidation model. Specifically, the amendments
modify the evaluation of whether limited partnerships and similar legal entities are variable interest entities (“VIEs”) or voting
interest entities while also eliminating the presumption that a general partner should consolidate a limited partnership. ASU
2015-02 may also affect the consolidation analysis of reporting entities that are involved with VIEs, particularly those that have
fee arrangements and related party relationships. ASU 2015-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015
and interim periods within those years with early adoption being permissible. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
of this guidance on its financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation
of Debt Issuance Costs. ASU 2015-03 simplifies the presentation of debt issuance costs by requiring that they be presented in
the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The
recognition and measurement guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected by ASU 2015-03. The Company adopted ASU
2015-03 in the first quarter of 2015 and applied its provisions retrospectively. The retrospective application had no impact on
the Company’s previously issued financial statements.

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-09, Financial Services—Insurance (Topic 944): Disclosures about Short-Duration
Contracts. ASU 2015-09 requires insurers to provide additional disclosures about short-duration insurance contracts, focusing
particularly on the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses. Insurers will be required to disclose tables
showing incurred and paid claims development information by accident year for the number of years that claims typically
remain outstanding, although not to exceed ten years, as well as a reconciliation of this information to the balance sheet.
Additional disclosures will also be required on the total of incurred-but-not-reported liabilities plus expected development on
reported claims, reserving methodologies, quantitative information about claim frequency, qualitative description of
methodologies used for determining claim frequency and average annual percentage payout of incurred claims by age. ASU
2015-09 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 31, 2015 and interim periods within annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2016. Except for the retrospective application of additional disclosure requirements, adoption of ASU
2015-09 will not impact the Company’s financial statements.

In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Simplifying the Accounting for
Measurement-Period Adjustments. ASU 2015-16 simplifies the accounting for measurement-period adjustments in a business
combination by requiring the acquirer to recognize adjustments to provisional amounts that are identified during the
measurement period in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. The effect on earnings as a result
of the change to the provisional amounts, calculated as if the accounting had been completed as of the acquisition date, must be
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recorded in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined rather than retrospectively. The effects, by line
item, if any, must be disclosed. The Company prospectively adopted ASU 2015-16 in the third quarter of 2015.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments—QOverall (Subtopic 825-10).: Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendments in this ASU address certain aspects of recognition,
measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments. Most significantly, the ASU requires equity investments
(except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) to be
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. However, an entity may choose to measure equity
investments that do not have readily determinable fair values at cost minus impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting
from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a similar investment of the same issuer. The ASU also
simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative
assessment to identify impairment. When a qualitative assessment indicates that impairment exists, an entity is required to
measure the investment at fair value. For public business entities, the amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company currently records its
Investments in Equity Securities at fair value with net unrealized appreciation or depreciation reported in AOCI in
Shareholders’ Equity. Adoption of this ASU will require the changes in fair value on Investments in Equity Securities with
readily determinable fair values to be recorded in net income. For those Investments in Equity Securities that do not have
readily determinable fair values, the Company may choose either of the methods noted earlier in this paragraph. The Company
will not be able to determine the cumulative-effect adjustment to its balance sheet until the ASU is adopted and elections on
Investments in Equity Securities that do not have readily determinable fair values are made. Subsequent to adoption, the ASU is
expected to cause increased volatility in the Company’s statement of income.

All recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates prior to January 1, 2016 have been adopted by the
Company. There were no adoptions of such accounting pronouncements in 2015 that had a material impact on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. The impacts of adoption of ASU 2015-09, Financial Services—Insurance (Topic 944):
Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts, and ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments—QOverall (Subtopic 825-10):
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, are discussed above. The Company does not
expect the adoption of all other recently issued accounting pronouncements with effective dates after December 31, 2015 to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

NOTE 3. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On April 30, 2015, Kemper acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Alliance United Group and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Alliance United Insurance Company and Alliance United Insurance Services, (individually and collectively
referred to herein as “Alliance United”) in a cash transaction for a total purchase price of $71.0 million, of which $17.5 million
is being held in escrow to secure the sellers’ potential indemnification obligations under the purchase agreement. After
completing the transaction, Kemper contributed $75.0 million to support the book of business acquired and commuted a quota
share reinsurance agreement whereby Alliance United ceded a portion of its business to an unaffiliated reinsurer. The results of
Alliance United are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date of acquisition and are reported in the
Company’s Property & Casualty Insurance segment. Alliance United is a provider of nonstandard personal automobile
insurance in California. As a result of the acquisition, the Company increased its presence in the California nonstandard
automobile insurance market by gaining access to additional brokers and gained expertise in serving the Hispanic market.
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The Company has completed the allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The final
allocation of the purchase price to the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

DB N T 734 1S) LRSS $ 187.0
CASI 1.ttt ettt ettt e e teete e bttt et e e st e st e st e Rt e st eRe e st e st e st e Rt esten b e st ensesbenbenbenbesbesbenbanbenbenbenbenbensanes 134
Receivables from POLICYNOLACTS .........ciciiiiiiiiieiieieieieietetee ettt ettt et et e b e s e s esbesbesbessesbassessessassassensenes 44.4
Other RECEIVADIES.......ccuiiviiiiiticiiciiciieieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt e bt e st e st eseeseesae st essessessessessessessassassassassassessassassassassassensanes 52.8
Value of Intangible Assets Acquired (Reported in Other ASSELS).......cc.cveieierierieierieieierieiesieseesteseestessessessessesaesaens 32.6
GOOAWIIL ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e bt e bt e st e st essese e st essessessessessessessessessessessassassassassassassasbessessassessessanes 11.2
CUITENE INCOME TAXES.....cuvieiieiiieiieieeieeie et te st et et esttebeeste et ebeesseesseseassesssesseasseessesseasseassesssesseassesssesseensenssassennsensns 14
ONET ASSELES. .. eetieuiiieiestiettete et eet e et e et e bt ebe e et e st esseetsessaesseesseassesseassaassenseesseesse s s esseessenssenseessenssenseassesssesseensesssenseensennns 5.9
Property and Casualty INSUIANCE RESETVES..........cciiiiriiiiieieeieiieieee ettt ste b e esbeseeesbeesseseaesbeenbessaesseenseeens (155.8)
UNEANEA PIOIMIUINIS .....ooovviiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt ettt e et e e e et e eeteeeeteeeaaeeeaseeesseeeteeeteeeaseeeaseeesseenseeeseeeareeeaseeaseeenteean (85.6)
LiabilitieS fOr INCOME TaAXES.......ccoiiiirieirieeti ettt ettt ettt et ete e et e e eteeeeteeeteeeateeeaseeetseeeseeebeeeaseesareeetseenseeenteean 1.5)
Accrued Expenses and Other LIaDIlItIeSs ..........cccuovuiiiiieiiiiieiieiesie ettt ettt ste et setesteesbesesesseesseessesaaesseessessaesseens (34.8)
TOtal PUIChASE PTICE ....cveiiiiiiiiiiiciiiciitecc ettt ettt sttt sa et naene s $ 71.0

Under the purchase agreement, the Company is indemnified up to $12.5 million on an after-tax basis for, among other things,
breaches of customary representations and warranties, loss and LAE reserve development and pre-closing income taxes. In
addition, the Company is indemnified, up to $5.0 million on an after-tax basis, for certain employment related matters. Other
Receivables in the preceding table include an indemnification receivable of $5.4 million. Other Receivables in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2015 include an indemnification receivable of $15.9 million.

The carrying amount, net of accumulated amortization, of the intangible assets acquired by class at December 31, 2015 and the
acquisition date are presented below.

Dec 31, Acqlﬁ;ition
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 Date
P & C Broker RelationShiPs ........cccoeiiuiiiiieieieieieieteteietteit et et aesaessesaesaessesaesaesessesessensessensensensens $ 181 $ 18.9
Value of In FOTCE POLICIES.......ceiiiieiieiiciieiicieietetee ettt ettt ettt e s e s ebensessensensansans 0.2 9.2
ORT ittt ettt te ettt e te et e ete et e e s e e st e st et s et s e st e st e st e s s en s e st enbessensenbensensenbensensans 3.7 4.5
Value of Intangible ASSEts ACUITEA.........ccccieieieieieieiieieteieeee et ete e eteteaesessesesesessessessessensens $ 220 $ 32.6

P & C Broker Relationships are being amortized over 15 years on a straight-line basis. Value of In Force Policies (“P & C VIF”)
is being amortized pro ratably as premiums are earned over the remaining terms of the underlying policies. Other intangible
assets acquired are generally being amortized on a straight-line basis over 2 years to 5 years.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2015 were:

Amortized Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities..........cccvevenenee. $ 2980 $ 262 $ 3.6) $ 320.6
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS .........cccviiiuiieiiiieiiieie ettt 1,513.7 111.6 2.7 1,622.6
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOLES ......c.ececuiiiiiiieiicciie ettt ettt 2,651.5 202.0 40.7) 2,812.8
Redeemable Preferred Stocks .......coecvivierieiiieieieeeeeee e 3.7 0.1 — 3.8
Collateralized Loan Obliations ...........cccceevureierienieeierieieeieseeieeeeseeenens 90.0 0.3 3.0) 87.3
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed.........cccoeevererenininininieieieieieeeeeen 3.8 1.4 — 5.2
Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s. .........c.oooveeeeereeeeeerieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $4560.7 $ 341.6 $ (50.0) $ 4,852.3

Included in the fair value of Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2015 are $3.8 million of
collateralized debt obligations, $1.3 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities and $0.1 million of
other asset-backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2014 were:

Amortized Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............c.ccveu.... $§ 3152 § 323 % (2.0) $§ 3455
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS .........eiivviiiiiiiieceeiee et 1,352.5 126.4 (1.8) 1,477.1
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOTES ......cooviiiiiiiie ittt ettt e et eeseaaeeeeaneesennee 2,599.3 294.3 (15.1) 2,878.5
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .........ccoeveieirieininieieeeieeeeeeee e 5.9 0.8 — 6.7
Collateralized Loan Obligations ............cceceeeeirerieieieeeieieieieeeeeeeeenees 64.9 0.3 (0.8) 64.4
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed...........cocveirvirinieieieieieieieeeeeienen 3.9 1.5 — 54
Investments in Fixed Maturities............coovoieveiereiereierieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeev e $4341.7 $§ 4556 $ (19.7) $4,777.6

Included in the fair value of Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2014 are $3.9 million of
collateralized debt obligations, $1.3 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities and $0.2 million of
other asset-backed securities.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities included unsettled purchases of Investments in Fixed Maturities of $5.6 million at
December 31, 2015, all of which settled in the following month. There were no unsettled purchases of Investments in Fixed
Maturities at December 31, 2014. There were no unsettled sales of Investments in Fixed Maturities at either December 31, 2015
or December 31, 2014.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2015 by
contractual maturity were:

Amortized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Fair Value
DUE 1N ONE Y QAT OF LLESS.....ueieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eae et eteeete et e eneeete et e eneeeseeeteeaeeeneeereenneenes $ 524 § 5406
Due after One Year t0 FIVE YEAIS......cucoiuiiiiiieiieiciie ettt ettt ettt et e e eteeeaae e eaeeeeteeeteeenveeeaveeeaseenns 806.8 840.2
Due after FIVE YEars 10 TN Y AIS......uuviiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e e ettt e e e et e e e eateeesesaaeesenaeesssaseesenaeeesnes 1,475.3 1,507.1
DUE AEET TN Y ATS....ccvviiiiiiieeieeiie ettt ettt e et e e e et e e e s eatseesenteeeeesaseesesaaeesenaseesssaseessnaeeesnes 2,009.5 2,227.9
Mortgage- and Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date...........cccoecevveceneninenecnencns 216.7 222.5
Investments 1N FIXEA IMAUITTIES ......coovviiiiieiiie ettt ettt eeeeae e e et e e e eaae e e e eaaeeesssaaeesenaaeeseaseesenaeeesnes $ 4,560.7 $ 4,852.3

The expected maturities of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investments in Mortgage-
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and Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date at December 31, 2015 consisted of securities issued by the
Government National Mortgage Association with a fair value of $107.0 million, securities issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association with a fair value of $17.1 million, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
with a fair value of $6.0 million and securities of other non-governmental issuers with a fair value of $92.4 million.

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2015
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real EState.............cccoocveviioieieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 808 § 49 $ 08 $ 849
Other INAUSIIIES ...c..eeiviieiiceeeeeee ettt et 17.1 2.7 0.8) 19.0
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate............c.cooveeiiiiiieiiieiieeecce e 18.9 5.3 (1.0) 23.2
Other INAUSLIICS ... eevieiiiiiecii ettt steebe e sseebe b e sasenseas 9.4 4.3 0.2) 13.5
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds..........cocoeiviniiininininiceceee e 179.7 1.1 3.7 1771
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships...........c.cccceeeeeeneee. 181.0 25.0 0.5) 205.5
Investments in EQUItY SECUITLIES........ccceeviririririeieiieieieieeeceteeeteeeeeine $ 4869 $ 433 $ (7.0) $ 5232

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2014
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real EState.............cocvoevvevieveriereeereeeeeeeeereeereeenns $§ 855 § 52 % (1.0) $ 897
Other INAUSLIIES ... .cevieiiieieiieie ettt s 16.3 3.5 — 19.8
Common Stocks:
MANUTACLUTINE ..ottt ettt ettt sttt sae e et sbe e e eneesaeenneas 43.4 14.9 (1.1 57.2
Finance, Insurance and Real EState.........cc.cccoovvviiiiiiiiiiiieiecieeeeee e 34.3 6.2 — 40.5
Other INAUSLIIES ... .cevieiieiieii ettt 26.5 10.0 (0.4) 36.1
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........ccoccovieiiiiiinieieeeeeeeee e 195.2 8.2 0.7) 202.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships...........cccoceevveenenen. 160.3 27.7 (1.8) 186.2
Investments in EQUItY SECUITLIES.......c.cveiiieieieieieeieieieieeeeeeeee e eeeaesaesnens $ 5615 $§ 757 $ (5.00 $§ 6322

There were no unsettled purchases or sales of Investments in Equity Securities at either December 31, 2015 or December 31,
2014.
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An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2015 is
presented below.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTITIES ..o.vevivicieceecee e $ 566 $ (16) $ 241 $ 2.0 % 807 $ 3.6)
States and Political Subdivisions..............c..cc........ 131.0 (2.6) 0.9 0.1) 131.9 2.7
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes .........ccceceeviecienienieeieeieieeeens 783.8 (26.0) 133.6 14.7) 917.4 (40.7)
Collateralized Loan Obligations ....................... 574 2.9 0.8 0.1 58.2 3.0)
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed................... — — 0.3 — 0.3 —
Total Fixed Maturities............cccecvevrevieeieneesieerenneenne. 1,028.8 33.1) 159.7 (16.9) 1,188.5 (50.0)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 2.7 — 12.3 0.8) 15.0 0.8)
Other Industries.........c.ocevveeeveeeieecreeereeeeeeeneens 7.3 (0.8) — — 7.3 0.8)
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... 16.3 (1.0) — — 16.3 1.0)
Other Industries.........c.ocevveeeeeeveeeirieeeeeeeeeeneens 2.8 (0.3) — — 2.8 0.3)
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds..........cccccocvvvninininnnnne 135.2 3.7 — — 135.2 3.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........ccceeveveeieieieieieeeieienennan 2.7 0.5) — — 2.7 0.5)
Total Equity SeCUrities..........cceevevveeeieveieiererenennas 167.0 6.3) 12.3 0.8) 179.3 7.1
TOtAL. it $1,1958 $§ (394) $ 1720 $§ (17.7) $1,367.8 $ (57.1)

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment
is other than temporary. The portions of the declines in the fair values of investments that are determined to be other than temporary
are reported as losses in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the periods when such determinations are made.

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company has determined to be temporary at December 31, 2015, were $50.0
million, of which $16.9 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were $0.2 million unrealized losses at December 31, 2015 related to securities for which the Company has recognized
credit losses in earnings in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months”. There were no unrealized losses at
December 31, 2015 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in the preceding table
under the heading “12 Months or Longer.” Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $33.5 million and below-
investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $16.5 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed
maturities at December 31, 2015. For below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the
unrealized loss amount, on average, was approximately 8% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31,
2015, the Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company
would be required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the
Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2015 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of
the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would
not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in
the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the
evaluation date.
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For equity securities, the Company considers various factors when determining whether a decline in the fair value is other than
temporary, including, but not limited to:

» The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

* The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

* The volatility of the investment;

* Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

+ Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

* Market liquidity;

+ Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

+ The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

With respect to Investments in Equity Securities, the Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in
preferred and common stocks at December 31, 2015 were temporary based on various factors, including the relative short
length and magnitude of the losses and overall market volatility. The Company’s investments in other equity interests include
investments in limited liability companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest in mezzanine debt, distressed debt, and
secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company believes that some of its investments in the
limited liability companies and limited partnerships exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company
also considers when evaluating these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors in the preceding
paragraph, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities
presented in the preceding table were temporary at December 31, 2015.

An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2014 is
presented below.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTIHIES. ...c.veveviceecieccccee s $ 249 § ©07) $ 555 % (13) $ 804 § (2.0)
States and Political Subdivisions............cccccevveueenene 1.0 — 126.3 (1.8) 127.3 (1.8)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes..........cccceveeieieeieerieeeieenenee 250.4 5.1 360.5 (10.0) 610.9 (15.1)
Redeemable Preferred Stocks...........cccveveerenns — — — — — —
Collateralized Loan Obligations........................ 51.2 0.7) 34 (0.1) 54.6 (0.8)
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed................... — — 0.4 — 0.4 —
Total Fixed Maturities............cccooeeveeeeeeereceeeeenenee. 327.5 (6.5) 546.1 (13.2) 873.6 (19.7)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................... 7.5 0.1) 12.1 0.9) 19.6 (1.0)
Other Industries ........ccoccevveriecienierieeeieeeenne. — — 0.5 — 0.5 —
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ..........cceeceeeveveecienieneeieeieneeenes 15.1 (1.1 — — 15.1 (1.1
Other IndUusStries ........cccccvevveviecienienieie e 4.2 0.4) 1.0 — 5.2 0.4)
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds ..........ccccovveiiniennnnee. 14.9 0.1) 14.4 (0.6) 29.3 0.7)
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships......cocoecevevereneneneneeeeeeeeeee 54.4 (1.5) 6.6 (0.3) 61.0 (1.8)
Total Equity Securities..........cocevververereneninenineneene 96.1 3.2) 34.6 (1.8) 130.7 (5.0)
TOtAL e $ 4236 $ 9.7) $ 5807 $ (15.0) $1,0043 $ (24.7)
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Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company determined to be temporary at December 31, 2014, were $19.7
million, of which $13.2 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
There were no unrealized losses at December 31, 2014 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses
in earnings in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months” or “12 Months or Longer.” Investment-grade fixed
maturity investments comprised $14.1 million and below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $5.6 million
of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed maturities at December 31, 2014. For below-investment-grade fixed maturity
investments in an unrealized loss position, the unrealized loss amount, on average, was less than 4% of the amortized cost basis
of the investment. At December 31, 2014, the Company did not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more
likely than not that the Company would be required to sell these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which
may be at maturity. Based on the Company’s evaluation at December 31, 2014 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not
limited to, the credit ratings of the issuers of the investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and
its determination that it would not be required to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company
concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table
were temporary at the evaluation date.

With respect to Investments in Equity Securities, the Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments at
December 31, 2014 were temporary based on various factors, including the relative short length and magnitude of the losses
and overall market volatility, as well as, the debt-like characteristics of investments in certain other equity interests.

The following table sets forth the pre-tax amount of OTTI credit losses, recognized in Retained Earnings for Investments in
Fixed Maturities held by the Company as of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, for which a portion of the OTTI loss related to
factors other than credit has been recognized in AOCI, and the corresponding changes in such amounts.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Cumulative Balance of Pre-tax Credit Losses Recognized in Retained Earnings at

Be@INNINg OF YEAL........cvouiivieieeieetieeeeeeeeeectee ettt ettt ettt v s s eae s enserens s $ 53 §$ 99 §$ 4.6
Pre-tax Credit Losses on Fixed Maturities without Pre-tax Credit Losses Included in

Cumulative Balance at Beginning of Year..........ccocuevveieieieienieieieieieeeieeee e 0.2 24 1.8

Additional Pre-tax Credit Losses on Fixed Maturities with Pre-tax Credit Losses Included
in Cumulative Balance at Beginning of Year...........cccocevieieieieieiieieieieeeeeeenns — 0.6 7.3

Reductions for Change in Impairment Status:

From Status of Credit Loss to Status of Intent-to-sell or Required-to-sell........................ 0.4 (2.4) (3.2)
Reductions for Investments Sold DUring Year..........ccccecvevveieieiieieieieieieieieieieee e — (5.2) (0.6)

Balance at ENd OF YEaT.........oooiioiieeeeeee e $ 51 § 53 % 9.9

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments are generally of a passive nature in
that the Company does not take an active role in the management of the investment entity. In 2015, aggregate investment
income (losses) from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments exceeded 10% of the Company’s pretax consolidated net
income. Accordingly, the Company is disclosing aggregated summarized financial data for its Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments. Such aggregated summarized financial data does not represent the Company’s proportionate share of the Equity
Method Limited Liability Investment assets or earnings. Aggregate total assets of the Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments in which the Company invested totaled $3,801.7 million and $3,349.7 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Aggregate total liabilities of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested
totaled $879.1 million and $711.5 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Aggregate net income of the Equity
Method Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested totaled $159.6 million, $96.2 million and $181.1 million
for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The aggregate summarized financial data is based on the
most recent and sufficiently-timely financial information available to the Company as of the respective reporting dates and
periods. The Company’s maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2015 is limited to the total carrying value of $190.6
million. In addition, the Company had outstanding commitments totaling approximately $58.8 million to fund Equity Method
Limited Liability Investments at December 31, 2015.
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The carrying values of the Company’s Other Investments at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Loans to Policyholders at Unpaid Principal............ccoeierieiiieiinieieieeeseee e $ 2884 $ 2834
Real Estate at Depreciated COSt.....uuiiiiiiiriieieeierteeie ettt e it et e st esteestesseesseesteeneesseensesseesseensesneessean 149.8 160.9
Trading Securities at FAIr VAIUC........ccocviiiiiieieieieeee ettt s ae e nnean 4.7 4.9
ORCT ettt bbbt b e bbbt b e bbbt e b bbbt e b b st e a ettt et ettt et et nee 0.3 0.4
8 ST $ 4432 § 4496
NOTE 5. GOODWILL
Goodwill balances by business segment at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Property & Casualty INSUTANICE. ..........c.ecieriieieeiieieeie ettt ettt te et e staeste et e esaesseesseessesseessesssesssanseensenses 103.6 92.4
Life & Health INSUTANCE ........cciiiiiriiiiiiiieeei ettt ettt 2194 219.4
TOTAL 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt sea et et s et et a st en e s et e Rt se st s e st et et es e seneesene et e s enenaeneeseneas $ 323.0

$ 3118

The Company tests goodwill for recoverability on an annual basis at the beginning of the first quarter and, if circumstances or
events indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may have declined below its carrying value, such tests are performed at
intervening interim periods. The Company principally used projections of discounted future cash flows to estimate the fair
values of the reporting units tested. For each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the
reporting unit, and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was recoverable at the aforementioned dates tested.

Goodwill in the Property & Casualty Insurance segment increased by $11.2 million due to the acquisition of Alliance United.
See Note 3, “Acquisition of Business” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information pertaining to the

acquisition of Alliance United.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Beginning Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves:
Gross of Reinsurance at Beginning of Year.........cccceeverieieierienienieieieieeieieeeee e $ 7339 $ 8435 $ 970.6
Less Reinsurance Recoverables at Beginning of Year.........cccoeevevieriieienieneeieeieeeee 54.9 63.4 66.2
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance at Beginning of Year......... 679.0 780.1 904.4

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves Acquired, Net of Reinsurance and
INAeMNITICALION ..oueniiiiieee ettt 125.4 — —

Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

CONtINUING OPETALIONS ....cuvievveeiiereieieeeiestesieetesteeseestesseeseessesseeseessesseessesssesseessesssenses 1,123.3 965.4 1,056.5
Prior Years:
ContiNUING OPETALIONS .....evervirririirtieiieiietieiiettettetteiteiteit ettt est et et etestetete s esesaensenes (11.5) (53.5) (59.8)
Discontinued OPETations........cceeeeverririririieiieiieiieiieiteiteiteitert ettt te e teaesaeeenes (8.6) (3.6) (4.8)
Total Incurred Losses and LAE related to Prior Years.........cccoecveeieviieieeieneecieeiesieeienns (20.1) (57.1) (64.6)
Total Incurred LosSes and LAE........c..oooooiiiiiiieieeeieeecee ettt 1,103.2 908.3 991.9

Paid Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:

ContinUING OPETALIONS .....eoveevirrievieeieiietieiieiieitetteteeetetetestestestestestestetessentessensensensensenes 723.2 639.8 682.2
Prior Years:
ContiNUING OPETALIONS .....eoveevireierierierieiieieeiereereeseesteeeseestesteseestesessessensensessensessensensenes 366.2 360.4 421.7
DiscoNtinUEd OPETAtIONS........ecveuieririerieiieieiieiieieieeetestetestetestesesensesessessesessensenes 7.4 9.2 12.3
Total Paid Losses and LAE related to Prior Years........ccocevvevierverienieienieieieieieeieienen 373.6 369.6 434.0
Total Paid LosSeS and LAE ........ccouoooiuiiiiieeeeeee ettt eae et eveeeaneesane e 1,096.8 1,009.4 1,116.2
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at
ENA Of Y@Lttt ettt sae e an 810.8 679 780.1
Plus Reinsurance and Indemnification Recoverables at End of Year..........ccccooceeieiincenne 52.0 54.9 63.4
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Gross of Reinsurance at End of Year............... $ 8628 § 7339 § 8435

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are estimated based on historical experience patterns and current economic trends.
Actual loss experience and loss trends are likely to differ from these historical experience patterns and economic conditions.
Loss experience and loss trends emerge over several years from the dates of loss inception. The Company monitors such
emerging loss trends on a quarterly basis. Changes in such estimates are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income in
the period of change.

In 2015, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $20.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years, including the impact of adverse development of $7.7 million, net of
estimated indemnification recoveries, related to Alliance United for periods prior to the date of its acquisition. Personal lines
insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $13.3 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves
developed favorably by $6.8 million. Personal automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $1.8
million, net of the adverse development related to Alliance United, homeowners insurance loss and LAE reserves developed
favorably by $10.8 million, and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $0.7 million. Excluding the
adverse development related to Alliance United for periods prior to the date of its acquisition, personal lines insurance losses
and LAE reserves developed favorably by $21.0 million due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than
expected for the 2013, 2012 and 2011 accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves included adverse
development of $1.8 million from continuing operations and favorable development of $8.6 million from discontinued
operations.

In 2014, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $57.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $50.9 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $6.2 million. Personal
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES (Continued)

automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $31.6 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $14.8 million and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $4.5
million. The personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more
favorable loss patterns than expected for the three most recent prior accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE
reserves included favorable development of $2.6 million from continuing operations and $3.6 million from discontinued
operations. Commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2013, 2011 and 2010 accident years.

In 2013, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $64.6 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $56.8 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $7.8 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $30.1 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $20.1 million and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $6.6
million. The personal lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more
favorable loss patterns than expected for the four most recent prior accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE
reserves included favorable development of $3.0 million from continuing operations and $4.8 million from discontinued
operations. Commercial lines insurance losses and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2011, 2010 and 2009 accident years, partially offset by
less favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2012 accident year.

The Company cannot predict whether loss and LAE reserves will develop favorably or unfavorably from the amounts reported
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company believes that any such development will not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, but could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial results
for a given period.

Reinsurance and indemnification recoverables on property and casualty insurance reserves were $52.0 million and $54.9
million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. These recoverables are concentrated with several reinsurers, the vast
majority of which are highly rated by one or more of the principal investor and/or insurance company rating agencies. While
most of these recoverables were unsecured at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the agreements with the reinsurers generally
provide for some form of collateralization upon the occurrence of certain events.

NOTE 7. DEBT

Total amortized cost of debt outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Senior Notes:
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015, ......ccuiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeetee ettt eeeeeaeeesaeeenree s $ — $ 2495
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ...cciiieieieieieieieieeeeeeee ettt a e ae b e s e s s nes 359.1 358.5
4.35% Senior Notes due February 15, 2025........ccvoiiieieieieieieieieeeiet ettt ssesse s b saens 2474 —
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ........c.ccvevveieieieierieieieieieiesieee e 144.1 144.1
Total Debt QUESTANAING.........cooveveeieeeeeteeceeee ettt e et eseeeeseseseeseseseaseeeseseasesssesennenanas $ 7506 $ 752.1
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NOTE 7. DEBT (Continued)

Interest Expense, including facility fees, accretion of discount and amortization of issuance costs, for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement ..............c.cevveveveeceevereceeeeeeeeeeneeeennas $ 08 3 08 $ 1.4
Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas...........c.cccocueieiiieieieieieieieieieieeee e — —
Federal Home Loan Bank of ChiCag0 ..........ccccueirieieieieieieieieieiesieeeteeesae e e e aeneas — —

Senior NOteS Payable: .........ccveiiiiiiiieiieiieieieiet ettt ettt ettt a et esbe s essessessessesessensens

6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .......cooiiiiiiiiiieieieeceeeecee e 3.7 15.5 154

6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ....oooieiiiieiieieeieeeeee et 22.2 222 222

4.35% Senior Notes due February 15, 2025 ........ccoeieiieiiieieieeeeeeee e 9.5 — —
7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ........c.cccoovievieecienieneeieeieeeee 11.1 9.4 —
Mortgage NOte Payable........c.occoeviiiiiiiiiieiieieeieie ettt ettt sae b e — — 0.2
Interest Expense before Capitalization of INterest..........cccvevvieieriieiiieienieieeieseeie e 473 47.9 39.2
Capitalization Of INEEIEST......c..ccveriieiiiieciecie ettt ettt et sbe e e e e e sseebeeesesaaense e 0.8) (1.0) 0.9)
Total INLEreSt EXPEIISE........cveivivievieieviietieteteetee ettt ettt ettt ettt s eaeeseneete s eseeseneas $ 465 $ 469 $ 383

Interest Paid, including facility fees, for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement............c.ccuveveeeeeereerieeeeereeieeeeereesreeeeenes $ 14 $ 06 $ 0.8
Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas — _ _
Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago — — _

Senior Notes Payable:

6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .......uuiiiieiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 4.8 15.0 15.0
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ..c..ccvvieiririeieieieieieteteteeeee e 21.6 21.6 21.6
4.35% Senior Notes due February 15, 2025 ......cccevieiievieieieieieieieeeee et 5.2 —

7.375% Subordinated Debentures due February 27, 2054 ........ccccevvevievieienienienieieiesierieins 11.1 8.5

Mortgage NOte PayabIe.........ccccvviiiriiiiieieieietetetet ettt ettt sa e sesse s e s enseneas — — 0.3

Total INEEIESt PATd ... ..oviiviieiie e $ 441 $ 457 $ 377

On June 2, 2015, Kemper amended and restated its $225.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement to, among other
things, extend the expiration date to June 2, 2020. Prior to the amendment, the credit agreement was scheduled to expire on
March 7, 2016. The credit agreement, as amended and restated, provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods up to
six months at various interest rates. The credit agreement, as amended and restated, contains various financial covenants,
including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s
largest insurance subsidiaries, Trinity and United Insurance. Proceeds from advances under the credit agreement, as amended
and restated, may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness. There were no
outstanding borrowings under the credit agreement at either December 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.

Trinity and United Insurance are members of the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago, respectively. Effective December 31, 2013,
Trinity and the FHLB of Dallas entered into agreements pursuant to which Trinity may obtain advances from the FHLB of
Dallas. Effective March 18, 2014, United Insurance and the FHLB of Chicago entered into agreements pursuant to which
United Insurance may obtain advances from the FHLB of Chicago. Advances from the FHLB of Dallas and Chicago are subject
to collateral requirements as specified in the respective agreements with Trinity and United Insurance. During 2015, Trinity
borrowed and repaid $77.5 million under its agreement with the FHLB of Dallas. During 2015, United Insurance borrowed and
repaid $21.0 million under its agreement with the FHLB of Chicago. There were no advances from the FHLB of Dallas or
Chicago outstanding at either December 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.

On February 24, 2015, Kemper issued $250.0 million of its 4.35% senior notes due February 15, 2025 (the “2025 Senior
Notes”). The net proceeds of the issuance were $247.3 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield of
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NOTE 7. DEBT (Continued)

4.49%. The 2025 Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at
Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper used the net proceeds from the sale of the 2025 Senior Notes, together
with available cash, to redeem in full the $250.0 million outstanding principal amount of its 6.00% senior notes due November
30, 2015. Kemper recognized a loss of $9.1 million before income taxes in the first quarter of 2015 from the early redemption
of these senior notes.

On February 27, 2014, Kemper issued $150.0 million of its 7.375% subordinated debentures due February 27, 2054 (the “2054
Debentures”). The net proceeds of the issuance were $144.0 million, net of discount and transaction costs, for an effective yield
of 7.69%. The subordinated debentures are unsecured and are subordinated and junior to the senior indebtedness of Kemper.
Interest on the subordinated debentures is payable quarterly. As long as no event of default has occurred, Kemper may defer
interest payments on the subordinated debentures for up to five consecutive years without giving rise to an event of default.
During a deferral period, interest will continue to accrue at the stated interest rate compounded quarterly. Kemper is permitted
to redeem some or all of the subordinated debentures on or after February 27, 2019, at a redemption price that is equal to their
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. Kemper is permitted to redeem the subordinated debentures in whole, but
not in part, at any time prior to February 27, 2019, within 90 days of the occurrence of certain tax events or rating agency
events, at specified redemption prices.

NOTE 8. LEASES

The Company leases certain office space under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to
ten years, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. The Company also leases certain equipment under
non-cancellable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to five years. Minimum rent is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Net rental expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Minimum Rental EXPENSE .......c.cviuiiriiviiiieieieiieietetetieeet ettt ettt es e s s ese s se s eseanssnas $ 207 $§ 215 § 283
Less Sublease Rental INCOME ...........ocuiiiiiiiieiiiiiciecieeie ettt ettt a7 (1.3) (1.8)
Net RENEAl EXPENSE .....ovivieiievieiicietceieeietette ettt ettt ettt es e et seanss s s esnes $ 190 $§ 202 §$§ 265

Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases at December 31, 2015 were:

Capital Operating

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Leases Leases
2016ttt h bbbt h bt bbbt e b e bbb ettt ettt ettt a e nee $ 24 § 178
2017 bbbt h bbbt b bt bbbt bbbt b ettt et et ettt e e a e nee 0.7 16.5
2018 et b bt bbbt b bbbt b bbbt bt b ettt et et et e e et e e nee 0.1 11.9
2019 bbbt h bbbt b bt bbbt bbbt b e a et es oot ettt e e e e nee — 8.6
2020 ettt h e bbbt h e eb e bbbt e bt bt bt e bt e b e bt e bbb a et e st es et et et et et ettt nee — 6.3
2021 ANA THETEATTET .....eeeieiieie ettt ettt et e st et e e s e e st e seenseeseeseensesseesseensesnnesnean — 14.2
TOtal FULUIE PAYIMENES. ... ccviitieiieiieiieiieiietiete e eteeteeteeteeteeseeteeseeseesseseesseseessessessessessessessessassassessessessessensanes $ 32 § 753
LeSS IMPULEA INEEIESE .......eeiieiiieieiieie ettt ettt et e e et e et esseesseeseesseessessaesseensesssesseensesnsensean 0.2)

Present Value of Minimum Capital Lease Payments............cceeverieeierierieiieieieeieeeereeie e $ 3.0

The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancellable subleases was $3.9 million at December 31,
2015.

NOTE 9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Kemper is authorized to issue 20 million shares of $0.10 par value preferred stock and 100 million shares of $0.10 par value
common stock. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014. There were 51,326,751 shares
and 52,418,246 shares of common stock outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Common stock outstanding
included 80,848 shares and 163,720 shares at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, that have been issued, subject to
certain vesting and other requirements, in connection with the Company’s long-term equity compensation plans. See Note 10,
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“Long-Term Equity-based Compensation,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the restrictions and
vesting provisions.

Kemper repurchased and retired 1.2 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of
$43.5 million in 2015. Kemper repurchased and retired 3.2 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an
aggregate cost of $115.5 million in 2014. Kemper repurchased and retired 3.0 million shares of its common stock in open
market transactions at an aggregate cost of $100.4 million in 2013.

Various state insurance laws restrict the amount that an insurance subsidiary may pay in the form of dividends, loans or
advances without the prior approval of regulatory authorities. Also, that portion of an insurance subsidiary’s net equity which
results from differences between statutory insurance accounting practices and GAAP would not be available for cash dividends,
loans or advances. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $285.0 million to Kemper in 2015. In 2016, Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $168 million in dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries had net assets of $2.4 billion, determined in accordance with GAAP, that were restricted from payment to
Kemper without prior regulatory approval at December 31, 2015.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to file financial statements prepared on the basis of statutory insurance accounting
practices, a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s life and
health insurance subsidiaries was $394.6 million and $437.3 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Statutory net
income for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries was $62.8 million, $100.7 million and $81.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries was $957.7 million and $947.5 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Statutory
net income for the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was $58.9 million, $85.7 million and $138.8 million
for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus and statutory net income
exclude parent company operations.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also required to hold minimum levels of statutory capital and surplus to satisfy regulatory
requirements. The minimum statutory capital and surplus, or company action level RBC, necessary to satisfy regulatory
requirements for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries collectively was $134.4 million at December 31, 2015.
The minimum statutory capital and surplus necessary to satisfy regulatory requirements for the Company’s property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries collectively was $335.9 million at December 31, 2015. Company action level RBC is the level
at which a company is required to file a corrective action plan with its regulators and is equal to 200% of the authorized control
level RBC.

In 2015, Kemper paid dividends of $49.7 million to its shareholders. Except for certain financial covenants under the 2016
Credit Agreement or during any period in which Kemper elects to defer interest payments, there are no restrictions on Kemper’s
ability to pay dividends to its shareholders. Certain financial covenants, namely minimum net worth and a maximum debt to
total capitalization ratio, under the 2016 Credit Agreement could limit the amount of dividends that Kemper may pay to
shareholders at December 31, 2015. Kemper had the ability to pay without restrictions $287 million in dividends to its
shareholders and still be in compliance with all financial covenants under the 2016 Credit Agreement at December 31, 2015.

NOTE 10. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 4, 2011, Kemper’s shareholders approved the 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan (“Omnibus Plan”). The Omnibus Plan
replaced the Company’s previous employee stock option plans, director stock option plan and restricted stock plan (collectively,
the “Prior Plans”). Awards previously granted under the Prior Plans remain outstanding in accordance with their original terms.
Beginning May 4, 2011, equity-based compensation awards may only be granted under the Omnibus Plan. A maximum number
of 10,000,000 shares of Kemper common stock may be issued under the Omnibus Plan (the “Share Authorization”). As of
December 31, 2015, there were 7,636,921 common shares available for future grants under the Omnibus Plan, of which
538,500 shares were reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of outstanding
performance-based restricted stock and performance-based restricted stock unit (“RSU”) awards.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
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for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, RSUs and
deferred stock units (“DSUs”), if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.

Outstanding equity-based compensation awards at December 31, 2015 consisted of tandem stock option and stock appreciation
rights (“Tandem Awards”), time-vested restricted stock, time-vested RSUs, performance-based restricted stock, performance-
based RSUs and DSUs. Effective February 4, 2014, the Company began issuing time-based and performance-based RSUs.
Recipients of restricted stock receive full dividend and voting rights on the same basis as all other outstanding shares of
Kemper common stock. RSUs and DSUs give the recipient the right to receive one share of Kemper common stock for each
RSU or DSU issued. Recipients of RSUs and DSUs receive full dividend equivalents on the same basis as all other outstanding
shares of Kemper common stock, but do not receive voting rights until such shares are issued. Except as described below for
equity-based compensation awards granted to each member of the Board of Directors who is not employed by the Company
(“Non-employee Directors”), all outstanding awards are subject to forfeiture until certain restrictions have lapsed.

For equity-based compensation awards with a graded vesting schedule, the Company recognizes compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately-vesting portion of the awards as if each award were, in
substance, multiple awards. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures
estimated at the date of grant based on the Company’s historical experience and future expectations. Equity-based
compensation expense was $6.5 million, $6.4 million and $5.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Total unamortized compensation expense related to nonvested awards at December 31, 2015 was $5.8 million,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9 years.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, or the Board’s authorized designee, has sole discretion to determine
the persons to whom awards under the Omnibus Plan are granted, and the material terms of the awards. For Tandem Awards,
material terms include the number of shares covered by such awards and the exercise price, vesting and expiration dates of such
awards. Tandem Awards are non-transferable. The exercise price of Tandem Awards is the fair value of Kemper’s common
stock on the date of grant. Employee Tandem Awards, time-based restricted stock awards and time-based RSU awards generally
vest, beginning six months after date of grant, in four equal annual installments over a period of three and one-half years, with
the Tandem Awards expiring ten years from the date of grant. Employee performance-based restricted stock and RSU awards
generally vest over a period of three years, subject to achievement of performance goals and other restrictions.

Under the Non-employee Director compensation programs in effect for 2015, 2014 and 2013, each Non-employee Director
receives an initial option award to purchase 4,000 shares of Kemper common stock immediately upon becoming a director, and
in addition, on the date of each annual meeting of Kemper’s shareholders, automatically receives an annual option award to
purchase 4,000 shares of common stock. Prior to May 1, 2013, such options granted to Non-employee Directors were
exercisable one year from the date of grant at an exercise price equal to the fair value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of
grant and expired ten years from the date of grant. Effective May 1, 2013, new grants of such options are fully vested and
exercisable on the date of grant at an exercise price equal to the fair value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant. In
addition to the annual option awards, under the compensation programs in effect for 2015, 2014 and 2013, annual awards to
each Non-employee Director include 500 DSUs. The DSUs granted to Non-employee Directors are fully vested on the date of
grant. Conversion of the DSUs into shares of Kemper’s common stock is deferred until the date a director’s board service
terminates.

Prior to creation of the Omnibus Plan, all of the Company’s previous stock option plans included provisions, subject to certain
limitations, to automatically grant restorative, or reload stock options (“Restorative Options™), to replace shares of previously
owned Kemper common stock that an exercising option holder surrenders, either actually or constructively, to satisfy the
exercise price and/or tax withholding obligations relating to the exercise. The restorative feature was eliminated prospectively
for original option awards granted on or after February 3, 2009. Restorative Options may still be granted, subject to certain
limitations, in connection with the exercise of original options granted before February 3, 2009. Restorative Options are subject
to the same terms and conditions as the original options, including the expiration date, except that the exercise price is equal to
the fair value of Kemper common stock on the date of grant of a Restorative Option and cannot be exercised until six months
after the date of grant. The grant of a Restorative Option does not result in an increase in the total number of shares and options
held by an employee, but changes the mix of the two.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each Tandem Award on the date of
grant. The expected terms of Tandem Awards are developed by considering the Company’s historical Tandem Award exercise
experience, demographic profiles, historical share retention practices of employees and assumptions about their propensity for
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early exercise in the future. Further, the Company aggregates individual awards into relatively homogenous groups that exhibit
similar exercise behavior to obtain a more refined estimate of the expected term of options. Expected volatility is estimated
using weekly historical volatility. The Company believes that historical volatility is currently the best estimate of expected
volatility. The dividend yield in 2015, 2014 and 2013 was calculated by taking the natural logarithm of the annualized yield

divided by the Kemper common stock price on the date of grant. The risk-free interest rate was

the yield on the grant date of

U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with a maturity comparable to the expected term of the option.

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes pricing model for Tandem Awards granted during the years ended December 31,

2015, 2014 and 2013 are presented below.

2015 2014 2013

RANGE OF VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

Expected Volatility.......ccceevvcienieniieiecieeeie e 21.31% - 41.65%  25.76% - 44.43%  39.10% - 48.23%
Risk-free Interest Rate.........ccceeevieeiieciecciiecriceieens 1.08 - 1.96 1.07 - 2.14 0.62 - 1.38
Expected Dividend Yield.........cccooveienienieiinieeenne. 237 - 2.62 2.53 - 2.60 2.83 - 3.00
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXPECTED LIFE IN YEARS

Employee Grants..........c..ccceceeeeeneenecenccnnenecneennes 4 -7 4 -7 4 -7
Director Grants...........ccoeveeveeieneenieeeeseenreessessesseennas 5.5 6 6
Tandem Award activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Weighted-
Weighted- average Aggregate
Shares average Remaining Intrinsic
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Value
Awards Per Share ($) Life (in Years) ($ In Millions)

Outstanding at Beginning of the Year...........ccocceevvvvrvieieienennne 2,265,711 $ 39.74

GIanted........ocveiveiieieeeiee ettt ae e 397,532 37.51

EXEICISEA. ... (629,625) 31.84

Forfeited or EXpired.........cccocvviririniniiieieieieieceieeeeeeeene (605,461) 46.45

Outstanding at December 31, 2015.......cccocivvirieininieieieienene 1,428,157 39.75 54 $ 2.1
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 2015.................. 1,393,530 $ 39.84 53 $ 2.0
Exercisable at December 31, 2015........coo..omrvverreenrerenneennns 978437 $ 41.02 38 § 1.6

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of Tandem Awards granted during 2015, 2014 and

2013 were $7.85, $10.49 and

$10.20, respectively. Total intrinsic value of Tandem Awards exercised was $4.6 million, $0.4 million and $4.1 million for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Cash received from exercises of Tandem Awards was $3.9
million, $0.5 million and $1.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Total tax benefit
realized for tax deductions from exercises of Tandem Awards was $1.6 million, $0.1 million and $1.4 million for the years

ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Information pertaining to Tandem Awards outstanding at December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- average Weighted-
Shares average Remaining Shares average
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Subject to Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Prices ($) Awards Per Share ($) Life (in Years) Awards Per Share ($)
15.01 - 20.00 4,000 16.48 3.35 4,000 16.48
20.01 - 25.00 14,500 23.47 4.07 14,500 23.47
25.01 - 30.00 75,750 28.67 5.46 75,750 28.67
30.01 - 35.00 173,625 33.20 7.11 131,998 33.12
35.01 - 40.00 600,000 36.55 7.73 290,187 36.83
40.01 - 45.00 103,782 40.70 9.89 5,502 40.70
45.01 - 50.00 456,500 48.80 0.59 456,500 48.80
15.01 - 50.00 1,428,157 39.75 5.36 978,437 41.02

The grant-date fair values of time-based restricted stock and time-based RSU awards are determined using the closing price of
Kemper common stock on the date of grant. Activity related to nonvested time-based restricted stock and nonvested time-based
RSUs for the year ended December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Time-based Restricted Stock

Awards Time-based RSU Awards
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Grant-date Grant-date
Number of Fair Value Number of Fair Value
Shares Per Share RSUs Per RSU
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year.........c..cccoccoeenevncincnnnns 53,095 §  32.42 30,024 §  36.60
(.11 (=T TSRS PRRR T — — 74,375 36.79
VESTEA. et e e e s es e eee e es s e e eees e (18,733) 31.09 (16,701) 36.33
FOTTEIEEA. ... oo es e eeeses e ee e eseeeseeeeseeeseeeseeeseeeeseeeseeeeeeeeene (4,914) 29.48 (2,650) 36.19
Nonvested Balance at December 31, 2015.........cccoooviiiioiieiiieiceceee 29,448 $ 33.77 85,048 § 36.84

Prior to February 3, 2009, only awards of time-vested restricted stock had been granted. Beginning on February 3, 2009, in
addition to time-vested restricted stock granted to certain employees and officers, the Company began making performance-
based restricted awards to certain officers and employees. The initial number of shares or RSUs awarded to each participant of
a performance-based award represents the shares that would vest, or, in the case of a RSU, that would vest and would be issued,
if the performance level attained were to be at the “target” performance level. For performance above the target level, each
participant would receive a grant of additional shares of stock up to a maximum of 100% of the initial number of shares or
RSUs awarded to the participant. The final payout of these awards, and any forfeitures of shares for performance below the
“target” performance level, will be determined based on Kemper’s total shareholder return over a three-year performance
period relative to a peer group comprised of all the companies in the S&P Supercomposite Insurance Index. If, at the end of the
applicable performance period, the Company’s relative performance:

+ exceeds the “target” performance level, additional shares of stock will be issued to the award recipient;

+ is below the “target” performance level, but at or above a “minimum” performance level, only a portion of the shares
of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to the award recipient will vest; or

* is below a “minimum” performance level, none of the shares of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to
the award recipient will vest.

The grant date fair values of the performance-based restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards are determined using
the Monte Carlo simulation method. The Monte Carlo simulation model produces a risk-neutral simulation of the daily returns
on the common stock of Kemper and each of the other companies included in the peer group. Returns generated by the
simulation depend on the risk-free interest rate used and the volatilities of, and the correlation between, these stocks. The model
simulates stock prices and dividend payouts to the end of the three-year performance period. Total shareholder returns are
generated for each of these stocks based on the simulated prices and dividend payouts. The total shareholder returns are then
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ranked, and Kemper’s simulated ranking is converted to a payout percentage based on the terms of the performance-based
restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards. The payout percentage is applied to the simulated stock price at the end of
the performance period, reinvested dividends are added back, and the total is discounted to the valuation date at the risk-free
rate. This process is repeated approximately ten thousand times, and the grant date fair value is equal to the average of the
results from these trials.

Activity related to nonvested performance-based restricted stock and nonvested performance-based RSU awards for the year
ended December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Performance-based Performance-based RSU
Restricted Stock Awards Awards
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Grant-date Grant-date
Number of Fair Value Number of Fair Value
Shares Per Share RSUs Per RSU
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year.........cccocevveviiecienieneenens 110,625 $ 39.28 61,875 $ 40.50
GIANTEA ..ottt e et e e e e aae e s eaaeeseareeeen — — 68,825 43.05
VESTEA. ettt ettt ettt ettt e — — — —
FOTTRIted. ... ooiiiieiieiccieet ettt et (59,225) 36.81 (2,600) 41.68
Nonvested Balance at December 31, 2015......cccooviveiiiiiiiieiiiiieieeieeeees 51,400 $ 42.12 128,100 $ 41.85

The number of additional shares that would be granted if the Company were to meet or exceed the maximum performance
levels related to the outstanding performance-based awards for the 2015 and 2014 three-year performance periods was 67,625
common shares and 60,475 common shares, respectively, (as “full value awards,” the equivalent of 202,875 shares and 181,425
shares, respectively, under the Share Authorization) at December 31, 2015. For the 2013 three-year performance period, the
Company’s performance level was below the minimum performance level, and all of the related 51,400 shares of performance-
based restricted shares were forfeited on February 4, 2016, the three-year anniversary of their grant date. For the 2012 three-
year performance period, the Company’s performance level was below the minimum performance level, and all of the related
57,775 shares of performance-based restricted shares were forfeited on January 31, 2015, the three-year anniversary of their
grant date. For the 2011 three-year performance period, the Company’s performance level exceeded target performance levels
with a payout percentage of 118%. Accordingly, an additional 9,014 shares of stock were issued to award recipients on
February 1, 2014 (the “2011 Additional Shares”). For the 2010 three-year performance period, the Company’s performance
level exceeded the target performance level with a payout percentage of 114%. Accordingly, an additional 6,996 shares of stock
were issued to award recipients on February 2, 2013 (the “2010 Additional Shares”).

The total fair value of time-vested and performance-based restricted stock and RSUs that vested during the year ended
December 31, 2015 was $1.4 million. The tax benefits for tax deductions realized from such shares was $0.5 million. The total
fair value of the shares of time-vested and performance-based restricted stock that vested during the year ended December 31,
2014 and the 2011 Additional Shares was $3.6 million. The tax benefits for tax deductions realized from such shares was $1.2
million. The total fair value of the shares of time-vested and performance-based restricted stock that vested during the year
ended December 31, 2013 and the 2010 Additional Shares was $4.1 million. The tax benefits for tax deductions realized from
such shares was $1.4 million.

The grant-date fair values of DSU awards granted to Non-employee Directors are determined using the closing price of Kemper
common stock on the date of grant. DSU awards granted to Non-employee Directors are fully vested on the date of grant. The
total fair value of DSUSs that vested during the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $0.1 million, $0.2 million
and $0.1 million, respectively.
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Activity related to DSU awards for the year ended December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Weighted-
average
Grant-date
Number of Fair Value
DSUs Per DSU
Vested Balance at Beginning 0f the Year...........cccveiiiiieieieieieieieieieieet ettt 8,000 $§ 3452
Granted And VESIEG........ccueiiiiiieieceeeeeee ettt ettt et e et e sa e e eateesaseeteeeateesntessaseesaseeaeesnseean 3,500 38.38
Reduction for Shares Issued on CONVETSION ............cceiiieuieeiieieeeieeee e eae e enean (4,500) 34.94
Vested Balance at December 31, 2015........oooiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 7,000 $ 36.17

NOTE 11. INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE

The Company’s awards of restricted stock contain rights to receive non-forfeitable dividends and participate in the
undistributed earnings with common shareholders. The Company’s awards of RSUs and DSUs also contain rights to receive
non-forfeitable dividend equivalents and participate in the undistributed earnings with common shareholders. Accordingly, the
Company is required to apply the two-class method of computing basic and diluted earnings per share. A reconciliation of the
numerator and denominator used in the calculation of Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share and
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is
presented below.

2015 2014 2013

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Income from Continuing OPETationsS ............ccveeuieruieiieeieirieieeeesieete et esreeseeeesseesseeesesaeeseens $ 802 $ 1126 $ 2145

Less Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Participating Awards..................... 0.4 0.5 1.1
Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares .............cccevveveneenee. 79.8 112.1 2134
Dilutive Effect on Income of Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares..................... — — —
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares................... $ 798 §$§ 1121 $§ 2134
SHARES IN THOUSANDS
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares Outstanding.............c.ecvevvevverierierierierierieniesierierieeennes 51,606.9 53,762.5 56,856.9
Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares .............ccocevvevievierierierienieieieieieeieseeienes 76.6 105.4 126.7
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIUEION. ...ttt ettt sttt ettt 51,683.5 53,867.9 56,983.6

PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE IN WHOLE DOLLARS

Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share .............ccccoocveveveveurnnnn. $ 155 § 208 §$§ 3.5
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share................cccceveveveuennnnn. $ 155 $§ 208 $ 3.74

The number of shares of Kemper common stock that were excluded from the calculations of Equity-based Compensation
Equivalent Shares and Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming Dilution for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 because the exercise prices for the options exceeded the average market price
is presented below.

SHARES IN THOUSANDS 2015 2014 2013
Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares ............cccecuevierieiieienieieeieseee e 959.7 1,605.1 2,080.9
Weighted-average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIULION. ...ttt ettt et s et e st et et e st et et e st s eneeseneesenseneeseneaee 959.7 1,605.1 2,080.9
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The components of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year Before Reclassification

AQJUSEMCNE 1.ttt s et ae e neas $ (1519) $§ 2597 $ (324.9)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income...........ccccoevvevenienene. (25.4) (25.1) (37.9)
Unrealized Holding Gains (LOSSES)......c.ecverieierieierieieieieiesiesetesessessessessessessessessessesses 177.3) 234.6 (362.8)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before

Reclassification AdJUStMENL.........cccoeovieiierieriieieeieie ettt se e sae e eeae e e s e (14 (1.0) 0.2
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income...........ccccoevveeeeennenne. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments............cccecueevierierieeienienieeieeeeseeiesee e (1.4) (1.0) 0.2
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year....................... 3.0 (106.4) 61.6
Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ..........cccoeeevveeveniiennnns 23.1 7.9 25.0
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit CoStS .........ccoecvevieriieiieiinieieeieeeeeeieeeea 26.1 (98.5) 86.6

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes........ccecvevveieieienieienienienieiennen $ (152.6) $ 1351 $ (276.0)

The components of Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (Expense) for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year Before Reclassification

AQJUSTIMENE L..ovviee ettt ettt ettt s et s et et sn s s $ 539 $ (91.6) $ 1159
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............cccoecerveernennnne. 8.9 8.8 13.2
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES .........cecververierierieieieieieieieieieteseeeesteae e nseaene 62.8 (82.8) 129.1
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Year Before

Reclassification AdJUSTMENT ...........c.ccoeieirieieieieieieieeee et ae e saeaesesaesenaens 0.5 0.4 0.1)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............ccooeereeeneennnne. — — —
Foreign Currency Translation AdjustmMent............ccecveveieieieierieieieieeeieeeeeeesseeeeenns 0.5 0.4 0.1)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year....................... (1.1) 37.5 (21.6)
Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs...........cccccvevverierieiennne. 8.0) (2.8) (8.8)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COSts ........ccccevvevverierierienieieieieieieieeieenns .1 34.7 (30.4)

Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) .......cocvcueveveveveeveeereceeeeeeeeeeeneeesnnns $ 542 $ @477) $ 986

The components of AOCI at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Unrealized Gains on Investments, Net of Income Taxes:
Available for Sale Fixed Maturities with Portion of OTTI Recognized in Earnings...............c.c......... $ 14 § 2.8
Other Net Unrealized Gains on INVESTMENES..........ccveviiriieierieieeieeiesie et eeesieeteeeae e esseeae e ensessneseeas 211.7 324.8
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, Net of INCOmMe TaXes.......c.ccveeieeieniienieeieneeieeieceeie e ©0.7) 0.2
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs, Net of Income Taxes.........coeveeceeiieriiecienienieecieseeiene (88.1) (105.1)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ..........c.oevieiieriieiieieieeieeiese et be e $ 1243 $§ 2227
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Components of AOCI were reclassified to the following lines of the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Reclassification of AOCI from Unrealized Gains and Losses on Available For Sale
Securities to:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENLS............c.c.ceieeeveuiieeeeeeeeee e $ 526 $§ 379 § 518
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ..........ccoceevevvevieieierienierieriesiesienienns (27.2) (12.8) (13.9)
Total Before INCOME TaXES......ccvivuiiieeieiieieeierieeie ettt ettt ste e senesseenae e 254 25.1 37.9
INCOME TaX EXPENSE ...coviieiiiieiieieeiieetteie ettt ettt ettt e e seessesaaensaense e 8.9 (8.8) (13.2)
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of Income TaXes.........ccovvvevvviiiiiiieiiiiieeecieee e 16.5 16.3 24.7
Reclassification of AOCI from Amortization of Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit
Costs to:
Interest and Other EXPENSES ........ccviiirieiiieieeieiieieeieste ettt sea e senesbe s e (23.1) (7.9) (25.0)
INCOmME Tax BeNefit......ccvccuiiiiiieiicieciieieeieet ettt senesba e ees 8.0 2.8 8.8
Reclassification from AOCI, Net of Income Taxes..........ccceevereeviieieeienieeieeiesieeiens (15.1) 5.h (16.2)
Total Reclassification from AOCI to Net INCOME.........oocveveieieieieieieieieeeeeee e $ 14 $§ 112 $ 8.5
NOTE 13. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Investment Income (Loss):
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities ..........cceeveverieierienierienieieieieeeieseesiesieeens $ 2362 $ 2274 $§ 2355
Dividends on EQUIty SECUITHES .....eveureeierieieierieieieieieieietetetestesaeseseaesessesessensens 324 59.9 38.0
Equity Method Limited Liability INVEStmMeEnts..........ccccceeiririeueininieeinrceineceenen 19.0 9.0 26.4
Fair Value Option INVEStMENLS..........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccccc s 0.2 (0.7) —
Short-term INVESTMENLS ......cc.eeiuiiieiieiieiieeiieie ettt ettt et ae et e saee e e 0.4 0.6 0.1
Loans to POIICYNOIARTS .......coouiiiiiieiieieee et 21.1 20.5 19.8
REAL ESLALE .. ..etieiiieieiieie ettt ettt et ettt et e s st et e et e sne e beenseeneennean 11.9 12.1 20.8
(11515 oS UTURURS — 0.1 —
Total INVestmMent INCOME ........c.eeriiiiieiieiieieeiee ettt ettt e nte e saeense e 321.2 328.9 340.6
Investment Expenses:
REAL ESLALE .. ..etieiieiieeiieit ettt ettt ettt e et e st e e entesseesseensesnaesseensesneensean 11.3 11.3 18.3
Other InVeStmMeNnt EXPENSES ......c.vecveriiriieieeieiieie ettt se e eneeneeas 7.3 8.5 7.6
Total INVEStMENt EXPENSES....cvveiieiieiieiieiieiiesiieieeiestteieetessaesseessessaesseessesssesseessesssesseensenns 18.6 19.8 25.9
Net INVEStMENT INCOMIE.......uvviiiiiiieieiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e earareeeeeeeenas $ 3026 $ 309.1 $ 314.7

Other Receivables includes accrued investment income of $68.5 million and $65.5 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

respectively.
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The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS ON SALES. ...ttt ettt e et et e e eeteeeae et e eaeeeteeeteeneeeaneeeens $ 161 § 70 $ 309

LLOSSES ON SALCS ..c..eeuiieeieitieiieie ettt ettt ettt et et e e ett et e esseessesseesseensesseesseensesnsesseensens (1.1) (0.2) 0.4)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES......oiiiiiiiciiieiie ettt ettt e e te et e et e e te e e aeeeateeetaeeeseeenteeenteeesreeeaeas 39.2 33.1 21.8

LLOSSES ON SALES .....eeuvieeieieieiieie ettt ie st ettt et e e e aeesaeseesbeessesseesseessessseseessesssesseensenns (1.6) (2.0) 0.5)
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments:

GAINS ON SALES......oiiiuiiieiiietie ettt ettt ettt e e et e e eat e e eteeeaeeeateeetaeeeaaeeteeeareeeateeeaeas — — 2.5
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SALES......oiiiuiiitieiiie ettt ettt ettt e e et ett e e eteeeaeeeateeetaeeetteeteeeareeeateeeanas — — 442

LOSSES 01 SIS ..c..eviiiiiieiieiieiieiteitete ettt ettt ettt ettt et et ettt aenean 0.2) (0.2) —
Other Investments:

Gain on Sale of SUDSIAIATY ......ccveiiiiiiieieieeeeeee et — 1.6 —

Gains on Other Sales — — 0.1

Losses on Sales............... — (0.1) 0.1)

Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUITHES ......ccveveveieieieieieieieieieieiete et 0.3) (0.1) 0.6
Net Realized Gains on Sales 0f INVESTMENLS ............c.ovevereereierieeeiereeeeteeeeeeeeereeeeesereeneneas $ 521 $ 391 $ 99.1
GIOSS GAINS ON SALES ......ouviviveeicieeeetceeeteet ettt ettt ettt et et eaeeseesese s ese s essesenseseseseeseneas $ 553 $ 417 $ 995
GTOSS LLOSSES ON SAIES ....cuviiviiiieiiieiiietiete ettt ettt ettt eae et e e teeve e s e easesseesseeesesseenseans 2.9 (2.5) (1.0)
Net Gains (Losses) on Trading SECUTILIES ........ccveieieieieieieieieieieeeeeeeeete e aens 0.3) 0.1 0.6
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENTS ..........c.ovevieveuiereeieeeeereereeeereeeteeeeeree e $ 521 $ 391 $ 99.1

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the

years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

FIX@A MALUITEIES. ....veeiviiiieeiie ettt ettt et e et e et e etaeeteeesbeesaseessaeesseesseeesseessseessseessneanns $ (115 $ 5.7 $ (10.3)
EQUILY SE@CUITHICS ... tveuetenietieeteetei ettt sttt ettt b ettt ae e st e e se e esennenen 1s.7) (7.1) (3.6)
REAL ESTALE .....veetieeieeiietieie ettt ettt et s ettt et e e ae e st e s se e beensesseeseensesneesseenseans — 2.4) —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............ccoecvevueeiinieniieienienceeeeeee e $ (272) $ (152) $ (13.9)
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Insurance Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
COMUMUSSIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt s e etes e be st es et e st et eseeseneeseneeseeseseeseneesennenens $ 3576 $ 3246 $ 3457
GENETAL EXPEINSES ...cveeiieiiiiieeiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e ae e s e s st e seensesseenseensesneesseensenns 241.1 258.1 257.1
Taxes, LiCenSES and FEES.......uiiiiuiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt e 44.2 38.9 42.8
Total CoStS INCUITEA ...c..eoveviriiiiiitiriecicerer ettt 642.9 621.6 645.6
Policy Acquisition Costs:

1S5 1530 (<!« USSR (270.6) (235.8) (253.4)

DN 0010 < TSRS 257.4 2354 253.9
Net Policy Acquisition Costs Amortized (Deferred)..........cevieviirienieciiecienieieeieseee e (13.2) (0.4) 0.5
Life VIF, P & C VIF and P&C Customer Relationships Amortized...........ccceeveeveevereennns 15.4 7.2 8.3
INSUTANCE EXPENSES ...o.viiviiviiviiiiitietietieteete ettt ete vt eteeteeteeteeseeseeseesseseessessessessessessessessassessessenss $ 6451 $ 6284 § 6544

Commissions for servicing policies are expensed as incurred, rather than deferred and amortized.
NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES

Current and Deferred Income Tax Assets at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014

Current INCOME TaAX ASSELS......c.uiiviiiiiieiiieeiieeie e ette et e eteestteessteessteeseessseessseessseessseesseesnsessssessssessssennns $ 95 § —
Deferred INCOME TaX ASSEES......ccuiiiiiiiiirieeieeieetieeteete et eeteete et e steebeesseeteesseesseessesseesseessesssesseessesssesseansenses 319 —
Current and Deferred INCome Tax ASSEES........ccviiuiiiiieiieiieieeieete et ettt ettt ere e s e eaeesaeebeeaseseeeseenseens $ 414 § —

The components of Liabilities for Income Taxes at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014

Current Income Tax LIabilities ........cciiiiiiiiiieiieiiecie ettt ettt ettt a e eveeteeaeeeteeeneeaneeaeas $ — $ 7.8
Deferred INCOme TaxX Liabilities ......cc.eeeiiuiiiiieiieiiccieeieete ettt ettt te e eaeeeaeeeaeeaneeaeas — 21.5
Unrecognized TaX BeneTitS.......coueriiriiiiieiieie ettt ettt ettt st esbe e eas 3.8 7.2
Liabilities fOr INCOME TaXES.......ccouiiiiiiiiiiitiieiie et ettt et e e e te e e te e s s e e sraeesaaeebaeessaeesseesnseesnseessseanns $ 38 $§ 365
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NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s Net Deferred Income Tax Assets
and Deferred Income Tax Liabilities at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Deferred Income Tax Assets:
INSUTANCE RESETVES ....viiuiieiieitieiteie ettt ettt et e st et e et e s st ese e st e sseesbeessesseeseensesnsenseensesneensean $ 830 $ 787
Unearned Premium RESETVES ........c.ociiriieiiiiierieieeieeteie ettt et e e sae e seensesneenseenseens 41.7 35.5
Tax Capitalization of Policy ACqUiSItion COSES........ceverueeierierieeieeiesieeeeseesteeaesseesseesessaesseesessnessens 71.5 73.0
Payroll and Employee Benefit ACCIUALS........cc.eecuiriiriieieeiecieeee ettt seeas 72.0 74.0
Net Operating Loss CarryfOrWards ..........cceecueeierieiieeienierieeiesteseetesee e e e see e esessaesseessesssesseessenns 30.5 31.7
(135 TS o OSSPSR PSS 15.7 9.8
Total Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS....c..ccueriiriieieeieitieieetiesieeiestesteeteetesseessessaesseessesssesseassesssesseesesssesses 314.4 302.7
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
TIIVESTIMEIIES. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et et et e e ttesteesseessessaesseessesssesseessesssessaessesssesseessessseseensenssesenn 109.8 160.1
Deferred Policy ACQUISIEION COSES .......c.cvueiiuirieiinieiirieieieietenteetetee ettt ettt eve e 110.7 106.1
Life VIF and P&C Customer RelationsShips..........ccceveieieieieieieieieieieiete ettt 15.5 17.7
Goodwill and Other Intangible ASSets ACQUITEd.........cveieieieierieieieieieiee e 37.0 28.4
DEPIECIADIE ASSELS ....vevieiriieiieiieiietieitetteitetteit et et et est et est et e s testestestestensestentententensentensenbensesebensensensenes 7.3 7.4
ORT .ttt ettt ettt ea st e s et s e a e s e s e s e s et en et e et et et et et et e bebebebenee 2.2 4.5
Total Deferred Income Tax Liabilities. .......ccevriririririeiriieieeeietetee ettt ettt 282.5 3242
Net Deferred Income Tax ASSets (LIabilIIES).........cvevivirieiieiirieietieeteeeeeet ettt ettt evenea $ 319 $§ (215

The expiration of federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards and their related deferred income tax assets at
December 31, 2015 is presented below by year of expiration.

Cljl?rLy- Deferred
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS forwards Tax Asset
Expiring in:
2020 . s $ 78 § 2.7
2021 through 2025 ......ooieiiieiiee ettt ettt ettt 30.5 10.7
2026 through 2030 ......ccueiiiiiiiei ettt ettt ettt ettt 29.9 10.5
2032 ettt ettt s ettt ettt ettt ettt e bt et et et nee 18.9 6.6
TOLAl AL YEATS.....c.ciiiiiiiiiciciireeec ettt ettt ettt ettt n et $ 871 § 305

Except for the NOL carryforward scheduled to expire in 2032, all of the NOL carryforwards were acquired in connection with
business acquisitions made in prior years and are subject to annual usage limitations under the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company expects to fully utilize these federal NOL carryforwards.

The Company has not provided for Federal income taxes on $14.7 million of Mutual Savings Life’s income earned prior to
1984 which is not subject to income taxes under certain circumstances. Federal income taxes of $5.1 million would be paid on
such income if it is distributed to shareholders in the future or if it does not continue to meet certain limitations.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of Unrecognized Tax Benefits for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Balance at Beginning 0f YEar..........cocueirieirieieiiieiieiieieeieieteeit et $ 72 3 68 $ 6.4
Additions for Tax Positions of Current Period............ccevieviieieiieniieiieieieeieeeee e 0.2 0.1 0.1
Additions for Tax Positions of Prior YEars.........cccccveeveeierieeiiieieneeieeiese et — 0.3 0.3
Reduction for Expiration of Federal Statute of Limitations...........cccecveveeierieieneereenieneeeenen 3.6) — —
Balance at ENd Of YEaI........ocoioviiieiiceieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeetee ettt ettt $ 38 $ 72 % 6.8

97



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The statute of limitations related to Kemper and its eligible subsidiaries’ consolidated Federal income tax returns is closed for
all tax years up to and including 2011. The expiration of the statute of limitations related to the various state income tax returns
that Kemper and its subsidiaries file varies by state.

In the first quarter of 2015, the Company extended the federal statute of limitations for the 2007 through 2011 tax years until
December 31, 2015. The extension was requested by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) to provide the Joint Committee on
Taxation (“JCT”) additional time to complete a review required by statute. In the second quarter of 2015, the Company received
a letter indicating that the JCT had completed its review and had taken no exception to the IRS’s conclusion to accept the tax
returns as filed, effectively settling the extended years. Accordingly, the Company reduced its Liability for Unrecognized Tax
Benefits by $3.6 million for accrued interest and recognized an income tax benefit of $2.3 million in the second quarter of
2015.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, the Illinois Department of Revenue informed the Company that it intends to commence an
examination of the Illinois Income Tax Returns for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013. The Company does not
expect any material changes to the returns as originally filed.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 include $3.3 million, $3.4 million and $3.4 million,
respectively, for tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the
timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred income tax accounting, other than for interest and penalties, the
disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the effective income tax rate but would accelerate the payment
of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The liability
for Unrecognized Tax Benefits included accrued interest of $0.5 million, $3.8 million and $3.4 million at December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Tax expense includes a net interest benefit of $3.3 million, interest expense of $0.4 million and
interest expense of $0.4 million and related to unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

The components of Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Current Income TaX EXPENSE ......ccveviiiuirieiiiieiiiiieiiieieeteseetee et sse e ss e s ssesessenens $ (257 %8 (@17 $ (494
Deferred Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSEe)........ceeveuerierieiiieieniieieeieeeieeie et 2.2 (5.5) (50.1)
(Increase) Decrease Unrecognized Tax Benefits.........ccoecveievieiieiinienieieeeeeeeeeee 34 0.4) 0.4)
INCOME TAX EXPEIISE.....ecviiviiiiiiiiiieiieiietietieteeteeie et et eteeseeseeseessessesseseessessessessessessessessensessensensen $ (201) $ 47.6) $ (99.9

Net income taxes paid were $44.4 million, $37.2 million and $42.4 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

A reconciliation of the Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense and Rate to the Company’s Effective Income Tax Expense and
Rate from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is presented below.

2015 2014 2013

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense...........c.......... $ (350 35.0% $ (56.1) 35.0% $§ (110.0) 35.0%
Tax-exempt Income and Dividends Received

Deduction ......cceverererininereneneee e 9.8 9.7 9.0 (5.6) 10.6 3.4)
Unrecognized Tax Benefit (Expense)........cccccvevveeenenne 2.1 2.1 (0.3) — (0.3) —
Indemnification ReCoveries........cccovveviiivieecreeeneens 3.7 3.6) — — — —
State Income Taxes......ccccevereeneenineeneenenieneceneens 0.6) 0.5 (0.6) 0.4 (0.2) 0.1
Other, Net.....cooviriririeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen — — 0.4 (0.1) — 0.1
Effective Income Tax Expense from Continuing

OPETALIONS ...ttt saeeeenens $ (20.1) 20.1% $ (47.6) 297% $§  (99.9) 31.8%
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NOTE 15. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Comprehensive Income Tax Expense included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Income Tax Expense:

CONtINUING OPETALIONS ......vevveererierieieieietetetetesetesesessessessessessessessessessessessessessessensenses $ (201) $ 47.6) $ (99.9

DiscontinUed OPETALIONS .......c.cceeruierieeieriieieeieetesieeteeeesseesteestesseesseessesseesseesesseesseensenns 3.1 (1.1) (1.7)
Unrealized Depreciation (Appreciation) 0n SECUTILIES........ecveevereeerieeierieieeieseeerie e eeeeens 62.8 (82.8) 129.1
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on Investments ............coceveecieeciereecieeceeseeienne 0.5 0.4 0.1)
Tax Effects from Postretirement Benefit Plans............cocveeieeienieiiencieieeeeeeeeeeeseeee 9.1 34.7 (30.4)
Tax Effects from Long-term Equity-based Compensation included in Paid-in Capital........ (1.0) (1.0) 0.2
Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE)......cceveeeieieieieieieieieieieeeieeessessessesnas $ 300 $ (974 $ (2.8)

NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS

The Company sponsors a qualified defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”). The Pension Plan covers approximately
9,300 participants and beneficiaries, of which 2,000 are active employees. The Pension Plan is closed to new employees hired
after January 1, 2006. The Pension Plan is generally non-contributory, but participation requires or required some employees to
contribute 3% of pay, as defined, per year. Benefits for participants who are or were required to contribute to the Pension Plan
are based on compensation during plan participation and the number of years of participation. Benefits for the vast majority of
participants who are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan are based on years of service and final average pay, as

defined. The Company funds the Pension Plan in accordance with the requirements of ERISA.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Projected Benefit Obligation for the Pension Plan for the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning 0f Year.........ccecueiriririieieieieieieieeeeeee e
Actual REtUIN 0N PIAN ASSEES....cuievieiieiieiietieiieiieiieteeeettete et eee et et et et est e e st et esaessessessessensessensensensensensensenes
BENETIS PALd ...eeeeieiieie ettt ettt e a e bt ettt et e eatesheeteeaeennean

Actuarial LoSSES ((GAINS) ....ecueeuieieeiieiieieetieieeieette et etesetesteesseestesseesseassesseenseassesseenseansesseenseensesnsensennsennes
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year........c.cccveieeieiiieieieeeeeee e
Funded Status—PIlan Assets in Excess (Deficit) of Projected Benefit Obligation ...........ccccecevverieennnnen.
Unamortized Amount Reported in AOCI at End of Year:
Accumulated Actuarial oSS ......coeviriririiiriiieiteiteteteee ettt
PriOr SEIVICE CIEAIL. . .eueiuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiteitetet ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e b et e e nee
Unamortized Amount Reported in AOCT at End of Year.......coccvevieiiieiieieieeieceeeeeeeee e

Accumulated Benefit Obligation at End of Year........cccccvovieiiiiieiieiicieeeeeeeee e

2015 2014
$ 5430 $ 5245
(10.6) 41.7
(24.9) (23.2)
507.5 543.0
634.0 515.5
10.5 8.7
25.7 24.8
(24.9) (23.2)
— (0.6)
@475  108.8
597.8 634.0
$  (90.3) (91.0)
$ (1522) $ (178.6)
0.4 0.5

EEHED)

$ (178.1)

$ 5739 § 6082

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year presented in the preceding table under the headings, “2015”

and “2014” were December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.
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The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to estimate the components of the

Projected Benefit Obligation for the Pension Plan at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

2015 2014

DHSCOUNTE RALE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et s et e st et et e s e e e s e s eseeae e es e e eseneenesneneas 4.47% 4.10%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LEVELS .......c.cccvevuieiirieriieieeieeeeeeeee e 3.15 3.31
Weighted-average asset allocations for the Pension Plan at December 31, 2015 and 2014 by asset category were:

ASSET CATEGORY 2015 2014
Cash and Short-term INVESTMENTS ........ccevtiriiririiirieiiieeeet ettt ettt 4% 4%
Corporate Bonds and NOLES .........ccieciieiirieiieiesiesie e eteieeie st e steeseseesseessessaesseessesssesseessesssesseessesssesses 28 29
Common and Preferred SEOCKS .........oiiiiriiiiiiiicece ettt 43 43
Exchange Traded FUNAS ........coooiiiiiiiri ettt 9 12
Other Assets 16 12
Total..cccooerereeenn 100%

100%

The investment objective of the Pension Plan is to produce current income and long-term capital growth through a combination
of equity and fixed income investments which, together with appropriate employer contributions and any required employee
contributions, is adequate to provide for the payment of the benefit obligations of the Pension Plan. The assets of the Pension
Plan may be invested in fixed income and equity investments or any other investment vehicle or financial instrument deemed
appropriate. Fixed income investments may include cash and short-term instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate
bonds, mortgages and other fixed income investments. Equity investments may include various types of stock, such as large-
cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks, and may also include investments in investment companies, collective investment funds and

Kemper common stock (subject to Section 407 and other requirements of ERISA). The Pension Plan has not invested in

Kemper common stock.

The trust investment committee for the Pension Plan, along with its third party fiduciary advisor, periodically reviews the
performance of the Pension Plan’s investments and asset allocation. Several external investment managers, one of which is

Fayez Sarofim & Co. (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements), manage the equity

investments of the trust for the Pension Plan. Each manager is allowed to exercise investment discretion, subject to limitations,
if any, established by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan. All other investment decisions are made by the

Company, subject to general guidelines as set by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan.

The Company determines its Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets based primarily on the Company’s

expectations of future returns, with consideration to historical returns, for the Pension Plan’s investments, based on target

allocations of the Pension Plan’s investments.
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NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2015 are summarized below.

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
J AN 13 016 6 15 1< $ 19.2 §$ — — 19.2
States and Political Subdivisions .............ccceveene. — 3.2 — 3.2
Corporate Bonds and Notes ........c.ccoceeevererenncnne. — 122.2 — 122.2
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 6.1 — 6.1
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing .........cocceeeevveeneinecnenieeneennes 77.9 16.2 — 94.1
Other IndUsStries .........ccevveviieienieieeieeieie e 82.5 1.8 — 84.3
Other Equity Interests:
Collective Investment Funds............cccccoevnnee. — 31.1 31.1
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccceceevvvrinnnnnne. 47.2 — — 47.2
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........occeeeeeeeeeieieieieieieieeeene — — 78.2 78.2
Short-term INVestments...........cc.cceeeeerievneeeenreenneennans 20.4 — — 20.4
Receivables and Other ............cccoeveiieiiiieieeicneene, 1.1 — 0.4 1.5
TOtal .o $ 2483 $ 180.6 $ 78.6 $ 507.5

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plan’s assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Other Equity Receivables
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Interests and Other Total
Balance at Beginning of Year........cccecivirieieinieieieieieieeeeeee e $ 645 $ 04 $ 64.9
Return on Plan Assets Held..........oooviioiiiiiiiiciccecceeeeeee e (1.5) — 1.5)
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net......cc...coovviiieiiiiieiiieeeeeeceeeeeeevee e 15.2 — 15.2
Balance at End of YEar........ccooviiiiiiiieeeeeee e $ 782 $ 04 S 78.6
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NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

Fair value measurements for the Pension Plan’s assets at December 31, 2014 are summarized below.

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
J AN 13 016 6 15 1< $ 184 $ — 3 — 3 18.4
States and Political Subdivisions .............ccceveene. — 33 — 33
Corporate Bonds and Notes ...........cccoveeverieninennne — 136.6 — 136.6
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 6.4 — 6.4
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing .......c.cocceeeevveiniecinccncniecneene. 98.8 15.0 — 113.8
Other IndUStries .........ccevvvevieeierieieeieeieie e 79.3 2.3 — 81.6
Other Equity Interests:
Collective Investment Funds............ccccceenenee. — 30.0 — 30.0
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccecvevvvrinnnnnne. 65.5 — — 65.5
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships........ccoceeeeeeeeieieieieieeeieieeeene — — 64.5 64.5
Short-term INVestments...........c.occveeeerienneeienreenneennans 21.5 — — 21.5
Receivables and Other ............cccoevevviiieeiiiecieneee, 1.0 — 0.4 1.4
TOtal .o $ 2845 $ 193.6 $ 649 § 543.0

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plan’s assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2014 is presented below.

Other Equity Receivables

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Interests and Other Total

Balance at Beginning of Year.........ccocvevievieieieieieieieieieeeeeiee e seeaesseae e ns $ 469 $ 05 § 47.4
Return on Plan Assets Held..........oooviiviiiiiiiiicieceeeceece e 3.4 — 3.4
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, NEt ........cc.eeeivuiiiiiiieiieeieeeeeee et 14.2 0.1) 14.1
Balance at End of Year.........cooouiiiiiiieeee e $ 645 $ 04 § 64.9

The components of Comprehensive Pension Expense (Income) for the Pension Plan for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Service Cost Earned DUuring the Year..........ccccveveieieieieieieiieieieieieeesesseeeseesessesesaeaens $ 105 S 87 $ 108
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation..........c.ccvevueeierieniieienieieeieeeeie e 25.7 24.8 22.4
Expected Return on Plan ASSELS.........cuevieiieierieiieeiesiteie ettt sre e saesseessessaesseense e (35.0) (34.9) (29.7)
Amortization 0f ActUarial LoSS .......coeveriririnininieieeieeeeeieeeeet ettt 24.4 9.7 26.2
Pension Expense Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income..........cceoveieienenneee. 25.6 8.3 29.7
Unrecognized Pension Loss (Gain) Arising During the Year.........cccecvevveieienienienienienieene. 1.9 102.0 (53.8)
Prior Service Credit Arising During the Year.........cc.ccocoireininiiinieineineneeneeeeeenenens — (0.6) —
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized Pension LOSS.........ccceeveieieiiienieienieieieene 24.4) 9.7) (26.2)
Comprehensive Pension EXpense (INCOME) .........ceeeriririririeieieieieieieieieeeee e $ ©0.7) $ 1000 $ (50.3)
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NOTE 16. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

The Company estimates that Pension Expense for the Pension Plan for the year ended December 31, 2016 will include expense
of $11.8 million resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial loss included in AOCI at December 31,
2015.

The weighted-average discount rate, rate of increase in future compensation levels and expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets used to develop the components of Pension Expense for the Pension Plan for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 were:

2015 2014 2013
DISCOUNE RALE ...ttt 4.10% 4.90% 4.05%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels.........cocveieeieniieiienieneeieeeeeeie e 3.31 3.05 3.08
Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan ASSEtS.........ccevveriieieeienieeieeiesieeie e 6.75 7.00 7.00

On September 3, 2013, the Company made a voluntary cash contribution of $55.0 million to the Pension Plan. The Company
did not contribute to the Pension Plan in 2015 or 2014. The Company does not expect that it will be required to contribute to the
Pension Plan in 2016, but could make a voluntary contribution pursuant to the maximum funding limits under ERISA.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid from the Pension Plan:

Years Ending December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021-2025
Estimated Pension Benefit Payments ......................... $§ 263 § 277 $§ 291 $§ 303 $§ 315 $§ 1744

The Company also sponsors a non-qualified supplemental defined benefit pension plan (the “Supplemental Plan”). The
unfunded liability related to the Supplemental Plan was $30.4 million and $31.0 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Pension expense for the Supplemental Plan was $2.1 million, $1.8 million and $1.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. An actuarial gain of $1.5 million before taxes, an actuarial loss of $7.0
million before taxes and an actuarial gain of $1.5 million before taxes are included in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for
the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company also sponsors several defined contribution benefit plans covering most of its employees. The Company made
contributions to those plans of $7.8 million, $7.3 million and $7.3 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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NOTE 17. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company sponsors an other than pension postretirement employee benefit plan (“OPEB”) that provides medical, dental
and/or life insurance benefits to approximately 500 retired and 250 active employees (the “OPEB Plan”). The Company
generally is self-insured for the benefits under the OPEB Plan. The medical plan generally provides for a limited number of
years of medical insurance benefits at retirement based on the participant’s attained age at retirement and number of years of
service until specified dates and generally requires participant contributions, with most contributions adjusted annually.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of Year..........ccoecverieiiieieriieieeieeeieeteseeie e $ — 3 —
EMPIOYEr CONEITDULIONS ....c.vieiiiiiieiieteeiesiieie et e steete et eteesae st eseessesssessaessessaesseassesssessaessesssesseessenssessens 34 34
Plan Participants’ CONITDULIONS. .......c.eeverieriieieeiesteeieetiesieeieseeesteessesssesseessesssesseessesssesseessesssesseessenssesses 1.2 1.2
BENETIS PAIA ....uviiieiieie ettt ettt ettt et e et et ebe e st e e taesbe e s b e eta e beesbeesaebeenbeesaenseenseesaennean 4.6) (4.6)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at ENd 0f Year.........ocoviriiiiinirieeeteee e — —
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year.........c.ccccoccvinvineicnccncnncnnne. 31.1 35.1
SEIVICE COSE ...ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt et et s ettt a s e bt ese st et et s b e st sae e enene e 0.2 0.2
INEETEST COSE eventinitinieiiteicrtcieetet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et b et ettt et et ebe s ebesae e et et eae s euenaenea 1.0 1.1
Plan Participants’” CONIIDULIONS. ........c.evertirtiriiriietieieetieiteitet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et ebesaetesesesenes 1.2 1.2
BENETItS PAIA ....uviiiiiieiicieie ettt ettt ettt et e b e e sb e ts e b e esbeere e be e st e eaa e beenbeeraesbeenbeeraenrean 4.6) (4.6)
Medicare Part D Subsidy Received 0.3 0.1
Actuarial Loss (Gain)..........cccoeeevvreieneenneennnn. 0.4 (2.0)
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at End of Year.........cocevveverienienienenieneeeeeeee 29.6 31.1
Funded Status—Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets ................... $ (29.6) $§ (31.1)
Unamortized Actuarial Gain Reported in AOCT at End of Year...........cccoooveeiieiiiiiiicicceccee $ 168 $ 18.6

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year in the preceding table under the headings “2015” and “2014”
were December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop the components of the
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

2015 2014
DISCOUNTE RALE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt 3.70% 3.40%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVElS .........cccveouieiierieiieieeieeeeeeeee e 2.64 2.68

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31,
2015 was 7.0% for 2016, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2024 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical
benefits and 11.0% for 2016, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2024 and remaining at that level thereafter for prescription
drug benefits. The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at
December 31, 2014 was 8.0% for 2015, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2023 and remaining at that level thereafter for
medical benefits and 7.5% for 2015, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2023 and remaining at that level thereafter for
prescription drug benefits.

A one-percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would have increased the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2015 by $1.5 million and 2015 OPEB expense by $0.1 million. A one-
percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would have increased the Accumulated
Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2014 by $1.7 million and 2014 OPEB expense by $0.1 million.
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NOTE 17. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)

The components of Comprehensive OPEB Income for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Service Cost Earned DUuring the Year..........ccccveieieieieieieieieieieieeeeeieeeee s naens $ 02 § 02 $ 0.2
Interest Cost on Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation .............ccecceveeerieiriienncne 1.0 1.1 1.2
Amortization of Actuarial GalN...........ccevieriieierieieeieeiee e et be e sseeeeas 1.4) (1.8) (1.2)
OPEB Expense (Income) Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income..................... 0.2) (0.5) 0.2
Unrecognized OPEB Loss (Gain) Arising During the Year.........cccccoevvevievieecienierieeieeeeens 0.4 (2.0) (6.2)
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized OPEB Gain...........ccceeevevievieecienienieeieeeeenn 14 1.8 1.2
Comprehensive OPEB Expense (INCOME).........cocveieieieieieieeieieieieseeeesessessessesessesesses $ 1.6 $ 0.7) $ (4.8)

The Company estimates that OPEB Expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 will include income of $1.3 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial gain included in AOCI at December 31, 2015.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future compensation levels used to develop OPEB Expense for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

2015 2014 2013
DiISCOUNE RALE ......ouiiiiiiiiiiiccrtcrcee ettt ettt 3.40% 4.00% 3.15%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels.........ccecveieirieieieieieieieeeeeeeen 2.68 2.10 2.10

The Company expects to contribute $3.3 million, net of the expected Medicare Part D subsidy, to its OPEB Plan to fund benefit
payments in 2016.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021-2025
Estimated Benefit Payments:
Excluding Medicare Part D Subsidy..............c...... $ 36 § 36 § 35 § 34 § 32§ 135
Expected Medicare Part D Subsidy ..........cccc........ 0.3) 0.3) (0.3) (0.3) (0.3) (1.5)
Net Estimated Benefit Payments .............cccoeevevenenene. $ 33 8§ 33 8§ 32§ 31 § 29 § 120

NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses.
The Company conducts its operations through two operating segments: Property & Casualty Insurance and Life & Health Insurance.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s principal products are personal automobile insurance, both standard and
nonstandard risks, homeowners insurance, other personal insurance and commercial automobile insurance. These products are
distributed primarily through independent agents and brokers. The Life & Health Insurance segment’s principal products are
individual life, accident, health and property insurance. These products are distributed by career agents employed by the
Company and independent agents and brokers.

The Company’s earned premiums are derived in the United States. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Capital expenditures for long-lived assets by operating segment are immaterial.

It is the Company’s management practice to allocate certain corporate expenses, primarily compensation costs for corporate
employees and related facility costs, included in Interest and Other Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income to its
insurance operations. The amount of such allocated corporate expenses was $43.4 million, $42.1 million and $39.7 million for
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NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company does not allocate Net Realized Gains on Sales
of Investments, Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings, interest expense on debt or postretirement benefit plans, and
actuarial gains and losses on its postretirement benefit plans to its operating segments.

Segment Assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE ........ccueeierieiieieeiieii ettt ete et et eete et esseentesstesseesseesaesseensesssesseensesnsessens $2,749.0 $ 2,486.1
Life & Health INSUTANCE..........cooveiieeieie ettt e et e et e e e eat e e s eaae e e e enteeeseateeesenreeesenseeas 4,733.9 4,810.6
Corporate and OthEr, NEL.......c.cccieiieiieieeiee ettt ete et e et et e te et e e e esseessesseesseesseessesseensesssesseensesssessen 553.2 536.7
TOTAL ASSEES ... vttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e s et e e et e eaaeeeaseesatesaseeeaaeesateessseesaseesaseeneeenseesnteesnteesnteenneeanns $ 8,036.1 $ 7,833.4

Earned Premiums by product line for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Personal AULOIIODILE ........ooouiiieiiieieeee ettt ettt e e eeeaeeeaeesveesnaeesaneenns $1,027.7 $ 8314 $ 959.1
HOMEOWIETS ... ..eeiiiiiiieie ettt et e et e et e s bt e s sbeeseeenseeenseesnseesnseesneenns 286.3 3124 326.2
Other Personal Property and Casualty INSUTANCE ...........ccecveeeeeieieieieieieieieieee e 122.1 127.4 134.1
Commercial AULOMODILE .......cc.eviriiiiiiiiieiieieeeeee ettt 54.5 54.8 523
L@ ettt a et s ettt ettt et et etenaentan 374.1 387.6 392.7
Accident and Health .........ccooiiiiiiiiii et 144.9 148.6 161.4
Total EArned PIeImMIUMIS .....occvviiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e et e e e eeeenaaeeeenaseessnnsessenneeas $2,009.6 $1,862.2 § 2,025.8

Segment Revenues, including a reconciliation to Total Revenues, for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Segment Revenues:
Property & Casualty Insurance:

Earned PremIUITIS. .......coviioiiiiiieieieeeee ettt ettt et et e vt e eaeeenteeesaeeeaeeentesenseeenseesans $ 14152 $12495 $ 11,3929
Net Investment INCOME.........ceouiiiiriiiiiieeieee ettt 73.3 72.7 90.9
Other INCOIME ...ttt ettt b e be et e s et e beebesaeesaeenseens 0.6 0.5 0.5
Total Property & Casualty INSUIance..........cceeverieiiieierieieeeseee e 1,489.1 1,322.7 1,484.3
Life & Health Insurance:
Earned Premitms ... ....c.oiieriieiiiiesieee ettt sttt st e et esaeesaeenne e 594.4 612.7 632.9
Net INVestment INCOME........ccueiiiieiieieeiee ettt 214.2 218.7 209.9
Other INCOIME ..ottt ettt ettt e et et e et e et e s st eseentesseesseenseeneesseensenns 24 0.9 0.2
Total Life & Health INSUTANCE..........cciiieriieiieieeieieeeetee et 811.0 832.3 843.0
Total SeZMENt REVENUES ......cocuiiiieieeiieiieie ettt ettt et et e s e e beesbessaesseensesseesseensenns 2,300.1 2,155.0 2,327.3
Net Realized Gains on the Sales of INVEStMENtS .......cc.eeverieriieiirieieeieeeereee e 52.1 39.1 99.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........c.cccvecueeierieesieeieneenieeiesiesieeee e (27.2) (15.2) (13.9)
ONET ottt ettt ettt te bt teete st e rtete e st ett e st essesaesbe st estessensensensensensan 15.8 17.7 14.0
TOLAl REVEIIUES ...ttt ettt e et et e e et e sateesaaeesaaeesaseenseenseesnsessnseesnneenns $2,340.8 $2,196.6 $ 2,426.5
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Segment Operating Profit, including a reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes, for the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Segment Operating Profit:

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE .........cceeuieeieieiieeieieeieieeeeeieeeeeeeeeseeeesaesaeaeaessessessessessessens $ 237 $ 271 $ 1396

Life & Health INSUTANCE.....c..cceviriiririirieriiereeeeseeeeete ettt 109.7 141.9 136.9
Total Segment Operating Profit..........ccocveciieierieiieieeiee et 133.4 169.0 276.5
Corporate and Other Operating LOSS........ccueeierierieeienieiiieieseesie et esie e seesseebeseesseenseees (48.9) (32.7) (47.3)
Total OPerating Profit.........cceeiiiiieieeieieieeee ettt esaesbeesbessaesseense e 84.5 136.3 229.2
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENTS .........ccoeoieieiiiiiiiieieieieieeeeeeeeee e 52.1 39.1 99.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............ccoecvevieeeienieniiecieeienieeeieseeve e (27.2) (15.2) (13.9)
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt............cccccooiviiiiniiiiiiiiiiccicce 9.1) — —
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes .........cccecveveveieierienienienienieennen $ 1003 $ 1602 $ 3144

Segment Net Operating Income, including a reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations, for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Segment Net Operating Income:

Property & Casualty INSUAINCE ..........cveveviiriereririieteieiieeseieietes ettt se e esesesessesesens $ 267 $ 249 $ 100.6

Life & Health INSUANCE.........cceviriieiiriieiieiieieieeitieeeeee ettt 71.7 91.8 89.3
Total Segment Net Operating INCOME .........ceevriririeieieieieieteteiee ettt 98.4 116.7 189.9
Corporate and Other Net Operating LOSS .......ccveveirieieieieieieieieieieeeieteeeseeessenaeseenees (28.5) (19.6) (30.7)
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME .........ceeeiririeieieieieieeeteteieeee ettt aenees 69.9 97.1 159.2
Net Income (Loss) From:

Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENLS ........c.ecueveieieieieieieieieieieeeeeee e 33.9 25.4 64.4

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ...........ccceeeevieeienienieniienceneeiesceeeeee a7.7) 9.9) ©.1)

Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt ...........cccocieiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 5.9 — —
Income from Continuing OPETations.........c.eeveruierieeierieieeieneeerteeteeee e eeeeeee e eteseesaeenaeens $ 802 $ 1126 § 2145

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs by Operating Segment for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE.........cccieieieiieiieiieieeieieeeeeeeeeeee e estesesseseaesaessessessessensenses $ 2131 $ 1875 § 2072
Life & Health INSUTANCE ........oocviiiiiicie ettt ettt e e e eareeeaneenns 44.3 47.9 46.7
TOtal AMOTTIZALION. ........eieeeeeeeee ettt ettt et e ettt e eaeeeae e e eseeeteenseeseeeteeneeeseeesneeeens $ 2574 § 2354 $ 2539
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NOTE 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The Company accounts for its former Unitrin Business Insurance operations as discontinued operations.

Summary financial information included in Income from Discontinued Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2015 2014 2013

Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes:
Change in Estimate of Retained Liabilities Arising from Discontinued Operations....... 8.6 3.0 4.9
INCOME TaAX EXPENSE....eeiiiiiiiiiiieieeiiesiieie ettt ettt ettt e et e saaesseesaessaenseensessaenseessenns 3.1 (1.1) (1.7)
$ 55 § 19 § 3.2

Income from Discontinued Operations..

Income from Discontinued Operations Per Unrestricted Share:
BASIC ..ttt s ettt n et n et e st et e e ene s eneebene e $ 010 $§ 004 $ 0.06
DIIULEA ...ttt ettt ettt st n et et ene s s b ne e $ 010 $§ 004 $§ 0.06

In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to the date of the sale. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves reported
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include $50.3 million and $69.3 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, for the retained liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, changes in the Company’s estimate of such retained
liabilities after the sale are reported as a separate component of the results of discontinued operations. See Note 6, “Property
and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE

Catastrophes and natural disasters are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events
and natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and
winter storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations
and financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more
likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty
insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct insured losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
that follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions, and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property and
casualty insurance businesses.
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Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2015
to December 31, 2015 is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Property & Casualty Insurance Segment:
RELAINEA -ttt ettt S — 3 50.0 —%
1st Layer of Coverage 50.0 150.0 95.0
21nd Layer Of COVETAZE .....ccvvevireieeiieiieieeieit et ete st ete ettt e aeeteseeesseesseseaesseenseensenes 150.0 350.0 95.0

Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2014
to December 31, 2014 is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
RETAINEA ....cvivieiieieieieetei ettt ettt b et bbb st se s s esess s esesenis $ — 3 50.0 —%
1St Layer Of COVEIAZE. ......eeeruiririieiieiieiteiteiteiteiteitete ettt ettt aes 50.0 100.0 95.0
20d Layer Of COVETAZE .....coveuieuieiieiieiieieieiieitetete ettt ettt ettt aenean 100.0 200.0 95.0
3rd Layer Of COVETAZE ......evvevuiriiriiriieiieieeieeiteteete ettt ettt ettt e eneen 200.0 400.0 95.0

Coverage for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2013
to December 31, 2013 is provided in various layers as presented below.

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Property & Casualty Insurance Segment:

REEAINEA ..ttt es st seen $ — 8 50.0 —%

ISt Layer Of COVETAZE. ... .ocuviriieiiiieieeie ettt ettt sttt ettt 50.0 100.0 65.0

20nd Layer Of COVETAZE ....ccuveviiiieriieiieiieeitete ettt ettt sttt st eas 100.0 200.0 95.0

3rd Layer Of COVETAZE ... ccoveeeiriietieieeiiesitete ettt ettt ettt ae et e sae e e eneesaee e s 200.0 350.0 90.0

4th Layer Of COVETAZE .....vveueeuieiieieeiieriieteeite st eieette st et tte st e e eneesaeeeeeneesaeeseeneenaes 350.0 450.0 50.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Property & Casualty Insurance segment in 2013 also included reinsurance
coverage, under a policy that expired on June 1, 2013, for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those
presented in the preceding table.

In the event that the Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by any of its
catastrophe reinsurance programs presented in the three preceding tables exceed the retention for that particular layer, each of
the programs required one reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Property & Casualty Insurance segment is
required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer.

The Property & Casualty Insurance segment’s catastrophe reinsurance in 2015, 2014 and 2013 also included reinsurance
coverage from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described above. The Life & Health
Insurance also purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida. Except for the coverage provided by the
FHCEF, the Life & Health Insurance segment has not carried any other catastrophe reinsurance since 2012, primarily due to
actions taken by the Life & Health Insurance segment to reduce its exposures to catastrophes.
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Reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs, the NC Program and the FHCF Program
reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013

Property & Casualty INSUTANCE.........cccieieieieiieiieieieieeeeeeeeeeseeesessesseaesessessessessessessenses $ 128 $ 176 § 236
Life & Health INSUTANCE .....c..coevuiviiiiiiiinieieecceeete et 0.1 0.1 —
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premitms...........veveveveieieieieieieienieseseesiessesennes $ 129 $ 177 § 236

Catastrophe losses and LAE (including reserve development), net of reinsurance recoveries, for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013 by business segment are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2015 2014 2013
Property & Casualty INSUTANCE..........ceeuierierieeieiieiieiieeieeeeteit ettt e et seese s s esaessessessesessessas $ 566 $ 807 $ 3406
Life & Health INSUTANCE ........ecuveiieieeiieiieieeiieie ettt aesse b e esaesbaesbesssessaensenes 3.9 3.1 1.6

Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE $ 605 $ 838 $ 362
Total catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $7.8 million, $14.7 million
and $14.5 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Property & Casualty Insurance segment reported favorable
catastrophe reserve development of $7.9 million, $15.8 million and $12.5 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
Life & Health Insurance segment reported adverse catastrophe reserve development of $0.1 million in 2015, adverse
catastrophe reserve development of $1.1 million in 2014 and favorable catastrophe reserve development of $2.0 million in
2013.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of actual reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The Company’s
estimates of direct catastrophe losses are generally based on inspections by claims adjusters and historical loss development
experience for areas that have not been inspected or for claims that have not yet been reported. The Company’s estimates of
direct catastrophe losses are based on the coverages provided by its insurance policies. The Company’s homeowners and
dwelling insurance policies do not provide coverage for losses caused by floods, but generally provide coverage for physical
damage caused by wind or wind-driven rain. Accordingly, the Company’s estimates of direct losses for homeowners and
dwelling insurance do not include losses caused by flood. Depending on the policy, automobile insurance may provide coverage
for losses caused by flood. Estimates of the number and severity of claims ultimately reported are influenced by many
variables, including, but not limited to, repair or reconstruction costs and determination of cause of loss that are difficult to
quantify and will influence the final amount of claim settlements. All these factors, coupled with the impact of the availability
of labor and material on costs, require significant judgment in the reserve setting process. A change in any one or more of these
factors is likely to result in an ultimate net claim cost different from the estimated reserve. The Company’s estimates of indirect
losses from wind pools and joint underwriting associations are based on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, actual
or estimated assessments provided by or received from such entities, insurance industry estimates of losses, and estimates of the
Company’s market share in the assessable states. Actual assessments may differ materially from these estimated amounts.
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NOTE 21. OTHER REINSURANCE

In addition to the reinsurance programs described in Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide
greater diversification of risk and to minimize exposures on larger risks. The ceding of insurance does not discharge the primary
liability of the original insurer. Accordingly, insurance reserve liabilities are reported gross of any estimated recovery from
reinsurers in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the insurance reserve liability and are included in Other Receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earned Premiums ceded on long-duration and short-duration policies were $20.6 million, $26.0 million and $33.9 million for
the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of which $12.9 million, $17.7 million and $23.6 million,
respectively, was related to catastrophe reinsurance. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information regarding the Company’s catastrophe reinsurance programs. Certain insurance
subsidiaries assume business from other insurance companies and involuntary pools. Earned Premiums assumed on long-
duration and short-duration policies were $60.0 million, $57.1 million and $52.7 million for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Trinity and Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (“Capitol”) are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement
whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by Capitol, subject to a cap, for ceded losses for dwelling coverage.
Earned Premiums assumed by Trinity from Capitol were $21.8 million, $21.9 million and $22.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Capitol is a mutual insurance company and, accordingly, is owned by its
policyholders. Trinity and Old Reliable Casualty Company (“ORCC”), a subsidiary of Capitol, are parties to a quota share
reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by ORCC, subject to a cap for ceded losses for
dwelling coverage. Earned Premiums assumed by Trinity from ORCC were $6.5 million, $6.7 million and $7.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Five employees of the Company serve as directors of Capitol’s five member board of directors. Nine employees of the
Company also serve as directors of ORCC’s nine member board of directors. Kemper’s subsidiary, United Insurance, provides
claims and administrative services to Capitol and ORCC. In addition, agents appointed by Kemper’s subsidiary, The Reliable
Life Insurance Company, and who are employed by United Insurance, are also appointed by Capitol and ORCC to sell property
insurance products for the Company’s Life & Health Insurance segment. The Company also provides certain investment
services to Capitol and ORCC.
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NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company classifies its Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities as available for sale and reports these
investments at fair value. The Company has elected the fair value option method of accounting for investments in certain hedge
funds and, accordingly, reports these investments at fair value. The Company classifies certain investments in mutual funds
included in Other Investments as trading securities and reports these investments at fair value. The Company has no material
liabilities that are measured and reported at fair value.

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2015 is
summarized below.

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULROTIHES e $ 1249 $ 1957 $ — 3 320.6
States and Political Subdivisions .............c..cccue.... — 1,622.6 — 1,622.6
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes..........oooveviiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeenes — 2,376.5 436.3 2,812.8
Redeemable Preferred Stocks..........ccevvueeneee. — — 3.8 3.8
Collateralized Loan Obligations....................... — — 87.3 87.3
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed.................. — 1.4 3.8 5.2
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities....................... 124.9 4,196.2 531.2 4,852.3
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 79.8 5.1 84.9
Other INdUSEIIES ....eovvevveeieeieeieieieieeeeeeeeeeeees — 6.2 12.8 19.0
Common Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. 16.6 6.6 — 23.2
Other Industries .........ccevvevereenieneiieneeeeene 0.6 0.8 12.1 13.5
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........ccccceovvieniennnnnn. 177.1 — — 177.1
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......ccccoeeeveenieienieeeeeeeeeee — — 205.5 205.5
Total Investments in Equity Securities ...................... 194.3 93.4 235.5 523.2
Fair Value Option Investments:
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships Hedge Funds...........c.cccocoevvuenenee. — — 164.5 164.5
Other Investments:
Trading SECUrities .......ccoecververeeierienieeie e 4.7 — — 4.7
TOtAl v $ 3239 $ 4,289.6 $ 931.2 $ 5,544.7

At December 31, 2015, the Company had unfunded commitments to invest an additional $107.6 million in certain limited
liability investment companies and limited partnerships that will be included in Other Equity Interests when funded.
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The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2014 is
summarized below.

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUThOTIHES ...t $ 129.2 § 2163 § — 3 345.5
States and Political Subdivisions ........c.ccccoeeueeennn. — 1,477.1 — 1,477.1
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes...........coovviiiviiieiciiiceciieeeenes — 2,517.9 360.6 2,878.5
Redeemable Preferred Stocks................ — — 6.7 6.7
Collateralized Loan Obligations — — 64.4 64.4
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed.................. — 1.5 3.9 5.4
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities ..................... 129.2 4,212.8 435.6 4,777.6
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 84.7 5.0 89.7
Other IndUStIies .......coceevvvieieieieieieeeeeee — 34 16.4 19.8
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........ccoceeveeeeeeeieieiereeeeeenes 50.9 5.7 0.6 57.2
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 34.8 0.1 5.6 40.5
Other IndUSEIIES ....covvevveeieeieieieieieeeeeeeeeee 24.2 0.7 11.2 36.1
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds..........ccocveveveinnennne. 202.7 — — 202.7
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships......c.ccoceevevevenencncnennenn — — 186.2 186.2
Total Investments in Equity Securities 312.6 94.6 225.0 632.2

Fair Value Option Investments:
Limited Liability Companies and Limited

Partnerships Hedge Funds..........ccccoocvenienenen. — — 53.3 53.3
Other Investments:

4.9 — — 4.9
$ 446.7 $ 43074 $ 7139 $ 5,468.0

The Company’s investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 1 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 1 in the two
preceding tables consist either of investments in publicly-traded common stocks or exchange traded funds. The Company’s
investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of investments in
corporate bonds, obligations of states and political subdivisions, and bonds and mortgage-backed securities of U.S. government
agencies. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily
consist of investments in preferred stocks. The Company uses a leading, nationally recognized provider of market data and
analytics to price the vast majority of the Company’s Level 2 measurements. The provider utilizes evaluated pricing models that
vary by asset class and incorporate available trade, bid and other market information. Because many fixed maturity securities
do not trade on a daily basis, the provider’s evaluated pricing applications apply available information through processes such
as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings, and matrix pricing to prepare evaluations. In addition,
the provider uses model processes to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The pricing provider’s models and
processes also take into account market convention. For each asset class, teams of its evaluators gather information from market
sources and integrate relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news into the evaluated pricing
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applications and models. The Company generally validates the measurements obtained from its primary pricing provider by
comparing them with measurements obtained from one additional pricing provider that provides either prices from recent
market transactions or quotes in inactive markets or evaluations based on its own proprietary models.

The Company investigates significant differences related to the values provided. On completion of its investigation,
management exercises judgment to determine the price selected and whether adjustments, if any, to the price obtained from the
Company’s primary pricing provider would warrant classification of the price as Level 3. In instances where a measurement
cannot be obtained from either pricing provider, the Company generally will evaluate bid prices from one or more binding
quotes obtained from market makers to value investments in inactive markets and classified by the Company as Level 2. The
Company generally classifies securities when it receives non-binding quotes or indications as Level 3 securities unless the
Company can validate the quote or indication against recent transactions in the market.

The Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
privately placed securities not rated by a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization and are priced primarily using a
market yield approach. A market yield approach uses a risk-free rate plus a credit spread depending on the underlying credit
profile of the security. For floating rate securities, the risk-free rate used in the market yield is the contractual floating rate of
the security. For each individual security, the Company or the Company’s third party appraiser gathers information from market
sources, relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news and determines an appropriate market yield
for each security. The market yield selected is then used to discount the estimated future cash flows of the security to determine
the fair value. The Company separately evaluates market yields based upon asset class to assess the reasonableness of the
recorded fair value. For non-investment-grade Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3, the two primary
asset classes are senior debt and junior debt. Senior debt includes those securities that receive first priority in a liquidation and
junior debt includes any fixed maturity security with other than first priority in a liquidation.

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for fixed maturity investments in corporate securities classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2015.

Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable ‘Xffiegrl:gg

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
INVeStMENt-grade ............ccoevveieieieieieieieeeeeeeeee e Market Yield $  98.7 2.6% - 6.9% 4.4%
Non-investment-grade:

SEeNIOr DEbL ...ovvevieeieiieiicieiceeeee e Market Yield 114.2 59 - 153 104

JUNIOT DEbL..c.viviiiiiciicccee e Market Yield 216.3 82 - 262 13.6
Collateralized Loan Obligations...........ccceevevevvecveveruerveruesuennens Market Yield 87.3 31 - 108 6.1
ONCT .ottt esaennens Various 14.7
Total Fixed Maturity Investments in Corporate Securities......... $ 531.2

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for fixed maturity investments in corporate securities classified as Level 3 at December 31, 2014.

Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable ‘Xsiegl“[;gg

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
INVeStmMent-grade ........ccccceeviecieiienieie e Market Yield $ 107.0 2.8% - 6.9% 3.9%
Non-investment-grade:

SENIOT DEDL ...t Market Yield 92.7 3.8 - 14.5 10.6

JUNIOT DEDL...ceiiiiiciieiee e Market Yield 149.9 82 - 21.0 13.4
Collateralized Loan Obligations.............ccccevveierienieerienienieennens Market Yield 64.4 2.7 - 8.1 52
ONET ..ottt ettt ettt e s esaeenbeas Various 21.6
Total Fixed Maturity Investments in Corporate Securities......... § 4356
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For an investment in a fixed maturity security, an increase in the yield used to determine the fair value of the security will
decrease the fair value of the security. A decrease in the yield used to determine fair value will increase the fair value of the
security, but the fair value increase is generally limited to par, unless callable at a premium, if the security is currently callable.

The Company’s other investments that are classified as Level 3 primarily consist of Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships, but also certain Preferred Stocks and Common Stocks. The Company either uses valuations provided by third
party fund managers, third party appraisers, or that are generated internally. These valuations typically employ various
valuation techniques commonly used in the industry, including earnings multiples based on comparable public securities,
industry-specific non-earnings based multiples, market yields based on comparable public securities and discounted cash flow
models.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2015 is presented below.

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Other Preferred
Bonds Redeemable Collateralized Mortgage- and Other Fair
and Preferred Loan and Asset- Common Equity Value
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Obligations backed Stocks Interests Option Total

Balance at Beginning of
Year....oovenineneneniene, $ 3606 $ 6.7 $ 644 $ 39 $§ 388 $ 1862 $ 533 §$ 7139

Total Gains (Losses):

Included in Consolidated

Statements of Income . 94 1.6) 0.6 — (2.6) a.1) 0.2 17.9)
Included in Other
Comprehensive Income.. (7.49) 0.7) 2.2) 0.1) 14 0.3 — 8.7
Purchases.........ccccevereruennnne. 241.5 — 39.5 1.3 8.1 60.0 111.0 461.4
Settlements............ccceevenenne. (65.5) 0.6) (7.5) 0.1) 0.7) (40.0) — (114.4)
Sales .oevereereeeee e (73.6) — (7.5) 1.2) (5.0) — — (87.3)
Transfers into Level 3 ......... — — — — — 4.1 — 4.1
Transfers out of Level 3...... (10.0) — — — 9.9) — — (19.9)
Balance at End of Year........ $ 4362 $ 38 § 873 $ 38 $ 301 $ 2055 $ 1645 $ 931.2

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2015. All of the $4.1 million transfers into Level 3
for the year ended December 31, 2015, relate to an investment that changed from an Equity Method Limited Liability
investment to Other Equity Interest at Fair Value. All other transfers out of Level 3 for the year ended December 31, 2015 were
due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.
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Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2014 is presented below.

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities

Corporate Other Preferred
Bonds Redeemable Collateralized Mortgage- and Other Fair
and Preferred Loan and Asset- Common Equity Value
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Obligations backed Stocks Interests Option Total
Balance at Beginning of
Year .o $ 3641 § 74 % 447 $ 45 $ 321 $1739 3§ — § 6267
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated
Statement of Income... (3.4) — 0.2 0.1 1.1 2.7 0.7 —
Included in Other
Comprehensive Income.. 5.1 0.1 (1.0) 0.1 0.5 2.2 — 6.8
Purchases.......c.ccocevereniennenn. 201.4 — 26.1 — 8.9 53.0 58.0 347.4
Settlements ...........erveeeeenn. (126.4) (0.6) — (0.8) 45  (39.8) —an.
SALES v (79.0) — (5.6) — 22 (5.8 4.0)  (96.6)
Transfers into Level 3 ......... — — — — 3.6 — — 3.6
Transfers out of Level 3 ...... (1.2) — — — 0.7) — — (1.9)
Balance at End of Year........ $ 3606 § 6.7 § 644 $ 39 § 388 §$ 1862 §

533 § 713.9

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 or Levels 1 and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2014. The transfers into Level 3 and out of Level 3
for the year ended December 31, 2014 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.

The fair value of Debt is estimated using quoted prices for similar liabilities in markets that are not active. The inputs used in
the valuation are considered Level 2 measurements. The fair value of Short-term Investments is estimated using inputs that are
considered Level 1 or Level 2 measurements.

NOTE 23. CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of its businesses, the Company is involved in legal proceedings, including lawsuits, regulatory
examinations and inquiries. Except with regard to the matters discussed below, based on currently available information, the
Company does not believe that it is reasonably possible that any of its pending legal proceedings will have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Over the last several years, certain state insurance regulators, legislators, treasurers/controllers, and their respective agents have
aggressively pursued an array of initiatives that seek, in various ways, to impose new duties on life insurance companies to
proactively search for deaths of their insureds and contact the insureds’ beneficiaries even though such beneficiaries may not
have submitted claims, including due proof of death, as required under the terms of regulator-approved policy forms. These
initiatives together comprise a set of circumstances involving potential changes in the law or changes in the interpretation of
existing laws that could have the effect of altering the terms of Kemper’s life insurance subsidiaries’ (the “Life Companies”)
existing life insurance contracts by imposing new requirements that did not exist and were not contemplated at the time the Life
Companies entered into such contracts.

Legislation and related litigation. One type of initiative involves legislation (the “DMF Statutes”). DMF Statutes have been
enacted in nine states, with varying effective dates, that require life insurance companies to compare on a regular basis their
records for all in-force policies (including policies issued prior to the effective dates of the DMF Statute) against the database of
reported deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration or a comparable database (a “Death Master File” or “DMEF”).
In contrast, four other states have enacted DMF Statutes that also require such comparisons, but exempt life insurance
companies, like the Life Companies, that have not previously utilized a Death Master File, and instead only require that such
companies conduct DMF comparisons for policies issued and delivered in each of those states after the DMF Statute’s effective
date. Six additional states have enacted DMF Statutes that require comparisons, but only with respect to policies issued on or
after their respective effective dates, without regard to prior DMF use. With respect to those DMF Statutes that apply
retroactively and would likely have an adverse effect on the Company’s operations and financial
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position, the Life Companies filed declaratory judgment actions challenging the application of such statutes to policies issued
prior to the subject DMF Statute’s effective date:

* In November 2012, certain of the Life Companies filed an action in Kentucky state court, asking the court to construe
the Kentucky DMF Statute to apply only prospectively, i.e., only to life insurance policies issued in Kentucky on or
after the effective date of the Kentucky DMF Statute, consistent with what the Life Companies believe are the
requirements of applicable Kentucky statutory law, the Kentucky Constitution and the Contract Clause of the United
States Constitution. In April 2013, the trial court held that the Kentucky DMF Statute does apply to life insurance
policies issued before the statute’s January 1, 2013 effective date. The subject Life Companies appealed and in August
2014, in a unanimous opinion, the Kentucky Court of Appeals reversed the trial court and held that the Kentucky DMF
statute fell within Kentucky’s statutory presumption against retroactive laws. Therefore, the Court ruled, the Kentucky
DMF Statute can only apply to policies issued on or after January 1, 2013. The Kentucky Department of Insurance
sought review of this ruling by the Supreme Court of Kentucky, which granted discretionary review in August 2015. In
February 2016, the Department of Insurance requested that its appeal be dismissed and this request was granted, thus
concluding the litigation. Consequently, the Kentucky DMF Statute is deemed to apply to policies issued on or after
January 1, 2013.

* InJuly 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed an action in state court in Maryland, asking the court to construe the
Maryland DMF Statute to apply only prospectively, consistent with what the Life Companies believe are the
requirements of Maryland’s common law presumption against retroactive application of new laws, the Maryland
Constitution and the Contract Clause of the United States Constitution. The Maryland Insurance Administration (the
“MIA”) filed a motion to dismiss, contending that the subject Life Companies were required to exhaust their
administrative remedies before filing an action in court. In March 2014, the trial court granted the MIA’s motion and
the Life Companies appealed that ruling. The Maryland appellate courts declined to stay enforcement of the Maryland
DMF Statute pending the appeal and the Life Companies are complying with that statute while they pursue an appeal.
The Life Companies’ appeal was denied by the Maryland Court of Special Appeals in October 2015 and the Life
Companies have requested review by Maryland’s highest court, the Court of Appeals.

Unclaimed property compliance audits and related litigation. A second type of initiative involves an unclaimed property
compliance audit of the Life Companies (the “Treasurers’ Audit”) being conducted by a private audit firm (the “Audit Firm”)
retained by the treasurers/controllers of more than thirty states and related litigation. In July 2013, the California State
Controller (the “CA Controller”) filed a complaint for injunctive relief against the Life Companies in state court in California,
seeking an order requiring the Life Companies to produce all of their in-force policy records to the Audit Firm to enable the
firm to perform a comparison of such records against a DMF and to ascertain whether any of the insureds under such policies
may be deceased; as described below, the Life Companies have filed a counterclaim in this case. In December 2013, the CA
Controller filed a motion for preliminary injunction seeking the same injunctive relief; that motion was continued until the
California Court of Appeal ruled in a similar case involving an unaffiliated insurance company (the “ANICO Appeal”). In July
2014, the trial court granted a motion by the CA Controller to stay the litigation against the Life Companies pending a decision
in the ANICO Appeal. In March 2015, the California Court of Appeal reversed the order granting the preliminary injunction to
the CA Controller in the ANICO Appeal. In light of the result in the ANICO Appeal, the stay of the litigation involving the Life
Companies was lifted and the CA Controller withdrew its motion for preliminary injunction; discovery activity has resumed and
the matter is set for trial in early 2017. Pending the outcome of this litigation, the Life Companies have not produced their in-
force policy records to the CA Controller.

In October 2015, certain of the Life Companies filed a complaint for injunctive and other relief in state court in Illinois seeking
a declaration that the Treasurer of the State of Illinois (the “IL Treasurer”) lacks the authority to compel those Life Companies
to produce all in-force policy records to the Audit Firm, which is also a named defendant. In this litigation, the Life Companies
further assert that life insurance proceeds become unclaimed property subject to escheat to Illinois five years after the insurer
receives a claim and proof of death or the insured attains the mortality limiting age, and not five years after the date of the
insured’s death. This complaint was filed in connection with the Treasurers’ Audit and in response to a demand by the IL
Treasurer that the Life Companies produce all in-force policy records.

Examinations by insurance regulators and related litigation. A third type of initiative involves examinations by state insurance
regulators. The Life Companies are the subject of a pending multi-state market conduct examination by five state insurance
regulators that is focused on the Life Companies’ claim settlement and policy administration practices, and specifically their
compliance with state unclaimed property statutes (the “Multi-State Exam”). The Multi-State Exam originated in June 2012 as
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a single-state examination by the Illinois Department of Insurance (the “IDOI”). Insurance regulators from five additional states
- California, Florida, New Hampshire, North Dakota and Pennsylvania - joined the examination in May 2013 (New Hampshire
withdrew in 2014). In July 2013, the Life Companies received requests from the IDOI, as managing lead state for the Multi-
State Exam, for a significant volume of information beyond that which the Life Companies had already produced, including the
records of all in-force policies and other information of the type previously requested by the Audit Firm as part of the
Treasurers’ Audit and which is the subject of the CA Controller’s litigation. This request by the IDOI prompted the litigation in
[llinois and other states described below.

In September 2013, certain of the Life Companies filed declaratory judgment actions against insurance regulators in the states
of California, Florida, Illinois and Pennsylvania, asking the courts in those states to declare that applicable law does not require
life insurers to search a DMF to ascertain whether insureds are deceased. These complaints also asked the courts to declare that
regulators in those states do not have the legal authority to (i) obtain life insurers’ policy records for the purpose of comparing
those records against a DMF, and/or (ii) impose payment obligations on life insurers before a claim and due proof of death have
been submitted by policy beneficiaries or the insured reaches the mortality limiting age specified therein. The action in
California was filed as a cross-complaint to the CA Controller’s complaint and joined the California Insurance Commissioner
and the Audit Firm as defendants. In December 2015, the Life Companies voluntarily dismissed the litigation against the IDOI
after that department agreed to withdraw the request for records of all in-force policies and advised the Life Companies that it
intended to proceed with a single-state market conduct exam without use of a DMF. At least one or more of the states remaining
in the Multi-State Exam are expected to continue with the pending Multi-State Exam The actions against the insurance
regulators in the states of Florida and Pennsylvania were stayed by agreement of the parties pending resolution of the action
with the IDOI and may resume in 2016. Pending resolution of the litigation arising from the Multi-State Exam, the Life
Companies have not produced their in-force policy records in connection with the Multi-State Exam.

Conclusion. The results of the aforementioned legislative actions, Treasurers’ Audit, Multi-State Exam and the related litigation
cannot currently be predicted. The Life Companies continue to maintain that states lack the legal authority to establish new
requirements that would effectively change the terms of existing life insurance contracts with regard to basic claims handling
obligations and processes. If state officials are able to impose such new requirements retroactively upon the Life Companies’
existing life insurance policies, it will fundamentally alter the nature and timing of the Life Companies’ responsibilities under
such policies by eliminating the effect of contractual terms that condition claim settlement and payment on the receipt of a
claim, including “due proof of death” of an insured. The outcomes of the various initiatives and related litigation could result in
changes in the law that could effectively alter the terms of the Life Companies’ existing life insurance contracts by imposing
new requirements that have a significant impact on, including acceleration of, the Life Companies’ payment and/or escheatment
of policy benefits, and materially increase claims handling costs. Any attempt to predict the ultimate outcomes (including any
estimate of the resulting effect on the Life Companies claim liabilities and reserves for future policy benefits) of these efforts to
change the law would entail predicting on a state-by-state-basis numerous uncertainties including, but not limited to:

* How many states eventually enact laws, interpret existing laws or take other action to require the use of a DMF or may
exact such usage through regulation, examinations or audits;

*  The matching criteria to be used in comparing records of the Life Companies against a DMF;
+  The universe of policies affected;
*  Whether and to what extent any such laws would be applied retroactively; and

+  The results of unclaimed property audits, examinations and other actions by state insurance regulators and litigation,
including challenges to the constitutionality of laws purporting to have retroactive application.

Due to the complexity and multi-jurisdictional nature of this issue, as well as the indeterminate number of potential outcomes
and their uncertain effects on the Life Companies’ business, Kemper cannot reasonably estimate the amount of loss or other
economic effect that it would recognize if the Life Companies were subjected to requirements of the types described in this
Note on a retroactive basis.
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Mr. Christopher B. Sarofim, a director of Kemper, is Vice Chairman and a member of the board of directors of Fayez Sarofim
& Co. (“FS&C”), a registered investment advisory firm. FS&C provided investment management services with respect to
certain assets of Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, under an agreement between the parties. Trinity had $85.8 million and $154.7
million in assets managed by FS&C at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In 2014, Trinity began reducing the amount
of assets managed by FS&C. Trinity completed the disposal of all the assets managed by FS&C in 2015. Investment Expenses
incurred in connection with such agreement were $0.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

FS&C also provides investment management services with respect to certain funds of the Company’s Pension Plan. The
Company’s Pension Plan had $137.2 million, $159.2 million and $148.6 million in assets managed by FS&C at December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, under an agreement with FS&C whereby FS&C provides investment management services.
Investment Expenses incurred in connection with such agreement were $0.4 million, $0.4 million and $0.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

With respect to the Company’s defined contribution plans, until November 4, 2014, one of the alternative investment choices
afforded to participating employees was the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund, an open-end, diversified managed investment fund.
FS&C provides investment management services to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund as a sub-investment advisor. The Company
does not compensate FS&C for services provided to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. Participants in the Company’s defined
contribution plans had allocated $22.8 million for investment in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund at December 31, 2013,
representing 6% of the total amount invested in the Company’s defined contribution plans at such dates.

The Company believes that the transactions described above have been provided on terms no less favorable to the Company
than could have been negotiated with non-affiliated third parties.

As described in Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company also has certain
relationships with Capitol, a mutual insurance company which is owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, ORCC.

119



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Revenues:
Earned Premiums..........cocoovviiiiiiceeeiiieceee e $ 4313 § 5001 $ 5367 $ 5415 $2,009.6
Net Investment INCOme...........cccoevvrierieniieierieeeeee e 70.6 76.7 75.9 79.4 302.6
Other INCOME .......ccuiiviiiiiiiciieteeee et 0.9 0.6 0.8 1.4 3.7
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments.............cccoevevrenenne. 34 34.0 53 9.4 52.1
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses..................... (7.0) 2.2) 3.3) (14.9) 27.4)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
TNCOME.....oceiiiieiiee ettt — — — 0.2 0.2
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............c.c......... (7.0) 2.2) 3.3) (14.7) (27.2)
TOtal REVENUES .....ocviivieeiieieiiciieiieieeieeteetteieeie ettt ese s eseennens 499.2 609.2 615.4 617.0 2,340.8
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPenses.........c.ccvevuieierieniieienienieeieeieeieesve s 297.7 375.1 378.8 416.0 1,467.6
Insurance EXPEenSes ........ccecveriieiiiieniieiieieeieeie e 144.9 162.1 161.1 177.0 645.1
Write-off of Long-lived ASSEt........cceeveviieieeieiieieeieieeie e — 11.1 — — 11.1
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt............ccccecvevvririennnen. 9.1 — — — 9.1
Interest and Other EXpenses ..........cccoevveevieieeiieieeieeieieeeeeieenene 29.7 26.6 25.7 25.6 107.6
TOtal EXPENSES...cuvicvviiiierieiiiciieeti ettt ettt 481.4 574.9 565.6 618.6 2,240.5
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.. 17.8 34.3 49.8 (1.6) 100.3
Income Tax Benefit (EXpense).........cccccvevvieiieieiieciieieeeeieeeeeveane “4.3) (6.9) (11.8) 2.9 (20.1)
Income from Continuing Operations.............cecueeverervereereereerueruennens 13.5 27.4 38.0 1.3 80.2
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations.............cceevevervevennnne — 2.3 0.1) 33 5.5
NEt INCOME .....eoviiiiieiicii et $ 135 $§ 297 $ 379 § 46 § 857
Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share:
BASIC ooviiiiecieciece et naas $ 026 $ 053 $ 073 § 0.03 $ 1.55
DHIUCA c.vvvoeeeeeossssnereeeses s $ 026 8 053 8§ 073 § 003 $ 155
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC vouviiiiiciecte ettt seeneas $ 026 $ 057 $ 073 $§ 0.09 $ 1.65
DHIUEA c.vvveoeeeeessseeeeeees s $ 026 8 057 8§ 073§ 009 $ 1.65
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share.............ccccvevveveieienennnn. $ 024 § 0.24 0.24 024 $ 0.96

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares
outstanding for each of the periods presented.

120



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) (Continued)

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Revenues:
Earned Premiums.........cccveviieiiieiiieceiciee e eneneenas
Net Investment INCOME.........c.ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e,
Other INCOME .......ccuiiviiiieiiciietccccee et
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments.............ccccoevevrenene.
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses.....................

Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
INCOME. ...

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............c.c.........
TOtal REVENUES .....ooveiiiiiiiriiiiieicciteiceeeeee e
Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPenses.........cccovevueeierieniieienienieeieeieeieeieenene

Insurance EXPenses ........ccccveeririerieniiniienienieeieneesieeieeeeseeeaenn
Write-off Long-1ived ASSet.......ccccvviriririnininieieieeeeeieene
Interest and Other EXPenses ..........cccoevvevvieienrieieeieeeeieeieeeeeeenn
TOtal EXPENSES...cveivireiieiriiriieiieiieiieiieiteiteieeieeeeeieeeteiteseeeeseeneeneeneeneens
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.............
Income Tax Benefit (EXpPense).........ccccvevuieiieieiieciieieeeeieeeeveane
Income from Continuing Operations............c.coeeeveererieereenerennens
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations.............ceevecvervevennene

NEt INCOME ...ttt

Year

Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended

Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014

$ 4776 $§ 4703 § 4628 § 4515 §$1,862.2

71.1 72.6 72.3 93.1 309.1
0.1 0.2 0.5 0.6 1.4

6.6 3.5 8.0 21.0 39.1
(0.8) 4.1) (3.8) 65 (152
(0.8) (4.1 (3.8) 65  (15.2)
554.6 5425 539.8 5597 2,196.6
3279 3475 300.5 2858 12617
152.1 161.3 158.6 156.4 628.4
_ — 54.6 - 54.6

22.7 225 22.1 24.4 91.7
502.7 531.3 535.8 466.6  2,036.4
51.9 11.2 4.0 93.1 160.2
(16.7) (1.9) 0.8 (29.8)  (47.6)
352 9.3 48 63.3 112.6
(0.1) — (0.1) 2.1 1.9

$ 351 $ 93 $ 47 $ 654 $ 1145
S 063§ 017 $§ 009 § 120 8 208
S 063§ 017 $§ 009 § 120 8 208
$ 063 $ 017 $ 009 $ 124 $ 212
S 063 $ 017 § 009 $ 124 § 212
S 024 $ 024 § 024 $ 024 S 096

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares

outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KEMPER CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedules listed in Item 15. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described in the Management Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial reporting at Alliance United,
which was acquired on April 30, 2015 and whose financial statements constitute 7% of consolidated assets, 12% of
consolidated revenues, and -14% of consolidated net income as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015. Accordingly, our
audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at Alliance United. The Company’s management is responsible
for these financial statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedules and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 12, 2016
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not Applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with participation of Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of the end of the period covered
by this report. Based on such evaluation, Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as
of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that information required
to be disclosed by Kemper in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported, within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms, and accumulated and communicated to the Company’s
management, including Kemper’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

On April 30, 2015, Kemper completed its acquisition of Alliance United, at which time the acquired companies became Kemper
subsidiaries. See Note 3, “Acquisition of Business,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part I of this Form
10-K for further details of the transaction. The Company is currently in the process of assessing Alliance United’s material
internal controls over financial reporting. Other than in connection with this acquisition, there have not been any changes in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2015 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We, as management of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

*  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

*  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

+  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on
the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 2013 by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, we have concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2015.

In conducting our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, we have excluded the Alliance
United Group and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively, “Alliance United”), which were acquired on April 30, 2015, as
permitted by the guidance issued by the Office of the Chief Accountant of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Alliance
United’s financial statements constituted 7% of consolidated assets, 12% of consolidated revenues, and -14% of consolidated
net income as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, as auditors of the consolidated financial
statements of Kemper and its subsidiaries, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of management’s internal control
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over financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued in 2013 by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR. /S/ FRANK J. SODARO

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr. Frank J. Sodaro

President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Kemper Corporation Kemper Corporation

February 12, 2016
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The attestation report of the independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is included in Item 8 under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Election of Directors,”
“Executive Officers,” “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement for
Kemper’s 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Kemper plans to file such proxy statement within 120 days after
December 31, 2015, the end of Kemper’s fiscal year.

Kemper’s code of ethics applicable to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer and principal accounting officer (“Code
of Ethics for Senior Financial Executives”) is posted in the “Governance” section of Kemper’s website, kemper.com. Kemper
also intends to disclose any future amendments to, and any waivers from (though none are anticipated), the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Executives in the “Governance” section of its website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Executive Compensation,”
“Executive Officer Compensation and Benefits,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2016 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The Compensation Committee Report to be included in such Proxy Statement shall be deemed to be furnished in
this report and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act as a
result of such furnishing in this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is set forth in the table below and incorporated herein by reference to the section
captioned “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights or Programs (1)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security Holders..........cccoocoinciiiciiiiicee 1,428,157  $ 39.75 7,636,921
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders..........cccoevervecieiieieiecieee — — —
TOtal e 1,428,157 $ 39.75 7,636,921

(1) Includes 538,500 shares reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of
outstanding performance-based restricted stock and performance-based RSU awards.

Kemper’s Omnibus Plan permits various stock-based awards including, but not limited to, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, DSUs, time-vested restricted stock and RSUs, and performance-based restricted stock and RSUs.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, RSUs,
DSUs, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Related Person
Transactions” and “Director Independence” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Independent Registered Public
Accountant” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report

L.

3.

Financial Statements. The consolidated balance sheets of Kemper and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and
the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, together with the notes thereto and the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP thereon
appearing in Item 8 are included in this 2015 Annual Report.

Financial Statement Schedules. The following four financial statement schedules are included on the pages immediately
following the signature pages hereof. Schedules not listed here have been omitted because they are not applicable or not
material or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Schedule I Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties
Schedule I Parent Company Financial Statements

Schedule I1I Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance Schedule

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, with regards to the Financial
Statement Schedules listed above, is incorporated by reference to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accountant
included in Item 8.

Exhibits. An Exhibit Index has been filed as part of this report on pages E-1 through E-4.

(b) Exhibits. Included in Item 15(a)3 above

(c) Financial Statement Schedules. Included in Item 15(a)2 above
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below on the following page hereby appoints each of Joseph P. Lacher, Jr., President and
Chief Executive Officer, Frank J. Sodaro, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Richard Roeske, Vice
President and Chief Accounting Officer, so long as such individual remains an executive officer of Kemper Corporation, his
true and lawful attorney-in-fact with authority together or individually to execute in the name of each such signatory, and with
authority to file with the SEC, any and all amendments to this 2015 Annual Report of Kemper Corporation, together with any
and all exhibits thereto and other documents therewith, necessary or advisable to enable Kemper Corporation to comply with
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the SEC in respect thereof,
which amendments may make such other changes in the 2015 Annual Report as the aforesaid attorney-in-fact executing the
same deems appropriate.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Kemper Corporation has duly caused this
2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, on February 12, 2016.

KEMPER CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.
Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Kemper Corporation in the capacities indicated on February 12, 2016.

Signature
/S/" ROBERT J. JOYCE

Robert J. Joyce

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.

/S/" FRANK J. SODARO

Frank J. Sodaro

/S/" RICHARD ROESKE

Richard Roeske

/S/" GEORGE N. COCHRAN

George N. Cochran

/S/" KATHLEEN M. CRONIN

Kathleen M. Cronin

/S/" DOUGLAS G. GEOGA

Douglas G. Geoga

/S/" CHRISTOPHER B. SAROFIM

Christopher B. Sarofim

/S/" DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch

Title
Chairman of the Board and Director

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (principal
executive officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer)

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (principal

accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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SCHEDULE I

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES
DECEMBER 31, 2015
(Dollars in Millions)

Amount
Amortized Carried in
Cost Fair Value Balance Sheet
Fixed Maturities:
Bonds and Notes:
United States Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............. $ 2980 $ 32006 $ 320.6
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS .....c..eeiieviiiieiiieeeeeeceeee et 1,513.7 1,622.6 1,622.6
Corporate Securities:
Other Bonds and NOTES .........ooivuiiiieieiiiceiee ettt 2,651.5 2,812.8 2,812.8
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .........oooviieuiiiiiiiiiiiieiceecce e 3.7 3.8 3.8
Collateralized Loan Obliations ...........cccecerveriiesieeienieieeieseesieenesnesieeeees 90.0 87.3 87.3
Other Mortgage- and Asset-backed.........c.cooeverererinininieieieieieeeee 3.8 5.2 5.2
Total Investments in FiXed MatUriti€s......cc.ueiivvuriiieiuiieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeteee et eeeenaeeeeenree e 4,560.7 4,852.3 4,852.3
Equity Securities:
Preferred STOCKS.....ooviiiiiiiiee ettt ettt e 97.9 103.9 103.9
COMIMON STOCKS ....eeuviitieitietieiieetteteete et este et e et esteeaeeseesseessesssesseessesssesseessesssessaessens 28.3 36.7 36.7
Other EQUIty INEIEStS ....ce.veuiiirieieieieieieteeeetete ettt 360.7 382.6 382.6
Total Investments in EQUItYy SECUITLIES.........coevriririririeieiieieieeeee e 486.9 523.2 523.2
Fair Value Option INVESIMENTS..........ccceeiririririinieiieiieiieieceteeeeee ettt 164.5 164.5 164.5
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative
Undistributed Earnings .........coceeeveieieieieieieieieieieteteieteeetetete e seese e sensenaens 190.6 XXX.X 190.6
Loans, Real Estate and Other INVEStMENtS ..........cc.coevieeveeerieeiieeeieeeeeeree e 443.2 XXX.X 443.2
Short-term INVESTMENLS .........ceiivieieieiiieiieie et ettt ete ettt et eeteeae s e saeesteesseeasesaeenseens 255.7 XXX.X 255.7
TOtal INVESIMENLS......eeiiivieiieiiieceeiee et ceree et e et e eetreeeetreeeeetaeeeeeaseeeeesneeeeennreeeennns $ 6,101.6 $ 6,429.5

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Millions)

ASSETS

Investments N SUDSIAIATIES ......couerveruiriririrereeeee ettt
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2015 — $15.1; 2014 — $12.2)..ccveveieieieieieieeene
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2015 — $11.1; 2014 — $21.9)...cooiiiiiieeeeeeeee e
Fair Value Option INVESIMENTS. ......c.eciiiieiieiecieii ettt ettt st e e sae e e eneesneenseenseens
ShOTt-terM INVESTMEINES .....eiveiviitiiiiitiiieeieeiceteet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et ae e ees

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2017 (Fair Value: 2015 — $374.0; 2014 — $390.2)....c.ccecvvvevreecrnenenn.
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2015 (Fair Value: 2014 — $260.2) ......ccevveerieereeeieeeereeeee e
Senior Notes Payable, 4.35% due 2025 (Fair Value: 2015 — $248.3) ..cooiieirieeeeeeeeee e
Subordinated Debentures due 2054 (Fair Value: 2015 — $159.0; 2014 — $154.0) ....cveveveiecrecieieiennee.
Liabilities for INCOME TaAXES.....cceririririiiiiieiieiieiteiteeei ettt ettt ettt et et e e s nee
Liabilities for Benefit PIANS...........ccociviririririeiieieieeeeeet ettt et
Accrued Expenses and Other LIabilities ..........cceeviriririririeieieieieteietee ettt
TOLA] LIADIIIEIES. . .eveviviiieteeieeieeteet ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st e st e st e st e st et ententensensensensensensensensansanes
Shareholders’ Equity:
COMIMON STOCK ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt sttt b et b et
Additional Paid-in Capital ..........cceeierieieiieiieieieieeteteet ettt ettt ettt bbb et st b s
REtaINed EAIMINGS .....ouveieieieieiieieieieieieietete ettt ettt e et et e et e s e b e ensensensenbensensensensensensensenes
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME..........ccveveierierierieieieieieieiese et
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY .......ccoieiiiiiiieiieiestiee ettt sttt ettt sae et eaeesaeebeenneeas
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” EQUILY .........cooiiiiiiiiriiieeieeee et

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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SCHEDULE II

December 31,

2015 2014
$2,586.6 $ 2,677.5
15.1 12.2
10.9 21.8
164.5 53.3
134.8 225.1
15.9 17.9
5.7 6.9
— 4.7
6.1 5.6
$2939.6 S 3,025.0
$ 3591 § 3585
— 249.5
247.4 —
144.1 144.1
33.3 14.5
154.8 160.2
8.5 75
9472 9343
5.1 5.2
654.0 660.1
1,209.0  1,202.7
124.3 2227
1,992.4  2,090.7

$ 2,939.6

$ 3,025.0



KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Net INVestment INCOMIE. ........c.eiuiriiirieiirieirieetee ettt $ 1.7 $ 09 § 0.2
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of Investments ............coccoeeerieiincienienenecceeeee 0.1) 0.2) 0.6
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........cccooceeveeiinienienienieneeeeeecee e (1.6) 1.7 —
TOtAl REVEIUES ....ueieieiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et ebeentesseeseensesseenseensesneesseensenns — (1.0) 0.8
Interest Expense 473 47.9 39.0
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt............cccoociiriiiieiiiiieieeeeeeee et 9.1 — —
Other OPerating EXPENSES........vevuieierieriieieeiierieieeiesttesteeiesseesseessesseesseessesssesseessesssesseessenns 17.6 2.7 21.6
Total OPerating EXPENSES. ... .ccvevuieieeieriieieeiesiteteetesetesteetesseesseessessaesseessesssesseessesssesseesenns 74.0 50.6 60.6
Loss before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........ccc.ceeeveeevereeennne (74.0) (51.6) (59.8)
Income Tax BeNe it .......ccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 26.5 18.9 20.8
Loss before Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........cc.eceevereecieeiieneeieeiesieeieeceeseeiens 47.5) (32.7) (39.0)
Equity in Net Income of SubSidiaries.........coceeereriririnieiiieiieieteeeeetee e 133.2 147.2 256.7
INEE INCOIMIC ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et et a e st e s es e e s et ese et ene et ensesesesesseneeseneenes $ 8.7 $ 1145 $ 2177

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Dollars in Millions)

NEEINCOMIE ..ottt st s be e s ne s
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SubSIAIaries ........ccveverieriieieeieriee et
Securities Held by Parent............cooieriiiieieieeeeeee e
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SubSIAIAries ........ccveierierieieeieieieeieseee e
Securities Held by Parent............ccoeveviiieeienieieceeee et
Unrealized Holding Gains (LLOSSES).....cccvirieriieriieieniieieeieeiesieeie et sieeve e sse e esaeseeeeeas
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year..........ccccceeveeeeneen.
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ........ccccceevveeciereerieeciennennen.
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ..........cccoueiveineriicneineninciecieeneene
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments............c.cocceveieenieenieineineneeneeeeeeeeeenes
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income............cccccceeveenncnnnne.
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments...........cccecveueieierieienienieienieienienieeeseeseenienees
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) before Income Taxes........ccecveveeeieienieienienienieiennen
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SubSIAIAries .........ccveveieieieieieieieieieeieeee et
Securities Held by Parent...........ccocveveieieieiiiieieieeeeeeeeee e
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SuDSIQIATIESs .......ceoveieieieieieieieieieieieiee e
Securities Held by Parent...........ccccveieirieieieieieieeieeeeeeee e
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES..........ccuevieieieierieieieieierieieieseeiessestesessessensenees
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeat.........cccccoeceeveennne
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs .........ccceveviereereniencnniene
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ........cceeierierieiiinienieieeieeeeee e
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments...........ccceeeueeierienienieniesieeieseese e
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income..........ccccoeeveveicnnnne.
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments...........ccceeeueeierienieeienierieeie e
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) .....cccuerieriiiiieiieiieieeiiestt ettt ettt te e s ente e
Other Comprehensive INCOME (LOSS)...cveevrrirriieiieeiiesiieieeie sttt
Total Comprehensive INCOmME (LOSS)....cueeuiruirriieieeiesieie ettt

For The Years Ended December 31,

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

SCH II-3

2015 2014 2013
857 $ 1145 § 2177
(150.4) 2617  (324.9)
(1.5) (2.0) —
(26.9) (26.8) (37.9)
15 1.7 —
(177.3) 2346  (362.8)
3.0 (1064) 61.6
23.1 7.9 25.0
26.1 (98.5) 86.6
(1.4) (1.0) 0.2
(1.4) (1.0) 0.2
(152.6) 1351 (276.0)
53.4 (92.3) 115.9
0.5 0.7 —
9.4 9.4 13.2
(0.5) (0.6) —
62.8 (82.8) 129.1
(1.1) 375 21.6)
(8.0) 2.8) (8.8)
©.1) 34.7 (30.4)
0.5 0.4 (0.1)
0.5 0.4 (0.1)
54.2 47.7) 98.6
(98.4) 874 (1774
(127) S 2019 § 403



KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Operating Activities:
INEE INCOMIC. ...ttt ettt ettt et s ettt s e s ettt eaeneenea $ 857 §$§ 1145 §$ 2177
Adjustment Required to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations:
Equity in Net Income of SubSIidiaries ...........ccuevierieeierieiieesee e (133.2) (147.2) (256.7)
Cash Dividends from Subsidiaries..........ccecevereriririeieiiieieieeteeeeeeeee e 285.0 159.1 95.0
Cash Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan .............cccoocieiieiiniiiieieeeeeeee — — (55.0)
Net Realized (Gains) Losses on Sales of Investments..........cccoeceeveeeveeciencieneenieeneens 0.1 0.2 (0.6)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings...........ccoecvevveeeeeneeiieecieneenieeieseeiene 1.6 1.7 —
Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt ..........ccccoevvirieiiieciinieieeeeeeeee e 9.1 — —
ORET, NCL. ...ttt ettt e a ettt s e e s e s e ne s et eeenaeseanenens 41.6 10.5 67.3
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACtIVItIES.......ccverueerieeierieieeiesiesieeieeresieesesaeseeeseesneneas 289.9 138.8 67.7
Investing Activities:
Capital Contributed to SUDSIAIATY .......cceeiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeee e (105.0) — —
Capital Distribution from SubSidiary.........c..ccceceeeireinenieeniineieeecneeeeeeeee e — 1.1 50.5
Sales, Paydowns and Maturities of Fixed Maturities ...........coccveveenievenecnenineneenencns 11.8 11.5 —
Purchases Of FIXed MAtUIILIES ........ccueeeviivuieiieieereeeie ettt et e eveeeanes (14.8) — —
Sales Of EQUILY SECUTTLIES ....ccvivvirviriiriiriietieiieieeieeieeieeiteteteet ettt ettt ettt neas 9.4 15.1 —
Sales of Fair Value Option INVEStMENLS..........ccceeererieieieieieieieieieeeieieteee e — 6.9 —
Purchases of Fair Value Option INVeStMEnts............cc.ecuerieierienierienieienieienieieieesie e (111.0) (60.9) —
ACQUISTHON OF BUSINESS .....evevieiieiieiieiieiieiieiieiteiteitete ettt ettt ettt ettt ae s (71.0) — —
Change in Short-term INVESTMENTS .........ccuevveierieieieieieieieieete et 90.3 (94.3) 52.7
Net Cash Provided (Used) by INVesting ACHVILIES......cveveeeieieieieieieieieieieieeeseeseeeens (190.3) (120.6) 103.2
Financing Activities:
Net Proceeds from Issuance 0f Debt ........c.ccueieieieieiieieieieieeeeee e 247.3 144.0 —
Repayments Of DEDL .......ccueveiiieieieieieieeeee ettt ettt nnas (258.8) — —
Cash Dividends Paid..........ccooeriiiniinieiee e (49.7) (51.8) (54.9)
Common Stock REPUICREASES .......cc.eeiiiieriiiiieieeeeee et (45.0) (114.0) (100.4)
Cash Exercise of StOCK OPLIONS ......cc.eecieruieriieieeieriteie ettt ettt 3.9 0.5 1.7
Excess Tax Benefits on Share Based AWards...........ccccoeverierieniinieniieieneeeieeeseeene 0.7 0.2 1.3
Net Cash Used by FInancing ACtIVITIES. .....ccueeveriereieieeiesiieie ettt (101.6) (21.1) (152.3)
Increase (Decrease) N Cash .......c.eeiiiieriiiiieeee et 2.0) 2.9) 18.6
Cash, BegINNing Of YEaT........cccueiiiiiiieiieieeieeee ettt ettt s sae e e 17.9 20.8 2.2
Cash, ENA OF YT ......eiiiiiiiie ettt e e e ena e e saaeesasesaeesnteesnaeesnneenes $ 159 § 179 $§ 208

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

SCH 1I-4
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KEMPER CORPORATION
REINSURANCE SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013

(Dollars in Millions)

SCHEDULE IV

Percentage

Ceded to Assumed of Amount

Gross Other from Other Net Assumed to

Amount Companies Companies Amount Net
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Life Insurance in FOICe ........ooovviieiviiiieeeieeeeeeeeee e $ 20,209.8 514.2 205.7 $ 19,901.3 1.0%
Premiums: -
Life INSUIance..........ccoveeireeiieiiieeecee e $ 3741 1.4 14 § 3741 0.4%
Accident and Health Insurance...........c.cccccoeeeveeeirecnnennen. 139.8 0.5 5.6 144.9 3.9%
Property and Liability Insurance ............cccccevveviveienennnee. 1,456.2 18.7 53.1 1,490.6 3.6%
Total Premiums...........coveeeviiiiiieiiieeie et $ 1,970.1 20.6 60.1 $ 2,009.6 3.0%
Year Ended December 31, 2014 -
Life Insurance in FOICe .......oooviimeoiiieeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 20,565.9 541.5 217.8 $20,242.2 1.1%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTANCE ......c.veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 3875 1.5 1.6 $ 3876 0.4%
Accident and Health Insurance...........c..ccccoeevvveeveeennene.. 146.3 0.5 2.8 148.6 1.9%
Property and Liability Insurance ..........c.ccecevveeevreennnen. 1,297.3 24.0 52.7 1,326.0 4.0%
Total Premitms.........cocvevieuieierierieeeiieeeeeeereeeeeeeneeeeeeenennens $ 1,831.1 26.0 571 $ 1,862.2 3.1%
Year Ended December 31, 2013 -
Life Insurance in FOIce .......ccoovvieniiiiinienicieciee e $ 21,006.0 576.4 229.5 $20,659.1 1.1%
Premiums: -
Life INSUTANCE ......veveveeeeveeeeteeeveeteee et enenes $ 3924 1.5 1.8 $§ 3927 0.5%
Accident and Health Insurance............c.ccoceveeveinieieennne 161.9 0.6 0.1 161.4 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ............ccocceevevevevenennnnn 1,452.7 31.8 50.8 1,471.7 3.5%
Total PremiUmmsS......ccoveevverierieirieeeieeee et eeee et eeveeeveeeneeenns $ 2,007.0 33.9 527 $ 2,025.8 2.6%

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

SCH I'V-1



Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are either filed as a part hereof or are incorporated by reference. Exhibit numbers followed by an
asterisk (*) indicate exhibits that are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filed or
Furnished

Filing Date Herewith

3.1
32

4.1

4.2

43

44

4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

103

10.4*

10.5%

Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Kemper
Corporation

Indenture dated as of June 26, 2002, by and
between Kemper and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee to
BNY Midwest Trust Company, as Trustee

Officers’ Certificate, including form of Senior
Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00% Senior
Notes due May 15, 2017

Indenture, dated as of February 27, 2014, by and
between Kemper Corporation and The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as
Trustee

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of
February 27, 2014, to the Indenture dated as of
February 27, 2014, by and between Kemper and
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A., as Trustee (including the form of 7.375%
Subordinated Debentures due 2054).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
February 24, 2015, to the Indenture, dated as of
February 27, 2014, between Kemper
Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (including the
form of 4.350% Senior Notes due 2025)

Form of Certificate Representing Shares of
Kemper Corporation Common Stock

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated
as of June 2, 2015, by and among Kemper, the
lenders party thereto, JP Morgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as administrative agent, swing line lender
and issuing bank, and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association and Fifth Third Bank, as
co-syndication agents

Advances and Security Agreement and
Addendum to Advances and Security
Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2013,
between Trinity Universal Insurance Company
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas

Advances, Collateral Pledge, and Security
Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2014,
between United Insurance Company of America
and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago

Kemper Pension Equalization Plan, as amended
and restated effective August 25, 2011, as
amended by Amendment No. 2 effective
September 16, 2013

Kemper Defined Contribution Supplemental
Retirement Plan, as amended and restated
effective August 25, 2011

8-K
8-K

8-K

10-Q

8-K

8-K

10-K

8-K

10-K

10-Q

E-1

001-18298
001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

3.2
33

4.1

43

4.1

4.2

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.1

10.3

10.15

August 8, 2014
August 8, 2014

May 14, 2012

May 7, 2012

February 27, 2014

February 27, 2014

February 24, 2015

June 8, 2015

February 14, 2014

March 21, 2014

February 14, 2014

November 2, 2011



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.6*

10.7*

10.8%*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11%*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20%*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

Kemper Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
Plan, as amended and restated effective January

1, 2014, as further amended by Amendment No.

1, effective October 5, 2015

Kemper Severance Plan, as amended and
restated effective August 25, 2011

Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as amended and restated effective
February 3, 2009

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the
Kemper 1995 Non-employee Director Stock
Option Plan, as of February 3, 2009

Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement

under the Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as of

February 1, 2006

Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as amended
and restated effective February 3, 2009

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement

under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as of

February 1, 2006

Form of Stock Option Agreement (including
stock appreciation rights) under the Kemper
2002 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2011

Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as amended

and restated effective October 30, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of August 25,
2011

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award
Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus
Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

Form of Deferred Stock Unit Agreement for
Non-employee Directors under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of May 1, 2013

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Installment-Vesting form under the Kemper
2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4,
2014

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement -
Cliff-Vesting Form under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2014

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q
10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

10-K

E-2

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

10.18

10.2

10.6

10.7

10.2

10.8

10.4

10.9

10.9

10.1

10.13

10.24

10.25

10.1

10.2

10.24

10.25

November 2, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

May 4, 2011

February 4, 2009

May 4, 2011

February 3, 2011

October 31, 2013

February 17, 2012

February 15, 2013

February 15, 2013

May 2, 2013

May 2, 2013

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

X



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.24*

10.25%*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30*

10.31*

10.32%

10.33*

10.34*

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Installment-Vesting Form
under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan,
as of February 4, 2014

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Unit
Award Agreement - Cliff- Vesting Form under
the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of
February 4, 2014

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011
Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective October 29,
2013 (for awards through February 3, 2014)

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2013

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as

amended and restated effective February 4,
2014

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement
under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive
Plan, as of February 4, 2014

Kemper Executive Performance Plan, effective
February 4, 2014

Kemper is a party to individual Indemnification
and Expense Advancement Agreements with
each of its directors, as amended and restated
effective February 1, 2012

Kemper is a party to individual severance
agreements with the following employees:

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr. (President and Chief
Executive Officer)

Donald G. Southwell (Former Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer)

John M. Boschelli (Senior Vice President and
Chief Investment Officer)

C. Thomas Evans, Jr. (Vice President,
Secretary & General Counsel)

Diana J. Hickert-Hill (Vice President,
Investor Relations and Corporate Identity)

Shekar G. Jannah (Vice President, Chief Risk
Officer)

Lisa M. King (Vice President, Human
Resources)

Christopher L. Moses (Vice President and
Treasurer)

Richard Roeske (Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer)

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

10-K

8-K

10-Q

E-3

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

001-18298

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.2

10.21

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.25

10.17

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

October 31, 2013

February 15, 2013

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 14, 2014

February 6, 2012

November 2, 2011



Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Form

File Number

Exhibit

Filing Date

Filed or
Furnished
Herewith

10.35%

12
21
23
24

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

101.1
101.2
101.3

101.4

101.5

101.6

Dennis J. Sandelski (Vice President, Tax and
Corporate Development)

Frank J. Sodaro (Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer)

Each of the foregoing agreements is identical
except that the severance compensation multiple
is 3.0 for Messrs. Lacher and Southwell and 2.0
for the other officers.

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr. Offer Letter dated
November 19, 2015

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney (included on the signature
page hereof)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)
(32) of Regulation S-K)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of
Regulation S-K)

XBRL Instance
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Document

8-K

E-4

001-18298

10.1

November 20, 2015

MoK X )

>~



THE FOLLOWING EXHIBITS ARE AVAILABLE IN THE INVESTOR SECTION OF KEMPER’S WEBSITE,
KEMPER.COM UNDER THE HEADING, SEC FILINGS:

e EXHIBIT 4.6 — FORM OF CERTIFICATE REPRESENTING SHARES OF KEMPER CORPORATION
COMMON STOCK

e EXHIBIT 10.6 — KEMPER NON-QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN, AS AMENDED AND
RESTATED EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2014, AS FURTHER AMENDED BY AMENDMENT NO. 1,
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 5, 2015



Exhibit 12

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(Dollars in Millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes........... $ 1003 $ 1602 $ 3144 § 1224 $§ 683
Less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability

INVESTMENTS .....oeiiiiiiiicie e 19.0) (9.0) (26.4) 9.3) (9.6)
Plus Distribution of Accumulated Earnings in Equity Method

Limited Liability INnVeStments............cceceevevveverieireriesieierieienns 8.6 21.7 15.4 15.4
Plus Fixed Charges..........cecveieveieieieieieieieeeieeneeeeessessesesnens 52.3 52.9 443 45.1 45.1
Less Capitalized INterest .........ccoecveeeieieieieieieieieieeeeeeenennenns (0.8) (1.0) (0.9) (1.8) (2.6)
Total Barnings...........c.coceveveueueeieeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1414 $§ 2248 $ 3468 $ 171.8 $ 101.2
INEETEST 1.ttt ettt ettt $ 500 $ 503 $ 417 $ 414 § 406
Rental FaCtOr ......c.ooveeiieiieieece e 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.9 1.9
Capitalized INTETeSt........c.eeveriieiieieriieieciere e 0.8 1.0 0.9 1.8 2.6
Total FiXed Charges...........coeveveveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 523 § 529 $§ 443 $§ 451 $§ 451
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (2).......c.ccceevvevvevieeienienieeienns 2.7 x 4.2x 7.8 x 3.8x 2.2x

(a)  Theratios of earnings to fixed charges have been computed on a consolidated basis by dividing (a) Income from Continuing
Operations before Income Taxes less Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus Distribution
of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, plus fixed charges, and less capitalized interest,
by (b) fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest on debt and a factor for interest included in rent expense. Income from
Continuing Operations before Income Taxes has the meaning as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Income included
in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments and Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments have the
meanings as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2015.



Subsidiaries of KEMPER CORPORATION

Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation, with their states of incorporation in parentheses, are as follows:

1. Alliance United Group, LLC (California)
2. Alliance United Insurance Company (California)
3. Alliance United Insurance Services, LLC (California)
4. Alpha Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Wisconsin)
5. Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (Texas)*
6. Charter Indemnity Company (Texas)
7. Direct Response Corporation (Delaware)
8. Family Security Funerals Company (Texas)
9. Financial Indemnity Company (Illinois)
10. KAHG LLC (Illinois)
11. Kemper Corporate Services, Inc. (Illinois)
12. Kemper Direct General Agency, Inc. (Texas)
13. Kemper Financial Indemnity Company (Illinois)
14. Kemper General Agency, Inc. (Texas)
15. Kemper Independence Insurance Company (Illinois)
16. Merastar Industries LLC (Delaware)
17. Merastar Insurance Company (I1linois)
18. Mutual Savings Fire Insurance Company (Alabama)
19. Mutual Savings Life Insurance Company (Alabama)
20. NCM Management Corporation (Delaware)
21. Old Reliable Casualty Company (Missouri)*
22. The Reliable Life Insurance Company (Missouri)
23. Reserve National Insurance Company (Oklahoma)
24. Response Insurance Company (Illinois)
25. Response Worldwide Direct Auto Insurance Company (Illinois)
26. Response Worldwide Insurance Company (I1linois)
27. Security One Agency LLC (Illinois)
28. Trinity Universal Insurance Company (Texas)
29. Union National Fire Insurance Company (Louisiana)
30. Union National Life Insurance Company (Louisiana)
31. United Casualty Insurance Company of America (Illinois)
32. United Insurance Company of America (Illinois)
33. Unitrin Advantage Insurance Company (New York)
34. Unitrin Auto and Home Insurance Company (New York)
35. Unitrin County Mutual Insurance Company (Texas)*
36. Unitrin Direct Insurance Company (Illinois)
37. Unitrin Direct Property & Casualty Company (Illinois)
38. Unitrin Preferred Insurance Company (New York)
39. Unitrin Safeguard Insurance Company (Wisconsin)
40. Valley Property & Casualty Insurance Company (Oregon)
41. Warner Insurance Company (Illinois)

* May be deemed to be an affiliate pursuant to Rule 1-02 of SEC Regulation S-X.

Exhibit 21



Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-58300, 333-4530, 333-38981, 333-86935,
333-76076, 333-87898 and 333-173877 on Form S-8 and Nos. 333-127215, 333-142722 and 333-194032 on Form S-3 of our
report, dated February 12, 2016, relating to the consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedules of
Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”), and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 12, 2016



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Joseph P. Lacher, Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 12, 2016

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.
Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Frank J. Sodaro, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 12, 2016

/S/" FRANK J. SODARO
Frank J. Sodaro
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Joseph P. Lacher,
Jr., as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/ JOSEPH P. LACHER, JR.
Name: Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Date:  February 12,2016




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended
December 31, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Frank J. Sodaro,

as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/" FRANK J. SODARO
Name: Frank J. Sodaro

Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 12,2016
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Kemper Corporation Board of Directors
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Left to Right: Kathleen M. Cronin, Douglas G. Geoga, Joseph P. Lacher, Jr., George N. Cochran,

Robert J. Joyce, David P. Storch, Christopher B. Sarofim

Robert J. Joyce

Chairman of the Board

Kemper Corporation

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Westfield Group

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation

George N. Cochran

Retired Chairman

Global Financial Institutions Group
Macquarie Capital

Kathleen M. Cronin

Senior Managing Director, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

CME Group Inc.

Douglas G. Geoga
President and Chief Executive Officer
Salt Creek Hospitality, LLC

Christopher B. Sarofim
Vice Chairman
Fayez Sarofim & Co.

David P. Storch
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
AAR Corp.




Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries

Executives

Joseph P. Lacher, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

John M. Boschelli
Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer

Timothy D. Bruns
Executive Vice President and General Manager,
Kemper Specialty California

Shawn R. Crawford
Chief Information Officer

C. Thomas Evans, Jr.
Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

Ronald E. Greco
Corporate Actuary

Diana J. Hickert-Hill
Vice President,
Investor Relations and Corporate Identity

Shekar G. Jannah
Vice President and Chief Risk Officer

Lisa M. King
Vice President, Human Resources

David Mandel
Executive Vice President and General Manager,
Alliance United Group

Blaine T. McGuire
Vice President, Internal Audit

Joseph W. Metz
President,
Kemper Personal and Commercial Lines

Maxwell T. Mindak
Vice President, Financial Planning and Analysis

Christopher L. Moses
Vice President and Treasurer

Thomas D. Myers
President, Kemper Home Service Companies

Richard Roeske
Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Dennis J. Sandelski
Vice President, Tax and Corporate Development

Andrew F. Schallhorn
President, Reserve National

Frank J. Sodaro
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Kemper Corporation Information

Stock Listing

Kemper Corporation is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol KMPR

Common Stock Transfer Agent/Registrar

Please direct questions regarding stock
registration, change of address, change of name
or transfer to

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 30170
College Station, TX 77842-3170

877.282.1168 (in the United States)
computershare.com

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte & Touche LLP
111 South Wacker Drive
Chicago, IL 60606

2016 Annual Meeting

May 4, 2016
8:00 a.m. Central Time

The Kemper Building
Conference Center, Suite 2015
One East Wacker Drive
Chicago, IL 60601

Investor Relations

Diana J. Hickert-Hill
Kemper Corporation
One East Wacker Drive
Chicago, IL 60601

312.661.4930
investors@kemper.com
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